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A fresh morning, a fruitful year
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A fresh morning, a fruitful year

2005 was a rewarding year for the Group. We had record
earnings, achieved strong share price performance and
earned higher market recognition for management
quality. Our efforts to transform the company into a
focused consumer company have led to market expansion
of our core businesses alongside the disposal of our non-
core assets. The momentum will continue.
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Financial Highlights
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HE—TEAF+=A=1—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2005

—EERF ZETFE (EH))4 —EE=F (FH)
BET T BB T BT
2005 2004 (Restated)* 2003 (Restated)*
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
EEE 53,583,919 47,078,103 34,655,172
Turnover
fed=iagl 3,255,372 2,023,850 1,533,241
Profit from operations
JEIRER SRR EEFE 353,736 361,948 407,296
Share of net results of associates
R B PR R FE A5 F) 2,220,403 1,480,053 1,429,249
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
BRAERM (BT $1.02 $0.70 $0.69
Earnings per share' (HK$)
BB (BETT)
Dividend per share (HK$)
T $0.13 $0.11 $0.10
Interim
RE $0.25 $0.16 $0.14
Final
$0.38 $0.27 $0.24
R+ ER = — 2
Special interim Note 2
R=ZZAHEF RZTZTMEF (F)* —EE=F (FH)
+=HA=+—8 +=—A=+—8 +=—B=+—8
BET T BB T BT
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
2005 2004 (Restated)* 2003 (Restated)*
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RAFIRERE R 18,196,448 15,124,828 13,000,166
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
DER R R 4,746,888 4,811,653 3,858,801
Minority interests
1B 22,943,336 19,936,481 16,858,967
Total equity
e ETORE 3,311,150 4,980,613 2,856,490
Consolidated net borrowings
IS 14.4% 25.0% 16.9%
Gearing ratio®
TEN L 1.12 1.26 1.30
Current ratio
BIREEFE - FREE(BET $8.15 $7.12 $6.22
Net assets per share: book value (HK$)
Hiat Notes:
1. FREF T H5 R FEA 5 FIBR X F 9 E BE1TRR (7 9 I A F 15 2 1. Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the
itE . weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

2. BRETRARGIRHGERE —REBNEHERARARZIR 2. Aspecial distribution in specie of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for every
TERFFIRE. ten shares of the Company was distributed.

3. BELFEIEG S EXFREEGRR L] 3. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

4. AREFBFEFIEE ML BHFHTES  UFEAFEZ 4. Comparatives have been restated to conform with the current year presentation in light of the
SRR » change in accounting policies.
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Analysis of Turnover and Profit

HE-_TTRFF=A=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2005
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HE-_TTARF+=-A=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2005

EEBRIER DMK Analysis of Turnover and Profit

—genE —2PmE (E5))
BET T BT T
2005 2004 (Restated)'
HK$’000 HK$’000
BOEH Core Businesses
TE Retail 16,202,472 13,898,114
R Beverage 6,854,604 5,079,388
BT k& Food Processing and Distribution 5,623,565 5,433,955
AL Textile 4,291,206 3,851,037
L/ES Property 299,121 306,997
NE Subtotal 33,270,968 28,569,491
p=giE 4 Other Businesses
Al R AR E A SE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 20,539,758 18,680,861
B REMER Investments and Others — —
NE Subtotal 20,539,758 18,680,861
53,810,726 47,250,352
HIEEBE 2R B Elimination of inter-segment transactions (226,807) (172,249)
ECk Total 53,583,919 47,078,103
BOER Core Businesses
=& Retail 107,202 52,212
R Beverage 135,783 104,092
R INT R4 H Food Processing and Distribution 414,471 380,504
O Textile 81,198 (873)
L/ES Property 689,786 309,666
NEE Subtotal 1,428,440 845,601
B Other Businesses
Aim R AERE RS Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 623,874 511,069
& R E M ER Investments and Others 355,977 319,806
NEE Subtotal 979,851 830,875
2,408,291 1,676,476
NRIBEF B FEREA Net corporate interest and expenses (187,888) (196,423)
et Total 2,220,403 1,480,053
BOEH Core Businesses
TE Retail 755,867 627,407
R Beverage 1,056,196 887,587
BN RALH Food Processing and Distribution 630,331 607,304
AL Textile 342,882 202,873
b2ES Property 814,451 276,754
NE Subtotal 3,599,727 2,601,925
Al R AR E AL iE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 907,696 694,494
EAh? Others? 279,091 269,536
B Total 4,786,514 3,565,955

Bet 1 MREFIRREFEE  MILBHFHTES  UFEAFREZINRE -
2. B BFE I E AR FEFERAVIAFER -

Notes: 1. Comparatives have been restated to conform with the current year presentation in light of the change in accounting policies.
2. Others include share of net results of associates less corporate overheads.

EMAIEEM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 £k
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Company Profile

FHAXARAR ( [FEHAZE] ) REEBMARZM LETHAR]
EBELETEKRERBBNHERY - XEBUK ST BEIZAMR
BHEEELERIER - REZULRR - ARECREMPREREE
- LHETE - Bam - KeMEsEEEzZ O X BNERR - &7
MIHREMN - SIEERARFEL L EERFEHRBE - B
FRMm - RmMOBEXNSTEXRBHEEN M - KeA~KE
MERERFIER -

St

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (CRE) is a listed company on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business emphasis on the
consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Our
mission is to become the largest consumer company in China.
To achieve this, the Group has already established leading
presence in our business domains, in particular, within the four
core businesses namely retail, food, beverage and textile. There
are operational synergies among these consumer-related
businesses. Notably, food, beverage as well as textile will form
part of the supply chain for the retail business and they will grow

together driving the Group’s overall development.

E#MAIEEM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 3k
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Corporate Structure
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—EEhFEHREN
Milestones in 2005

o ETTIREKESE - =B A global roadshow highlighting
ENETRLES our beverage business was
conducted

]
-

o ERMIELHEAELE The acquisition of the
B BRSBTS HEE  reorganized Fuyang City
BRATA] Snowland Brewery Co., Ltd.
in Anhui Province was
completed

#MAIZEEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#
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o EREHERER
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11.5% R%AE

STRK B TR A
RmAB RN AR
A R]HY25.09% g

o & (MNTE) Rk
B [SAER
BATEDREAE]
RENSTEE K

e

The increase in stakes in CR
Vanguard and Suguo by

additional 35% and 11.5%
respectively was completed

The disposal of a 25.09%
stake in Xuzhou VV Food &
Beverage Co., Ltd. was
completed

The Group was ranked the
second largest retail
organization for China in Retail
Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards
organized by Retail Asia
Publishing
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EITNERERRHE
o RPEMEED
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The Group was ranked first
both among companies in
China and Hong Kong as well
as in the conglomerate sector
in a corporate governance
survey published by Euromoney

o FRIWEEMIZEMRE The agreements to acquire
BmBRARIK—%R Zhejiang Cikelong Supermarket
RKEBMEHEEN Co., Ltd. and the assets of a
BE supermarket chain in Tianjin

were signed

S35 5
vanguard

+—H NOVEMBER

o TRk HEIFREE The disposal of our entire 51%

BAMEIARAR  interest in Dongguan China
MEEE51% Resources Petroleum &

Chemicals Co., Ltd. was
completed

—ZEZHFEREE Milestones in 2005

+—=AH DECEMBER

® & (ZHMEM) Lk The Group was named the

4 [2005 FE&E “2005 Best Managed Company
in China — Large Cap” by
Asiamoney

BIEREME (KR
®EAR)

li'l."'-u.l \ .‘“‘
scutives s of
Best

The Ritz-{nrly

LI E TP

o U EERIRMNIA  The trial operation of the
EMIFOZARE  modern meat processing
center in Shanghai commenced

o FEHEEREN
7 {E e vk

The disposal of our 17 petrol
stations in Guangdong
Province was concluded

EMAIEEM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 £k
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Letter to Investors
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Chairman’s Statement

AEBEEERBEERENBE  BSEHNGEEHA
B ERRERVHERER - AMEEM SRR
B NMEEBRLIEBCERLH - AEECAFESER

HERRER  RYHSHERRSZEXMAIKR ©
The Group is undergoing a strategically planned
transformation — steadily reconfiguring our
portfolio of business to focus on the core
consumer businesses. The mainland domestic
consumer market has revealed promising
prospects, whilst in Hong Kong, the local
economy has gradually regained its strength
and vibrancy. We have crafted solid platforms
for sustainable growth and the Group looks
forward to enjoying greater success

with you. l

RAK
Song Lin
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EFEHRE Chairman’s Statement

Against the strong economic growth in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, reinforced
by the Group’s persistent efforts to enhance operating efficiency and restructure
non-core assets, the Group reported record performance in 2005. Consolidated turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2005 rose 13.8% over 2004 to another new high of
HK$53,583.9 million. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$2,220.4 million,
50.0% higher than in the previous year and is the highest level since our listing. Earnings
per share, on a weighted average basis, was HK$1.02 compared to HK$0.70 in 2004.

Excluding the gain in property revaluation and its related deferred tax effects, which
are considered the major effects of the changes in accounting policies during the year,
the Group’s consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the
year ended 31 December 2005 was HK$1,817.0 million, 22.8% higher than that in the
same period of 2004.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.25 per share for 2005 (2004:
HK$0.16 per share) payable on or about 16 June 2006 to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 29 May 2006. Together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.13 per share, the total distribution for 2005 will amount
to HK$0.38 per share (2004: HK$0.27 per share). This represents a 41% increase over
2004.

The Register of Members will be closed from 29 May 2006 to 2 June 2006, both days
inclusive. In order to be eligible for the final dividend, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the share registrars
of the Company, Standard Registrars Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2006.

Corporate strategy
To achieve our objective of becoming the largest consumer company in China, the

Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses to expand market presence,
improve competitiveness and establish platform for future growth. For the year ended
31 December 2005, the Group incurred more than HK$3,400 million on capital
expenditure with a majority on retail and beverage businesses. A total of over 170
supermarket stores were opened during the period. Major acquisitions during the year
included two supermarket chains in Zhejiang Province and Tianjin as well as a brewery

in Anhui Province.

At the same time, the Group has been disposing of businesses or assets which are
outside our core portfolio or which lacked critical mass. Major non-core assets disposed
of in 2005 included the residual 10.5% stake in Qingdao oil storage joint venture, CRE
Building, a 25.09% stake in Xuzhou VV Food & Beverage, a 51% stake in Dongguan
China Resources Petroleum & Chemicals as well as 17 petrol stations in Guangdong
Province. These disposals have generated cashflow of more than HK$ 1,400 million and

#MAIEAEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#
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EFEHRE Chairman’s Statement

FEE - Ut AEBEZBYBENaEREEE N RR
MIFRLEB 2 — A MR E R H R A TR (¢
BR BREFAEMREESR  EHEE  BTRRR A
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BERCESHEER - AEENRR - R RGHBEBHE
ERARAR BB TS HEEN — /D - LER@EBH
M FRAAEENEBEMHRERA - 5 - RAKAMEMD
RYER  REEKBSESANE—HER - ARETHER
TN EREBETERENTHERN (S - HNE
BAKEE NMEEATEMEBELRMAMEXRTHSIDR
REAMEYES - BNBEBHARENBETES o

R B IRAE IR P R B A Y IR B - B Bl B A AR
N EBENBEEEEEBANGE M D B R55.7% &
40.6%  MBE—ZTNF+_A=1t—RLEFEHEFRD
RIA51.1%K47.8% ° MM ATE A L E N RE &
BRRAMENEMIGEL B -

unlocked their latent value. In addition, the Group has appointed a financial advisor to
advise on the feasibility of restructuring our petroleum and related products distribution
business, one of the remaining non-core businesses. Various proposals, including but
not limited to an introduction of a strategic investor for part of the business, are currently
under study.

The Group is also making satisfactory progress in the implementation of our retail-led
distribution strategy, though it is still at an early stage. The Group’s food, beverage and
textile operations have started to form part of the supply chain for our supermarket
business. In particular, the food operation, which has a long history of supplying fresh
meat, vegetables, rice and other food products to our supermarkets in Hong Kong, is
currently their single largest supplier. We have also stepped up our efforts to introduce
SNOW, our national brand for beer, via our mainland supermarkets. Our property
division, which is very experienced in operating the Group’s retail properties in Hong
Kong, will develop shopping malls in the Chinese Mainland, part of which will be for
our own supermarket use.

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in the Chinese Mainland. For the
year under review, about 55.7% of turnover and 40.6% of profit before tax was from
the mainland, compared with 51.1% and 47.8% respectively in the year ended 31
December 2004. The reduction in significance of pre-tax profit from the Chinese

Mainland was partly due to the distortion caused by the revaluation gain of the

investment properties in Hong Kong.

EXEHED M
Turnover by geographic region

MRBL RS R B 2 o
Profit before tax by geographic region

100 —

A1) Percentage (%)

100 _

A1) Percentage (%)

2005

B A

Chinese Mainland

2003

v Hth
Hong Kong Others
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EFEHRE Chairman’s Statement

Business strategy

The Group continues to put heavy emphasis on branding. With SNOW’s favorable brand
positioning and effective marketing programs, the brand reported a spectacular growth
in 2005. SNOW is now being marketed as the brand representing “life’s progression”
and this will further differentiate the brand from other local brands. Our supermarket
operation has started to integrate the brands of China Resources Vanguard and Suguo
so that the new hypermarkets opened by Suguo are all named “China Resources Suguo”.
There were nine hypermarkets operated under this new name at the end of 2005. A
new supermarket format called “Olé” has also been developed by China Resources
Vanguard, which is a higher-end lifestyle concept specialty store targeting the upscale
consumers. Our food business has also launched more general food products under its
own brand, “Ng Fung”. They can be broadly classified into eight categories of rice, rice
noodles, fruits, wine, eggs, frozen food, canned food and preserved meat.

The mainland consumer market is highly fragmented with low efficiency. The Group
has been consolidating the market through acquisitions, notably in the supermarket
and beverage operations. District dominance is our priority in expansion so that
economies of scale can be achieved instantly in the area. Attracted by China’s WTO
accession and the robust private consumption growth, global players are increasingly
active in acquisitions and valuation has been rising sharply. The Group has exercised
strong cost discipline in pursuing acquisitions and their benefits against the alternative
option of greenfield investment are always thoroughly reviewed. The Group will continue
to balance profitability gain and market share.

Other business strategies have also been implemented at different levels. Our
supermarket operation has adopted a trade up strategy and has been improving its
merchandise mix and procurement. More fashionable apparel products are introduced
and the proportion of self-operated counters is rising, especially in the fresh food and
soft line sections. Our beverage operation has been reforming its distribution channels
to exercise better control over distributors and enhance supply chain efficiency. Our
food distribution business has entered the mainland fresh meat market for growth
with two projects in Shanghai and Shenzhen already in operation. The technology
upgrade program of our textile business is progressing as scheduled and this will increase
the proportion of high end products, boosting the overall margins. Our petroleum and
related products distribution business, though falling outside the core business model,
is also looking for growth opportunities in the piped gas market.

The mainland consumer market is competitive yet fast growing. In 2005, retail sales in
the Chinese Mainland grew 12.9% to about RMB6,700 billion and market consolidation
had accelerated. The top 30 retailers constituted approximately 7.3% of the total retail
sales, compared with 7.1% in 2004. Among the total sales of RMB491 billion generated
by the top 30 retailers, supermarket operators represented around 45%, reflecting the
continued rapid development of this modern format of shopping. Based on the 2005
Ranking of 30 Largest PRC Retail Chain Enterprises (

) compiled by the Ministry of Commerce, the Group’s supermarket operation
ranked second among the local supermarket operators in turnover.
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Total production volume of the mainland brewery market increased by an estimated
10.4% last year to 30.6 million kiloliters. In 2005, the top three players accounted for
approximately 36% of the market, compared with about 19% in 2000. The Group’s
brewery operation enjoyed a market share of about 13% last year.

In 2005, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese Mainland both
increased by 29% over the previous year. Our yarns and fabrics production decreased
by 2.5% and increased by 16.8% respectively over the same period but sales volume
increased by 28.7% and 13.1% respectively. Technology upgrade and product mix
adjustment to focus on upmarket products have caused the output disruption. It is our
intention to move up market in order to satisfy what the market needs. We replaced
volume based low end machinery with high end ones focusing on quality. This led to a
slower volume growth than the overall market.

There has been a stable growth in the mainland pork industry, with an average annual
increase of approximately 6% in consumption. Pork consumption per capita in China
is still low on international scale. Improving living standards and rising household
income in China will boost pork consumption and narrow the gap with more developed

countries.

The Hong Kong economy improved continuously last year following a recovery towards
the end of 2003. Retail sales increased by 6.8% with continued consumer confidence
and buoyant tourism. Supermarket sales and department store sales increased by
5.8% and 8.2% respectively in 2005 over the previous year. For livestock consumption,
imported and locally produced live pigs and cattle amounted to about 2,049,000 heads
and 48,600 heads respectively in 2005. This represents a decline of 9% and an increase
of 2% respectively when compared to 2004. The decline in pork consumption was due
to the outbreak of streptococcus suis infection.

The Group is fully aware that the maintenance of an effective corporate governance
framework is essential to laying a sound foundation for its long-term steady growth
and development. In this respect, the Group considers that good governance practices
should embody transparency of corporate structures and operations, accountability of
the management to shareholders and corporate responsibility towards employees and
other stakeholders.

Disclosure and transparency is a key aspect of an effective corporate governance
framework. Since November 2002, the Group has been producing quarterly financial
and operational review on a voluntary basis. We are the first conglomerate company
among the constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to initiate such a move, well
before the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Index has made it a recommended best practice
for main board listed issuers.

To further enhance the independence in the scrutiny of the management performance
against agreed goals and objectives, the Group appointed Mr. Cheng Mo Chi as
Independent Non-Executive Director in November 2005. After the appointment, the
Group has four Independent Non-Executive Directors, exceeding the mandatory
requirement under the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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EFEHRE Chairman’s Statement

The Group has been consistently striving to improve its corporate governance standards,
and its efforts in realizing quality corporate governance continued to earn the respect
of the investment community. During the year under review, the Group received the
following accolades in recognition of its continuing efforts to implement good corporate

governance practices:

it was named the “2005 Best Managed Company in China — Large Cap” by
Asiamoney;

it was ranked first both among companies in China and Hong Kong as well as in the
conglomerate sector in a corporate governance survey published by Euromoney;

it was rated one of the companies with best corporate governance in China and also
one of the best managed companies in China by FinanceAsia;

it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among the blue-chip companies in
Hong Kong by the Economic Digest; and

the director responsible for investor relations was rated the Best IR Representative in
China by FinanceAsia and the Best IR Professional among conglomerates in Asia by
the sell-side in a poll conducted by Institutional Investor.

The Group takes corporate governance issues very seriously. In future, we will continue

to review its corporate governance practices from time to time to sustain its commitment
to all stakeholders via efficient and transparent operations.
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With a dedication for pursuit of high standards of corporate governance, the Group
has put in place a tripartite communication system among investors, senior management
and operational management. Understanding the unique features and specific needs
of a conglomerate enterprise with different businesses, we appreciate the fact that we
cannot just stop at merely to improve investor relations, but also to promote internal
communication so as to relay the views of the investment community to the senior
management and various business units effectively. Our ultimate goal is to create a
steady, long term growth in shareholders’ value.

The Group maintains an open dialogue with the investment community. The annual
global roadshow in April 2005 provided an excellent opportunity for senior management
of the Group to meet with worldwide investors from Europe, the United States, Japan
and Singapore. The emphasis was on our beverage division and investors acquired
in-depth and latest information of the Group’s brewery business. During 2005, top
management along with senior management of different business units met with about
680 analysts and fund managers in over 240 meetings including one-on-one meetings,
site visits, luncheons as well as conferences arranged by financial institutions.

Share Performance

CRE’s share price rose 14.0% to HK$13.85 in 2005, outperforming the Hang Seng
Index by 9.0%. During the year, its daily closing share price hit a six-year high of
HK$14.30 on 22 December 2005. The lowest closing price was HK$10.50. CRE’s market
capitalization also grew 19.9% to HK$30,933 million in the year.

Year-end closing price and market capitalization of CRE for 2001-2005
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EFEHRE Chairman’s Statement

Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash dividend payout
ratio and has continuously delivered upon this goal. We plan to pay basic cash dividends
that balance the cash generated from the growth of the company’s earnings with the
cash needed to fuel future profit growth. In addition, special dividends were distributed
in 2002 and 2003 during which the Group’s non-core assets in banking and building
materials were disposed of and restructured.
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The chart has excluded the distribution of a
special cash dividend of HK$0.25 per share in
2002 and a special dividend in specie of one
share in China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited for every ten shares of the Company
in 2003.

. Calculation based on profit attributable to
shareholders as reported in the annual report
of 2004. Taken into account of prior year
adjustments with the profit attributable to
shareholders of 2004 restated, the payout
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ratio shall be restated to 38.8%.

Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer sector, robust
operating performance and rising corporate governance standard, CRE’s shares achieved
a total return for shareholders of 69.8% over the past five years, as measured by share
price appreciation and reinvested dividend. This is considerably higher than that of the
Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index. For the year 2005,
the total return for shareholders was 16.9%, compared to the average 8.4% of the
Hang Seng Index.
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Total shareholder return of CRE relative to market indices for 2001-2005
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INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the overall responsibility of the Board to establish and maintain a sound and effective
internal control system to ensure the smooth running of the operations, safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest as well as ensure the reliability of financial
statements. Our internal control system includes five key elements, the existence of an
effective control environment, risk management, communication and information
system, cost effective control process, adequate organization structure, and proper

monitoring mechanism.

On the current internal control framework of our Group, internal audit plays a key role
in monitoring the effectiveness of our internal control system. The Group’s internal
audit department adopts a risk-based approach in planning its internal audit activities.
It aims to ensure proper internal controls are in place, both at the entity level as well as
the transaction level. It also examines the operation’s efficiency and compliance with
the prescribed policies, procedures and local laws to make sure good business practices
are applied consistently for all business units within the Group. The Head of Internal
Audit reports directly to both the Managing Director and the Audit Committee, and is
free to consult directly the Audit Committee on any issues that arise as a result of the
internal audit activities.

The Board conducts regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system through
monitoring the activities of the Group’s internal audit department and the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee meets with the senior management, internal and
external auditors on a regular basis and makes recommendations wherever appropriate
to the Board for control enhancement.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2005, the Board has reviewed
and is satisfied with the effectiveness of Group’s current internal control system in
place.
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Posters of charity event supported by our supermarket operation

HEFTIFRRBENE [ELEEREXTTE ] FHGES
Launching ceremony for a charity program of our supermarket operation co-organized with
the Agency for Volunteer Service

S BB FIRAM B [ FATIEEE R L2 ]

SNOW offered sponsorship to the development of a mainland primary school

The Group sternly believes that compliance to its corporate social responsibility is most
imperative to the growth of the company as a whole. We consider ourselves accountable
for making contribution to our society, whilst at the same time operational excellence
must be attained at all our business units in securing interests of our shareholders.

The Group works towards the bonding of a strong community through improving the
quality of life for the people at large. We have participated keenly in various social
responsibility projects in the past year. To cite a few examples, our supermarket operation
in Hong Kong worked closely with the Community Chest, the Agency for Volunteer
Service and other charitable funds, launching a number of territory-wide fund raising
campaigns, and provided financial assistance to the underprivileged groups in our society.
Staff from our supermarket operation in eastern China formed a team of volunteer
workers offering aids to community groups in the neighbourhood. Ever since its
formation in early 2005, the team has made visits to elderly homes, orphanages and
hospitals. Our beverage operation has also launched a yearlong project called “The
Great Expedition with SNOW  (
partnership with the US Discovery Channel to produce a documentary on the adventure

) ", at which we worked in

in admiring the marvelous nature of Yarlung Zangbo Daxiagu ( ), a
canyon located in the south-eastern part of the Tibet Autonomous Region. At the
same time, generous donations were made in financing the running of primary schools
in these remote mountain areas, giving school children there a chance to receive proper
education. Our food operation offered material sponsorship to Oxfam’s annual
“Trailwalker” event and Chinese Arts & Crafts under our Hong Kong retail operation
put up an exquisite art item to auction for a charitable cause.

All business units of the Group adhere strictly to the principle of protecting our
environment and preserving our nature. The Group’s obligations towards our society
are the best illustration of our values and beliefs, that we are a corporation bringing a
better life for all.
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Over the last several years, the Group has executed a strategically planned transformation
— steadily reconfiguring our portfolio of business to focus on the core consumer
businesses. Further progress was made in 2005. We stretched our market presence in
the core businesses including retail, food, beverage and textile, as reflected by their
steady revenue growth. Brand value has been built, notably in our beer products and
retail chains, as penetration deepens. In addition, the disposal of non-core assets has
accelerated. Coupled with our disciplined cost management and improved efficiency,
the Group reported record earnings last year. To a large extent, the results also indicate
the initial success of our transformation to focus on consumer-related businesses.

Following the lifting of the restrictions on foreign investment in retailing in the end of
2004, competition in supermarket business in the Chinese Mainland has heated up as
foreign operators fastened their store opening pace and acquisitions. Nevertheless,
there were considerable improvements in our supermarket operation last year driven
by same store growth and measures to control costs. Ongoing store format remodeling
will continue to further distinguish us from competitors and gradually build up our
core competence. Concurrently, we will push ahead the integration with acquired
companies such as Suguo and Cikelong so as to promote the synergies derived from
centralized management and enhanced bargaining power over suppliers. Other retail
operations have performed satisfactorily following the decisions to concentrate resources
on comparatively more profitable fashion brands and realign the department store
business in Hong Kong. The Group will continue to take a prudent approach in capital
allocation.

The profitability growth of our beverage operation in 2005 was its fastest in recent
years. This reflected not only the growth in mainland beer consumption but also our
strength in market consolidation and brand marketing. The development of our national
brand, SNOW, is particularly encouraging with a sales volume increase of 47% last
year and it has probably become the largest single beer brand in China in terms of sales
volume. Over the past ten years, our beverage operation has been rapidly building up
geographical coverage and market share. We are now targeting profitability as driver
for future growth through improvement in operational efficiency. We will continue to
strengthen our presence in the existing districts to attain regional dominance. Our
expansion into new catchments, such as the southern region, will be a scalable yet
cautious process.

The Group’s livestock distribution business will benefit from the economic growth and

a consumption shift from poultry to red meats because of health concern against fear
of an avian flu pandemic. Over the long term, food safety will be further promulgated
and this is expected to improve the prospects of our meat processing projects in the
mainland. In addition, general food distribution under the “Ng Fung” brand has been
growing fast in Hong Kong and is becoming a new driver for our food processing and
distribution business.
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China’s textile industry has grown rapidly in the post-quota era. Apart from overseas
demand, continued increase in disposable income has also stimulated domestic
consumption of textile and apparel products. Our textile operation is producing higher
end yarns and fabrics through technology upgrade and is targeting denim casual wears
to lead garment export. Our petroleum and related products distribution business
has benefited from the rising oil prices. Although oil prices would remain volatile,
the operation’s earnings base has been strengthened through investment in mainland
piped-gas projects which provide steady and growing income.

In the upcoming five-year economic program, the 11th Five-Year Plan, the central
government emphasized on the improvement of living standards and the pursuit of a
more balanced growth model in favor of domestic consumption. In tandem with its
robust economic growth and the recent revaluation of the Renminbi, the mainland
domestic consumer market has promising prospects. In Hong Kong, the economy has
gradually regained its strength and vibrancy. There has been continuous improvement
in unemployment rate and gradual increase in wages. Although the effect of higher oil
prices and successive interest hikes on the economies has not yet been fully reflected,
our strategy is in place. We have crafted platforms for sustainable growth through our
transformation into a consumer company. We will further strengthen our talent and
leadership. With our commitment to shareholders’ value and corporate governance,
the Group looks forward to enjoying greater success with you.

Since 2005, the Company has seen some changes to its Board composition and senior
management team. Mr. Zhong Yi retired from the Board in June 2005 and Mr. Cheng
Mo Chi was appointed Independent Non-Executive Director in November 2005. In March
2006, Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao were re-designated as Non-Executive Directors
to take on new assignments and responsibilities with China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, Mr. Wang Shuaiting was appointed Non-Executive Director, while
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man Him were promoted to be
Deputy Managing Directors and Mr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles and Mr. Zhu Dan were
promoted to be Vice Presidents.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our sincere thanks for the
contributions of Mr. Qiao Shibo, Mr. Yan Biao and Mr. Zhong Yi as Executive Directors,

to extend a warm welcome to Mr. Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. Wang Shuaiting, and to

congratulate Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing, Mr. Kwong Man Him, Mr. Lau Kin
Shing, Charles and Mr. Zhu Dan on their promotions. | would also like to take the
opportunity to express my earnest gratitude to a team of devoted staff for their
outstanding performance and to our shareholders for their strong support.

SONG LIN
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6 April 2006
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EEEWES M Management Discussion and Analysis
#£7%EEE REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

—BERF ZERFED g
2005 2004 Restated)  change (%)

EEEET BEEST

HK$ million HK$ million
= Turnover 16,202 13,898 +17
PR A Attributable profit 107 52 +105
RETFIS - B - #7#  EBITDA 756 627 +20

R SHRT R A

BARFEYZ RFUWAETEE Capital expenditure and new acquisitions 1,438 1,358 +6

AEBNTEEB T EMAT ZREBEER © (1

|THIH KR

Xk (3) BT EEER

—ETRFAEBETEXEBREBRAKERRNRAK -
BFENTMBLARENER - CEBESE
16,202,500,0007T * R-—FZTPUFIER16.6% ° BIEFE
PUEF£R105.3% °

75#107,200,0007T * B-FT

FAFERALCEEERDLR - RIBEERGFABLRM
ZETRHFNBERNALEERBERFIERII% -
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RETERHABN  LHREBEZENMRERE -
BB HEESNBEE - FE2ADEESEER
MEeHERE - 1B
KRAFZEHFEFENN11% - REEPEBEL S

RMTETEEE - HIEHEATE

FEITE  ARNHAHEREREY

(2) BRI EY G R B i AL S

TRl Ai

) E The Group’s retail division mainly comprises three business segments: (1) supermarket

stores operation.

and logistics; (2) brand-fashion distribution in the Chinese Mainland and (3) other retail

In 2005, the Group’s retail division recorded encouraging improvement in profitability
on expanded business scale. Turnover reached HK$16,202.5 million, representing an
increase of 16.6% over 2004. Attributable profit was HK$107.2 million, representing

an increase of 105.3% over 2004.

The pace of economic growth continued to be robust in the Chinese Mainland
throughout the year. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, a 9.9% year-on-
year growth rate for GDP was attained in 2005. Urban residents in the Chinese Mainland,
e especially those living in affluent cities and the surrounding areas, enjoyed higher living
 JERHER]  standards and therefore stronger spending power as their disposable income increased
steadily. A sturdy trend in retail sales is anticipated as the government tries to promote

consumption to help rebalance the economy. Higher consumer spending level is

predicted by the Ministry of Commerce, and retail sales are forecast to grow by about

TEEREEEHMA
Breakdown of turnover of
retail business
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(W] 2005
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and
logistics

(B hERERF 14 Hith
E AL TEE
Brand- Other
fashion retail
distribution stores

11% annually for the next 5 years. The Group’s consumer
businesses as a whole will benefit.

In Hong Kong, as a result of a remarkable increase in export
sales, strong trade flows with the Chinese Mainland and the
resilient growth in private consumption expenditure, the local
economy performance has surpassed expectation with a
7.3% GDP growth registered in 2005. Although consumers
turned more cautious with interest rate rises and the property
market consolidated in the last quarter of 2005, overall
market sentiment remains positive with improving
employment rate and a general rise in household income. As
visitor arrivals keep rising, the retail industry in Hong Kong is
anticipated to move ahead with steady growth.

Supermarket and Logistics

Turnover of the supermarket and logistics operation for 2005
was HK$14,132.4 million, representing an increase of
18.4% over 2004. Attributable profit for 2005 amounted
to HK$54.2 million, compared to a loss of HK$7.0 million
for 2004.
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2005 saw the division’s rationalization strategies taking shape. The Group sought to
advance its competitiveness in key markets by strengthening its existing regional
networks. Progressive increase in new sales floor areas was achieved through new
store openings, line-up with franchised stores and tactical chain store acquisitions. We
strategically expanded the retail networks to achieve market share growth in target
regions. The Group currently operates its supermarket business through three subsidiary
groups, namely, China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd. (“CR Vanguard”) #HEXREGR A
al, Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Suguo”) &R AR A A and China Resources
Vanguard (Hong Kong) Company Limited. At the end of December 2005, the Group
operated a total of approximately 2,100 stores in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland,
of which 44% were self-operated and the rest were franchised stores. Major store
formats are hypermarkets, superstores, supermarkets and convenience stores. In terms
of geographical contribution, Eastern China, Southern China, Hong Kong, Central China
and Northern China respectively accounted for 45.4%, 29.4%, 16.1%, 3.4% and
5.7% of the division’s turnover in 2005.

Market competition has become increasingly intense since the full open-up of China’s
retail sector to foreign investors in December 2004. To foster our core competence, the
Group closed down non-performing stores while continuously improved same store
growth. Efforts were made to enhance the fresh produce operations, to implement
business promotion activities to increase shopper flows, to enhance merchandise mix,
category and assortment management to cater for local preferences and consumption
trends. Productivity and cost control initiatives also helped streamline key processes
and drove down costs. Enhanced inventory systems with stronger supplier links enabled
timely delivery of stock items as and when needed. Staff training and development
with higher caliber recruits elevated the professional management standards and skill
sets for more value-added customer services. Scheduled store facelifts in stages, store
reformats as well as revamp of store displays further promoted the corporate brand
and store profitability.

Turnover growth in 2005 was mainly driven by rapid store openings together with an
overall same store growth of 5.9% in the Chinese Mainland, which also resulted in
improved procurement conditions that gave us greater bargaining power in negotiations
with suppliers. The increase in payments from suppliers, which included incentives,
store display and promotion income, helped improve the overall operating results.
Consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”)
for 2005 amounted to HK$576.2 million, representing a 54.2% growth over 2004.
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The Eastern China operation continued its business momentum in 2005 with a
satisfactory same store growth of 7.9% recorded. The Group adopted a structured
approach of multi-formats and clustering of stores as a cost effective, rapid growth
strategy. Suguo successfully maintained its market share of more than 50% in Nanjing.
Over the years, it has developed a unique business strategy adapted locally that focused
on brand image, enhanced product mix and fresh produce. Increase in both shopper
flows and average customer receipts led to a substantial improvement in turnover as
well as profitability. The last 4 months of 2005 was marked by rapid opening of 9
hypermarkets, a new store format for Suguo. These, together with the acquisition of
17 franchised stores outside Nanjing, has extended Suguo’s retail and distribution
network in the Nanjing nearby areas, resulting in an increase in market share.

In Southern China, store facelifts and better supply chain management delivered results.
Same store growth of hypermarkets and superstores reached 4.2% and 30.5%
respectively. Significant margin improvement was achieved through enrichment in
merchandise mix and responsive business strategies. Net loss for 2005 was reduced as
compared to 2004. However, profitability of some existing supermarkets was still
not satisfactory. The new lifestyle store in Dongguan was now in the process of
fine-tuning performance and reformatting for more promising results.

The 13.9% turnover growth in Northern China was mainly attributable to the acquisition
of Tianjin stores and new store openings. However, net loss worsened due to the fact
that certain existing stores in the major cities in the region were facing head-on
competition with foreign retail operators. Rationalization of existing stores and the
newly acquired Tianjin supply chains, together with a boost in fresh produce operations,
is anticipated to improve stores sales and profitability.

BT R E B D i B

Geographical turnover breakdown of the supermarket business
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The Hong Kong operation faced tougher competition from major local market players.
To secure margins, the Group cautiously monitored the market concessions offered to
customers. However, higher running costs, rental increases and store conversion costs
resulted in a lower operating profit for 2005. With the solid revival of domestic
consumption expenditure, sustainable retail sales growth and growing demand
for quality warehouse space, the Hong Kong operation will benefit in the medium
to long term.

The strategic move of increasing the Group’s equity stakes in CR Vanguard to 100%
and Suguo to 85% helped centralize management functions, drive down administrative
costs, enhance synergies from multiple store formats and strengthen our positioning in
the supermarket and logistics operation. Moreover, an agreement was reached in
September 2005 to acquire 100% interest in Zhejiang Cikelong Supermarket Company
Limited ¥ T2 ZEBM AR A7), which was later completed in December 2005.
This will extend our market presence in Ningbo, Eastern China. With a major asset
acquisition of a supermarket chain in Tianjin accomplished in September 2005, the
Group’s market share further strengthened in Northern China. This will facilitate our
integration in the area.

In line with the current market trend, the Group will focus on the development of
hypermarkets and superstores through new store openings and moving into second
tier cities. We will also emphasize standard-sized supermarkets in selected developed
cities and carve out a better niche for supermarkets.

Brand-fashion Distribution

Turnover of the brand-fashion distribution segment for 2005 was HK$1,397.8 million,
an increase of 22.5% over 2004. Attributable profit for 2005 amounted to
HK$14.1 million, a 54.6% decrease over 2004.

As at the end of December 2005, the Group distributed 10 international brands through
approximately 770 self-operated and franchised stores in designated cities throughout
the Chinese Mainland.

A consistent strong turnover growth of 30.6% in respect of the “Esprit” brand was
recorded. Self-operated stores achieved a same store growth of 9.1%, while franchised
stores also grew at a satisfactory rate. Through product designs that matched customer
demand trends, competitive pricing, active business promotions and the right choices
of stores at prime locations, the brand's profitability recorded a 12.8% increase
in 2005.
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However, a refocus of brands in the last quarter of 2005 led to some of the brand
distribution contracts terminated. A number of store closures resulted in the write-off
of the related leasehold improvement, furniture and fixtures, stocks and some of the
problem debts. These altogether gave rise to an overall lower profitability over 2004.

The Group will continue to review its current brand portfolio, introduce new brands,
strengthen its distribution network and improve operating cost efficiency in capitalizing
on the business opportunities that arise within the fast growing consumer market in
the Chinese Mainland.

Other Retail Stores

Turnover of the other retail stores segment for 2005 was HK$672.3 million, representing
a decrease of 17.6% over 2004. Attributable profit for 2005 was HK$38.9 million, an
increase of 37.5% over 2004.

As at the end of December 2005, the Group’s chain of retail stores in Hong Kong
consisted of 5 Chinese Arts & Crafts F% stores and 34 CR Care # X stores.

Overall decline in turnover was primarily due to the successive closure of CRC Department
Stores in Whampoa in April 2005 and on the Hennessy Road in May 2004. Nevertheless,
through ongoing product mix enrichment, effective pricing and niche creation, gross
margins were improved for both the Chinese Arts & Crafts A% stores and CR Care
#HE stores during the year. There was also a successful re-branding of the CR Care
#= B & stores since last year from its former store-in-store format to a stand-alone
format which has enhanced its overall profitability.

However, with a general increase in rental and tenant portfolio changes for higher
rents, particularly experienced in prestigious shopping malls, tenancies of certain stores
were not renewable upon expiry and they had to be relocated. The Group tactfully
reallocated resources and reported an overall increase in profitability.

Rising health awareness amongst the local community has triggered keen competition
in the markets for health food and traditional Chinese medicine in recent years.
CR Care # B stores strive continuously to develop its own brands in areas such as
cordyceps &5 and bird’s nests for better market recognition, to enrich product portfolio
and to promote suppliers’ relationship that facilitates exclusive dealings of value-for-
money products.
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The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit of HK$6,854.6 million
and HK$135.8 million respectively, representing a corresponding increase of 34.9%
and 30.5% over 2004.

Sales volume of beer rose by 26.0% to approximately 3,948,000 kiloliters for 2005.
Volume performance was exceptionally strong in the usual low months during the last
quarter of the year, with a quarter-on-quarter growth of 17.7% recorded. Overall organic
growth of sales volume in existing breweries was 15.0% for 2005, with notable increases
in Sichuan, Liaoning, Harbin, Hubei and Anhui.

For the year under review, a modest net average price rise of 6.8% was delivered
through continuous sales mix improvement in most of the regions as consumers generally
traded up from lower quality, cheap beer to modernized mainstream and premium
beer. To enhance logistics efficiency and develop new, premium brands, sales and
distribution channels were rationalized with particular emphasis on both retailers and
wholesalers. Cost pressures were significant in commodities like rice, hops, glass,
upgraded returnable containers and packaging materials as we moved on to more
valuable brands. Coupled with increases in labor and energy costs, the average
production cost per kiloliter rose by about 5.9% over 2004. With continuous
improvement in production efficiency, cost management and facilities upgrade, the
overall gross margin rose to 33.0% in 2005 in a competitive environment.
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2005 also saw general improvement in the two major newly acquired breweries. For
the Jiangsu brewery, “SNOW” was actively promoted with the premium local brands
and major cost saving measures were implemented. Nevertheless, with a change in
sales mix to more premium brands, the rationalization of sales channels was yet delivering
full results and the Jiangsu brewery reported a lower sales volume than expected. For
the Zhejiang brewery, there was a modest comparable sales volume growth of 5.1%
over 2004. Both breweries were profitable for 2005.

Our national brand “SNOW”, including the Shenyang beer, was growing fast in 2005
through focused brand marketing and distribution initiatives. Its sales volume for the
year under review increased by 47.4%, to approximately 1,583,000 kiloliters, compared
to about 1,074,000 kiloliters in 2004.

At the end of 2005, the Group operated nearly 40 breweries with an annual production
capacity of approximately 5.8 million kiloliters. Two breweries in Anhui and Hubei
provinces were acquired last year. To bridge the gap between Liaoning and the Northern
China regions, a brewery in Qinhuangdao was newly acquired by end of Decemeber
2005. Its production facilities will be upgraded to a 120,000-kiloliter level. This helps
capture the fast growth potential identified in the Huanbohai region. As part of our
national strategy for “SNOW” to prudently expand into Southern China, the Group
recently acquired an 85% interest in Quanzhou Qingyuan Brewery Limited in the Fujian
Province. Taking advantage of the edges of Quanzhou to consolidate our market position
in the area, it is anticipated that a sound platform for further growth in the region can
be achieved. Our green-field plant in Dongguan has already started trial commissioning
in early 2006. Production capacity for its Phase 1 operation is about 150,000 kiloliters.
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Per capita annual consumption of beer currently stands at about 23 kiloliters in China,
much lower than the global average in 2005. Growth prospects in the Chinese Mainland
is believed to be favorable with rising income levels and the growing preference towards
westernized products, in particular for the younger generation. This presents the
beverage division with exciting opportunities which will help step up to the next stage
of business growth.

BE=FEHHES

Sales volume of beer over the last 3 years

BE=FETEE (B Shenyang®iF ) K2
Sales volume of SNOW beer (including Shenyang beer)
over the last 3 years
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The food processing and distribution division reported turnover and attributable profit
for 2005 of HK$5,623.6 million and HK$414.5 million respectively, representing a
corresponding increase of 3.5% and 8.9% over 2004. Excluding a gain of HK$59.4
million from the disposal of a 25.09% stake in the A-share listed associated company,
BN MR RERHR S B MR A F) Xuzhou VV Food & Beverage Co., Ltd. in the first half
of 2005 versus deemed disposal profits from the successful share listings of two
associated companies in 2004, attributable profit for 2005 increased by 10.2% as
compared to 2004.

Foodstuff distribution operation reported a strong growth in profitability. Continuous
enrichment in product mix, together with the expansion of sales and distribution network
for frozen meat business, contributed to the profit increase. The overall margin was
maintained. In 2005, the slaughtering centre at Sheng Shui, Hong Kong won the Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Points Professional Management Award which highly
recognized its environmental and food hygiene standards in slaughtering. The “Ng
Fung” brand of high quality fresh meat was therefore strengthened locally, amidst
growing concerns over food safety and quality. With greater brand awareness, product
development in line with customer demand trends in the areas of assorted processed
food products and groceries will drive further business growth.

The overall gross profit margin of marine fishing and aquatic products processing
operation was, however, adversely affected by the record high fuel prices and the
decrease in average selling prices caused by keen competition. This resulted in a lower
profit contribution. Regular on-site review of fishing fleet fuel utilization and staff training
on cost saving measures were implemented to closely monitor the increasing production
costs while at the same time weathered the impacts of rising oil prices. Operating
environment is expected to be difficult in the foreseeable future under the prevailing
high oil prices. However, the Group will continue its ongoing efforts in exploring new
quality fishing grounds, enhancing catching capability of its fishing fleet, improving
sales network and selling more high-end fishes as well as aquatic products. These will
altogether help improve its profitability in the long run.

The Shenzhen operation continued to contribute satisfactory profit in 2005. Its
competitive edge on pig sourcing, slaughtering and fresh meat production provides
excellent commercial leverage with our supermarket business in Southern China at low
cost. Moreover, the meat processing centre in Shanghai commenced trial operations in
December 2005. It will enhance the Group’s pig slaughtering and meat product
production capacity and distribution of branded food in the Chinese Mainland.
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Turnover of the textile division for 2005 was HK$4,291.2 million, representing
an increase of 11.4% over 2004. Attributable profit for 2005 amounted to
HK$81.2 million, compared to an attributable loss of HK$0.9 million in 2004.

With the upsurge in world market demand upon the expiry of the global textile quotas
effective 1 January 2005, China’s textile products and garments recorded a respective
22.9% and 19.4% export growth for the year under review. This has benefited the
textile division and therefore contributed to its turnaround in 2005. Sustainable growth
in sales volume of 28.7% in yarns, 13.1% in fabric and 19.6% in garments was recorded.
The growth in turnover was also partly due to the acquisition of interests in two sizable
textile companies in Shaanxi Province in late 2004, together with the full contribution
of two newly relocated factories. Better customer-focused sales management and
product mix enhancement with a gradual shift to high-end products through technology
upgrade also helped combat the general downward pressure on mainstream product
prices and therefore improved the overall turnover level.

In 2005, the residual high cost cotton inventory brought forward from the last quarter
of 2004 was largely consumed with the products sold. Despite a small margin
improvement from better operation efficiency with higher capacity utilization of the
new batch of modern machinery, the profitability of the textile division was tempered
by the general rate rises in direct labor, utility costs and an increase in cotton prices
particularly experienced in the last quarter of the year.

2005 saw great turbulence in the mainland’s external trade relationships, especially
with the United States (US) and the European Union (EU). In response to a massive
surge of Chinese textile exports during the year, the US and EU re-imposed safeguard
guotas on specific categories of textile and garment products which effectively restricted
their growth rate in the range of 10% to 17% from 2006 to 2008. The operating
environment for export sales will continue to be challenging in the next few years.

On the other hand, strong domestic demand for quality textile and garment products is
expected with rising income levels. Hence, favorable business opportunities are present
to the Group in both domestic and export markets. With improved operational efficiency,
better market positioning and more high-end branded products in the sales mix, while
cotton prices in 2006 are expected to remain at reasonable levels on balanced global
supply, these will altogether lead to an improvement in the overall profit margin and
better alignment in the process of industry consolidation.
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The property division, which comprises the rental property segments of retail, office
and industrial premises, reported a turnover and attributable profit for 2005 of
HK$299.1 million and HK$689.8 million, representing a corresponding decrease
of 2.6% and an increase of 122.8% over 2004.

Excluding a valuation surplus of approximately HK$0.4 billion in respect of the rental
properties portfolio as at 31 December 2005 (2004: Not applicable), the disposal gain
of certain properties, vacant period during the redevelopment of the retail property on
the Hennessy Road, Wanchai and other exceptional items of 2004, attributable profit
of the division for 2005 remained comparable to that of 2004.

Driven by the increase in retail sales, prime retail properties were in demand which in
turn drove up the rental levels. Excluding the newly developed retail property on the
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, occupancy rates of rental properties were satisfactory with a
general increase in effective rent per square feet upon tenancy renewal during 2005.

However, retail rentals experienced an average quarter-on-quarter downward adjustment
of 4% during the last quarter of 2005. Market consolidation is expected to continue in
the first half of 2006 with interest rates still on the uptrend. With genuine demand
attributed to sustained economic growth and the continued inflow of investment funds,
the retail property market is expected to recover in the second half of 2006. The newly
redeveloped multi-storey retail property on the Hennessy Road, Wanchai is now ready
to capitalize on the favorable retail market opportunities; with 93.4% of the space
already let out as of February 2006. Estimated monthly rental of over HK$2.5 million
will be generated upon full occupancy.

In line with the Group’s focus on retail properties, there has been an ongoing divestment
of non-retail properties. The division disposed of office properties in Wanchai and
Tsimshatsui and an industrial property in Chaiwan during 2005.

With the success of enhancing revenue and flow of shoppers through renovation and
re-modeling of the retail properties in Mongkok and Tsuen Wan in Hong Kong, similar
mall format has been adopted by two malls in Jiangmen and Xinhui in the Chinese
Mainland. The former is expected to be completed within the first half of 2006, with
our supermarket as its anchor tenant, and will bring in new revenue streams to the

property division.
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Turnover and attributable profit of petroleum and related products distribution division
for 2005 amounted to HK$20,539.8 million and HK$623.9 million respectively,
representing an increase of 10.0% and 22.1% over 2004.

Excluding the gains from the disposal of the remaining 10.5% (2004: 30.0%) equity
interest in a Qingdao joint venture, 51% equity interest in Dongguan China Resources
Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. R HAM{ETAR AT and 17 petrol stations in
the Chinese Mainland, attributable profit for 2005 would have increased by 53.8%
over 2004.

The international crude oil prices surged considerably and averaged at US$56.6 a barrel
during the year, compared to US$41.4 a year ago. Consequently, the prices of petroleum
and related products remained at unprecedented high levels as compared to 2004.
Against the challenging operating environment, overall gross margin edged up in 2005.

Amid volatility in oil prices during the year, the petroleum operation reported notable
improvement in profitability, largely contributed by the aviation fuel distribution. Its
margin improvement was achieved by way of effective pricing and hedging measures
to weather through the oil price fluctuations.

The Group anticipates fluctuations in oil prices to continue in the near term and will
maintain a prudent approach to mitigate the impact on its business performance.

The encouraging profit contribution from piped-gas operations in Suzhou and Chengdu
also added to the increase in profitability for 2005. Since the Chengdu operations
started contributing profit in March 2005, there has been a strong growth in gas demand
and the Group has registered 1.1 million natural gas user accounts with commercial/
industrial customers and residential households by end of the year. In addition to the
establishment of a 50-50% joint venture in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the division newly
acquired a 100% interest in Taizhou Huajian Pipeline Gas Co., Ltd. &M EZEEBMRE
BRR A 7] and started up a venture in Fuyang, Zhejiang Province during the last quarter
of 2005. This further helps expand its piped-gas business in the Chinese Mainland.

With an objective of becoming the largest consumer company in China, the Group has
been restructuring and divesting its non-core businesses so as to shift its focus to the
core consumer businesses. By the end of 2005, the division has already entered into
agreements to dispose of 51% interest in Dongguan China Resources Petroleum &
Chemicals Co., Ltd. B2 EAME THBR A and 17 petrol stations in the Chinese
Mainland.

As part of the restructuring program, the Group has been assessing the feasibility of
various alternatives for the petroleum and related distribution business, one of the
remaining non-core businesses. The Group has appointed a financial advisor to advise
the feasibility of various proposals, including but not limited to an introduction of a
strategic investor for part of this business.
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Attributable profit for 2005 amounted to HK$356.0
million (2004: HK$319.8 million).

Container Terminal

The Group has a 10% interest in HIT Investments Limited
and Hutchison Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The
Hong Kong and Yantian deepwater port operations
continued to maintain a stable profit performance for
2005.
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CAPITAL AND FUNDING

The Group’s treasury function has an objective of maximizing surplus cash for
internal funding while enhancing liquidity and yield. As at 31 December 2005, the
Group’s consolidated cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$6,668.3 million. The
Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2005 were HK$9,979.4 million with
HK$5,168.7 million repayable within 1 year, HK$4,741.7 million repayable after
1 year but within 5 years and HK$69.0 million repayable after 5 years. Committed
borrowing facilities available to the Group were fully utilized as at 31 December 2005.
Except for the US$230 million convertible guaranteed bonds, due for maturity in May
2006, all the borrowings were subject to floating rates. On 4 April 2006, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, together with 10 other banks, signed a joint mandate
for a 5-year bank facility of HK$3 billion, the proceeds of which will be used to
meet general corporate fund requirements, inclusive of the refinancing of the
existing indebtedness.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’ funds and
minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at 14.4% (31 December
2004: 25.0%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are denominated in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2005, 23.8% of the
Group’s cash deposit balances was held in US dollars, 36.8% in Renminbi and
37.9% in Hong Kong dollars; whereas 38.4% of the Group’s borrowings was
denominated in US dollars and 24.1% in Renminbi with the remaining 37.3% in
Hong Kong dollars. Moreover, to mitigate foreign currency and interest rate exposure,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge
against part of its borrowings.
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EEEWES M Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group spent approximately
HK$3,487.5 million on capital expenditure. Additions of fixed assets amounted
to HK$2,705.2 million, while the remaining HK$782.3 million were incurred for new
acquisitions in beverage and additional interests in supermarkets, as part of our
retail-led distribution strategy, together with the purchase of interests in jointly
controlled entities in petroleum and related products distribution. Capital expenditure
was primarily financed by internally generated funds from operations and bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2005, fixed assets with a net book value of HK$227.9 million
(31 December 2004: HK$799.3million) were pledged for total borrowings of
HK$248.3 million (31 December 2004: pledged for total borrowings of HK$595.4
million).

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2005.

As of 31 December 2005, the Group, excluding its associated companies, had a staff
size of around 90,000, amongst which more than 95% were employed in the Chinese
Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong Kong. Remuneration packages are
assessed in accordance to the nature of job duties, individual performance and market
trends with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses and share
options.

By order of the Board
CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 6 April 2006
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Mr. , aged 43

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004. He is concurrently President
and Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation, Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
as well as China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Song is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited. He is also the Deputy Chairman of
China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Song has extensive
experience in corporate management and is currently responsible for the overall business
development and strategic planning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China. He joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. , aged 52

has been an Executive Director of the Group since December 1998 and was appointed
Managing Director in March 2005. He is also the Director and Vice President of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation.
Mr. Chen is currently the Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China Resources
Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, Mr. Chen was a senior official with the MOFTEC (Ministry of
Commerce) and a commercial attaché in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his
Bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Languages Institute, China and MBA degree
from Victoria University, New Zealand.

Mr. , aged 50

has been appointed Group Finance Director since 1996 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director of the Group in May 2000. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited and a Director of HIT Investments Limited.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance.
Mr. Keung oversees the Group’s finance and treasury function, legal and secretarial
function as well as corporate merger and acquisition activities. Mr. Keung joined the
Group in September 1994.

Mr. , aged 49

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. He is also an
Executive Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible for
the entire operation of the Group’s brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of
Finance degree from the People’s University of China. He has previously worked in the
China National Economic Committee and held key management position in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.
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Mr. , aged 56

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau represented the Executive Committee
of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many
years. Mr. Lau has around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate
finance, property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently in charge of
the Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in January 1994.

Mr. , aged 41

joined the Group as an Executive Director in February 2002 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.
Mr. Kwong has extensive experience in corporate planning, equity research, merchant
banking and financial analysis. He is in charge of the Group’s corporate planning and
development. He also manages investor relations, promotes corporate governance and
participates in merger and acquisition activities.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ,aged 51

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in July 2001 and had been a Deputy
Managing Director since November 2001 until his re-designation as a Non-Executive
Director in March 2006. He is also the Director and Vice President of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. Mr. Qiao is
currently the Chairman of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited. At present, he is
responsible for the strategic planning of the Group’s petroleum and related products
distribution business. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language from
the Jilin University, China.

Mr. , aged 43

has been a Director of the Group since 1995. He is currently the Director and Chief
Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited and China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is also a Director of China
Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor’s
degree in International Trade and Master’s degree in International Business and Finance
from the University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. , aged 44

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing
Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan
is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land
Limited. Mr. Yan is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group’s brewery, brand fashion distribution, Hong Kong retailing
and property businesses. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University,
China and an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.

Mr. , aged 50

was appointed Director of the Group in March 2006. He is a Director and Vice President
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Wang is concurrently an Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited. He has extensive
experience in the electricity industry in the PRC. Prior to joining China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited, Mr. Wang worked for the General Office of the
Government of Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987 and was subsequently the Head of
the Industrial Office of Xuzhou City Government. He was also the Deputy Secretary-
General of the Government of Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School.

Mr. , aged 44

has been a Director of the Group since August 2001. Mr. Xie is a Non-Executive Director
of China Resources Land Limited. He is also a Director of Shandong Dong EE Jiao
Company, Limited, which is a listed company in China. Mr. Xie graduated with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics, an
MBA degree from the University of South Australia. He is also a qualified accountant in
China with extensive experience in the field of internal audit and financial management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. (BBS, MBE, JP, FCPA (Aust.)), aged 84

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong Kong
for 58 years, he has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and Modern Chinese
Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is a
trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (also as its Research Professor) and the
United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of The
Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited and has served three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation
of Stock Exchanges.

Mr. , aged 52

has been a Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon Investments
Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the
Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

Mr. (FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP), aged 52

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), Board Member of the International
Federation of Accountants, member of the Tenth National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and former member of the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong SAR. He holds directorship in a number of listed companies
including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as The Kowloon Motor Bus Holdings Limited), Wong’s International (Holdings)
Limited, CATIC International Holdings Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited, Sinochem
Hong Kong Holdings Limited as well as Strategic Global Investments plc.

Mr. (GBS, OBE, JP), aged 56

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor in
Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and is the Senior Partner
of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is currently Chairman of the Main
Board and GEM Listing Committees of the HKEx and had served as a member of the
Legislative Council from 1991 to 1995. Mr. Cheng is the Hon. President and Founding
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Presently, he holds directorship in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including Beijing Capital International Airport
Company Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Mobile (Hong Kong)
Limited, City Telecom (HK) Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Galaxy
Entertainment Group Limited (formerly known as K. Wah Construction Materials
Limited), Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited,
Shui On Construction and Materials Limited as well as Tian An China Investments
Company Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Vice Presidents

Mr. , aged 50

was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the Group’s Internal
Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Master’s degree
in Business Administration as well as in Information System Management. He is a
chartered accountant, New Zealand, Australian FCPA, a Canadian certified general
accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor. He has extensive experience in internal
auditing, financial management and operations review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in
February 2000.

Mr. , aged 44

was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He is also the President of
China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited since July 2001. He holds a
Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of International Business and
Economics, China and has nearly 20 years of corporate management experience in the
area of petroleum and related products trading and distribution. Mr. Zhu joined China
Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited since 1984 and was previously the
General Manager of China Resources Petroleum Company Limited and China Resources
Chemicals Company Limited.

Corporate & Operational Management

Mr. , aged 40

is currently the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard
Company Limited and the Chairman of Suguo Supermarket Company Limited. He is
also a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui
University, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco, USA. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1989. He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Resources Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Manager of
China Resources Development and Investment Company Limited and was in charge of
a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Ms. , aged 43

is the Group Financial Controller. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Newcastle, United Kingdom. Ms. Cheung is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada. She worked for an international accounting firm for over 13
years. Ms. Cheung joined the Group in January 2001.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. , aged 53

is currently the Managing Director of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Fu graduated from the University of Suzhou, China (formerly known as
Suzhou Silk Production Technology College) with a specialty in silk weaving. He is also
a senior economist. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited,
Mr. Fu worked for Heilongjiang Textiles Import & Export Corporation for over ten
years. He has extensive experience in the textile industry.

Ms. , aged 40

has been the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined Ng
Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing Director in
1996. Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from
Murdoch University, Australia. She has substantial experience in trading and corporate
management.

Mr. , aged 46

is currently the General Manager of China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited
as well as the Chief Executive Officer of Tactical Solutions Incorporated, a joint venture
between the Group and Esprit Holdings Limited, specialising in the distribution of
apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics. Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Business
degree from the Liaoning University, China and a Master of Economics degree from
the People’s University of China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang worked for the
CITIC Group, responsible for the establishment of a joint venture that was engaged in
the sole distribution of a well-known leather products label in China. He is also a
member of the Shanghai Changning District’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee. Mr. Tang joined the Group in November 1997.
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EY

The Board recognises the importance of a good and solid framework of corporate
governance and it is the Directors’ firm belief that sensible corporate governance practices
are essential to the growth of the Group.

In November 2003, the Company released its “Corporate Governance Standards and
Objectives”. In November 2004, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange issued the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” (“CG Code”) which generally has taken effect for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The CG Code sets out
the principles of good corporate governance and two levels of requirements, namely:

e Code Provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply or to give considered
reasons for any deviation; and

e Recommended Best Practices, which are for guidance only, save that issuers are
encouraged to comply or give reasons for deviation.

The Stock Exchange allows issuers to devise their own codes on corporate governance
practices on such terms as they may consider appropriate, provided considered reasons
are given for any deviation from the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

On 8 April 2005, the Board approved the Company’s Corporate Governance Practice
Manual (“Corporate Governance Manual”) with immediate effect.

The Corporate Governance Manual incorporates almost all the Code Provisions and
includes the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where appropriate,
the Recommended Best Practices. The Corporate Governance Manual can be
downloaded from our website and copies are available on request to the Company
Secretary. Apart from the fact that the Company’s Non-Executive Directors have no
fixed term of office, the Company is in the process of planning a tailored induction/
development program for its directors and that the positions for Chairman and Managing
Director were occupied by the same person for a short period in early 2005, the Company
has complied with the Code Provision in the CG Code in all other respects. The Company
has also exceeded the requirements under the Listing Rules and the CG Code in various
areas of its corporate governance practices.

Whilst the inclusion of this report in the Company’s annual report is made in response
to the Listing Rules’ requirement, the preparation of such report for the year under
review is intended to disclose to our shareholders and to invite their views on the
corporate governance practices of the Company and its developing practices.

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs. The Directors
recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder value and to conduct themselves
in accordance with their duties of care and loyalty.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions include:

1. formulation of operational strategies and review of its financial performance and
results and its internal control system;
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EERHE Corporate Governance Report

policies relating to key business and financial objectives of the Company;
material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure; and

4. recommendation to shareholders on final dividend and the declaration of any interim
dividends.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2005, there were two changes to the
membership of the Board:

(1) Mr. Zhong Yi did not offer himself for re-appointment as director at the annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2005; and

(2) Mr. Cheng Mo Chi was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
21 November 2005.

As at 31 December 2005, the Board comprised of 14 Directors, 6 of whom are
non-executive and 4 out of the 6 Non-Executive Directors are independent. After the
changes to the members of the Board as announced by the Company on 10 March
2006, the Board currently comprises of 15 directors including 9 Non-Executive Directors
of whom 4 are independent. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships), if any, among members of the Board are
disclosed in this Annual Report. There is no such relationship as between the Chairman
and the Managing Director. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
Company has received written confirmation from each Independent Non-Executive
Director confirming his independence to the Company. The Company considers all of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent. The list of Directors and
their biographies are set out on pages 42 to 45 of this Annual Report. The information
is also published on the Company’s website.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors are held in high
regard and contribute to the effective direction of the Group. The Company exceeds
the minimum requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with the appointment of its fourth
Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Mo Chi, in November 2005. Two of
our Independent Non-Executive Directors have appropriate accounting qualifications,
this also exceeds the requirement of the Listing Rules. With the appointment of
Mr. Cheng Mo Chi, the Company is moving closer towards its long term goal of
maintaining the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to at least one-
third of the total members of the Board. The Company is in the process of planning a
tailored induction program for its newly appointed directors and, where necessary,
continuing development program for the other directors. The Company has appointed
a law firm to design and roll-out the induction and development programs for the
Directors.

As required by the Company’s Corporate Governance Manual, the full board meets at
least 4 times a year at approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial
performance of the Group, major issues (whether or not required by the Listing Rules)
and also on other occasions when a board decision is required.
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Details of Directors attendance at full Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings held in 2005 are set out in the following table:

59 FLEEE | HWEZEA® | #7ZA% | MEZEe | HELZ8S
Board Audit Compensation|  Executive Finance Nomination
R S Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

EHITES

Non-Executive Directors

¥ (E%&4£E  Mr Jiang Wei 3 1

HBEEEE  Mr. Xie Shengxi

BYEHTES

Independent Non-Executive Directors

PREZSE+E Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 6 5 2 1

|AZ%RLE  Mr Houang Tai Ninh 2 1

ZRFE@E Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4 4

BIRAEAED  Mr. Cheng Mo Chi @

HITES

Executive Directors

K MEAE Mr. Song Lin 2 3 5 5

BRISMSEAE  Mr. Chen Shulin 4 3 15 5

B AELE  Mr. Qiao Shibo 2 2 13 9

B B4 Mr Yan Biao 3 2 2 15 7 1

EBR%%E  Mr Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 4 9 2 11 8 1

2B kRE Mr. Lau Pak Shing 1

F+ B%k4E Mr Wang Qun

BIXGERSEE Mr. Kwong Man Him 4 6 13

i EEE® Mr Zhong Yi @ 3

—EER RE

Totga?Nof.‘Ec;Ef Er?\iﬁei:ggsg held in 2005: U= 2 2 U= J -

R: fil& Regular Meeting
S: FBI@E Special Meeting

(1) BREEEER-_ZZAFT AT BRZERBIINTES  MNHBRZERNZABERN _SZRFAREEEYE -
Mr. Cheng Mo Chi, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 21 November 2005 and there was no other board meeting held in 2005 after his

date of appointment.

(2) BEAENESERE_TTRFAA-AIL - P ERERRITHREAFAS L2 MERET -
Mr. Zhong Yi was a director up to 2 June 2005 as he did not offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting held on that date.
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Model Code and Code of Ethics

The interests in the Company’s securities held by the Directors as at 31 December 2005
are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on pages 55 to 79 of this Annual Report.
On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions
(“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model Code (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure
requirements in our Code of Ethics also apply to specified individuals which include the
Group’s senior management and persons who are privy to price sensitive information
of the Group. Our Code of Ethics is on terms no less exacting than the required standard
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EERHE Corporate Governance Report

set out in the Model Code. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that throughout the year ended 31 December 2005, they complied with
the required standard set out in the Code of Ethics.

Separate roles of Chairman and Managing Director
The posts of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately by Mr. Song
Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin, respectively.

Mr. Song Lin assumed the Chairman’s position immediately after the resignation of Mr.
Ning Gaoning on 30 December 2004. On realignment of Mr. Song’s duties, Mr. Chen
Shulin was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company as from 8 March
2005.

The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director ensures a clear
distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Managing
Director’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business. The respective
responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing Director are more fully set out in
the Corporate Governance Manual.

Appointment of Directors

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to its shareholders
for the well-being and success of the Company. A director has a duty to act in good
faith and best interests of the Company and needs to have sufficient caliber and
experience appropriate for the businesses of the Group. The Board has established a
Nomination Committee which comprises of three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter and Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
Eric, and the Executive Director responsible for human resources. The duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to make recommendation after such review and to assess the suitability
and qualification of any proposed director candidate. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration and adoption,
where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
which sets out its duties and procedures are available on the Company’s website.
During 2005, the Nomination Committee met one time to discuss the appointment of

new director.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not appointed for a
fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office. The Board
would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise the composition of the Board to
service the needs of the Group. The Articles of Association of the Company requires
that one-third of the Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) shall
retire each year and every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Directors who are required to retire each year shall be
those appointed by the Board during the year and those who have been longest in
office since their election or re-election. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.
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Delegation by the Board
While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the
Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established by the Board to administer
certain specified functions of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Compensation Committee. The terms of reference
of these main committees which set out, among other things, the duties, functions
and composition of these committees are set out in the Corporate Governance
Manual and are available on the Company’s website;

(b) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s business is
delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable to the Board; and

(c) certain responsibilities of corporate and operating management are delegated to
senior management of the Company within the parameters as specified by the
Board.

The main elements of the Company’s remuneration policy are:

e no individual should determine his or her own remuneration;

e remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with whom the Company
competes for human resources;

e the Company should aim to design policies that attract and retain executives needed
to run the Group successfully and to motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst taking into account performance of the individual and the
Group shall avoid paying more than necessary for such purpose;

e remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and responsibility of the
individual; and

e the remuneration package will be structured to include, where appropriate, salary,
bonus and share options to provide incentives to Directors and senior management
to improve their individual performance.

Compensation Committee

The Board has established a Compensation Committee currently comprised of
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter (Chairman),
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and the Director responsible for
human resources. The duties of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of Directors and senior management, establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on remuneration and determine the specific remuneration packages
for all directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the Compensation
Committee which set out its duties and procedures are available on the Company’s
website. During the year under review, the Committee met two times to discuss and

approve remuneration packages for various Directors and senior management.
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The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the accounts of each
financial period. The financial statements are prepared and presented to enable a clear
and balanced assessment of its financial position and prospects of the Group.

Regular management reports on the financial position and prospects of each business
unit of the Group are reviewed by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the performance of the Company.

Since November 2002, to enable the shareholders to appraise the operations and
performance of the Group, the Group has been releasing quarterly financial highlights
and operational review.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors on page 80.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee currently comprised of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman), Dr. Chan Po Fun,
Peter and Mr. Houang Tai Ninh. Two of its members have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. No member of
this Committee is a member of the former or existing auditors of the Company. The
membership of the Audit Committee has exceeded the Listing Rules’ requirement that
the majority of its members must be independent and one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications. The existing terms of reference of the Committee
is modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has also adopted the principles set out in the
CG Code.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
review the Company’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s financial
report system and internal control procedure. During the year under review, the Audit
Committee met 5 times to, among other things, review the annual and half-yearly
results and the quarterly financial highlights of the Group.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence of the
auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee concludes that the independence of
the auditors of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit services performed
for the Group. During the year under review, audit fees paid to the Company’s auditors
amounted to approximately HK$16.2 million (2004: approximately HK$13.6 million);
fees related to non-audit services for due diligence and secretarial service amounted to
approximately HK$533,000 (2004: approximately HK$3.4 million).
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Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls. The Internal Audit Department has been conducting regular review of the
system’s effectiveness and reports to the Managing Director, the Board and the Audit
Committee on its material findings.

The functions of the Internal Audit Department are set out in full in the Corporate
Governance Manual.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and fair
disclosures of information to its shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosures are necessary
for shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and performance of
the Group.

Based on the Company’s aforesaid policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply; the Corporate Planning and
Development Department is responsible for investor relations functions and will respond
to such shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

Our website provides our shareholders, investors, existing and prospective partners
and counterparties with information on the Company’s corporate governance practices.
Any party who desires to have hard copies of information maintained at our website
may write to the Company Secretary for free copies.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 6 April 2006
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
and associates are shown on pages 169 to 180. An analysis of the Group'’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 81 and shows the
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2005.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share amounting to
HK$288,382,000 was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$579,750,000 payable on or about 16 June
2006 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 29 May 2006.

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages 181 to
185.

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 32 to
the financial statements respectively.

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$114,000.
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The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Managing Director

Mr. Chen Shulin (Appointed as Managing Director on 8 March 2005)

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

Directors

Mr. Zhong Yi
(Executive Director)

Mr. Qiao Shibo
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Jiang Wei
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yan Biao
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Wang Shuaiting
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Xie Shengxi
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Cheng Mo Chi
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
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(Re-designated as Deputy Managing Director
on 10 March 2006)

(Re-designated as Deputy Managing Director
on 10 March 2006)

(Re-designated as Deputy Managing Director
on 10 March 2006)

(Retired on 2 June 2005)

(Re-designated as non-executive director
on 10 March 2006)

(Re-designated as non-executive director
on 10 March 2006)
(Appointed on 10 March 2006)

(Appointed on 21 November 2005)
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k& Report of the Directors

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Song Lin, Mr. Chen Shulin, Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph, Mr. Kwong Man
Him, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Mr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric shall retire by rotation
and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Article of Association, Mr.
Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. Wang Shuaiting shall retire and are eligible for re-
election.

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on pages
42 to 47.

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of the
Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”). In addition, certain
outstanding share options were still held under a share option scheme which
subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated on 31 January 2002 (the
“0Old Scheme"”).
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The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting on 31
January 2002, which is subsequently amended on 20 August 2004 by ordinary
resolution passed by shareholders, and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The
board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible participants
including employees, executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such), any
executives and employees of consultants, professional and other advisors to
the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies of the Group,
associates of director, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the
Company, and employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a substantial
shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of the prevailing Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the
exercise price shall be such price determined by the board of directors at its
absolute discretion. The maximum entitlement of each participant under the
scheme (including options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates)
is equivalent to the maximum limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules.
The scheme mandate limit under the New Scheme was refreshed and renewed
by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further share
options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of the shares
in issue as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue upon exercise of all options which may be granted
under the New Scheme is 158,758,321 shares and represent 6.84% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within a period
of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested over a period of
time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or granted in
excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the relevant share option scheme during the year in relation to
each of the directors or their respective associates, employees, and other
participants of the share option scheme.
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BB A (a) Directors or their associates
AF+ZA=1T—8 TIESFH As at 31 December 2005 the following directors had interests in respect
BRBA N T EE Rt 815 1l R iE AR of options to subscribe for shares granted under the Old Scheme and
g o RIBZMIBRTE - EFHR the New Scheme of the Company. Share options held by directors granted
BT under such schemes are set out below:
BRENE" KATRGER
Number of share options' Price of Company's shares?
R-BBLE
R-FFLE +ZF Effiz EfffEz
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BET  HRTE 0] g i K% HERTHR BET BT
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding For options For options
edid=h Price at duringthe duringthe duringthe  during the at granted  exercised
Name of director Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2005 year year year year  31/12/2005 HK$ HK$
Executive and
Non-Executive
Directors
Song Lin 20/06/2000 7.19 200,000* - - - - 200,000* - N/A®
07/02/2002 717 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 - N/A®
Chen Shulin 21/11/2000 7.08 1,186,000 - - - - 1,186,000 - N/A®
07/02/2002 7.17 1,326,000 - - - - 1,326,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 - N/A®
02/06/2004 9.55 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 - N/A®
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 20/06/2000 7.19 1,400,000 - - - - 1,400,000 - N/A®
07/02/2002 7.17 500,000 - - - - 500,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 216,000 - - - - 216,000 - N/A®
02/06/2004 9.55 850,000 - - - - 850,000 - N/A®
Wang Qun 20/06/2000 7.19 400,000 - - - - 400,000 - N/A®
07/02/2002 7.17 400,000 - - - - 400,000 - N/A®
Lau Pak Shing 20/06/2000 7.19 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 500,000 - - - - 500,000 - N/A®
02/06/2004 9.55 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 - N/A®
Kwong Man Him 07/02/2002 717 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 222,000 - - - - 222,000 - N/A®
02/06/2004 9.55 772,000 - - - - 772,000 - N/A®
Zhong Yi (Retired on 02/06/2004 9.55 300,000 - - - - 300,000 - N/A®
02/06/2005) 22/07/2004 9.80 800,000 - - - - 800,000 - N/A®
Qiao Shibo 07/02/2002 717 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 - N/A®
14/01/2004 9.72 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 - N/A®
Jiang Wei 08/03/2002 7.50 600,000 - - - - 600,000 - N/A®
Yan Biao 20/06/2000 7.19 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 - N/A®
07/02/2002 717 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 - N/A®
Xie Shengxi 08/03/2002 7.50 380,000 - 200,000 - - 180,000 - 13.700
Sub-total 29,852,000 - 200,000 - - 29,652,000 - N/A®
Independent
Non-executive
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/A®
Houang Tai Ninh 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/A®
Li Ka Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/A®
Sub-total 600,000 - - - - 600,000 - -
Total 30,452,000 - 200,000 - - 30,252,000 - -

* BIE GEHEREEN) E=a g - Rtk *
AR AR AN A B T EALS,2200,0000% B
AR BB AR I 2 HE S o

By virtue of Section 344 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), Mr.
Song Lin is deemed to be interested in the share option for 200,000 ordinary
shares granted by the Company to his spouse.

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#

59



60

BEEW|E  Report of the Directors

(2) BERHEMSHE

(b)

BATEFBITERIN  ARRZMAESY
RAKEZREE  RERFHZBBRIERETD
REX(F)BEE - U TRAKEREE (T
BRARFRES) REM2HEERRHER

TEEVBEDL -

(i) ES (TBAFXLFES)

&
BT
Exercise

FHAH Price
Date of grant HKS$
gatal
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19
21/11/2000 7.08
/&t Sub-total
Hatal
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17
19/04/2002 7.40
23/05/2002 8.90
02/08/2002 8.32
07/11/2002 7.70
24/01/2003 7.25
14/04/2003 6.29
01/08/2003 7.10
08/10/2003 8.90
02/12/2003 9.00
14/01/2004 9.72
20/04/2004 9.89
25/05/2004 9.15
22/07/2004 9.80
04/10/2004 10.35
17/01/2005 11.40
22/07/2005 12.50

/T Sub-total
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RZBRRE
—HA—H

i RATHE
Outstanding
at

1/1/2005

6,061,000
2,967,000

9,028,000

10,612,000
7,204,000
106,000
5,870,000
1,790,000
1,182,000
6,808,000
1,070,000
2,888,000
1,360,000
39,003,000
5,600,000
35,856,000
2,000,000
49,680,000

171,029,000

Employees and other participants

Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company are

employees of the Group and details of share options held by them are

disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share options granted to

employees of the Group (other than directors of the Company) and

other participants are set out below.

(i)  Employees (other than directors of the Company)

RN e

Number of share options’

REERE
B
Granted
during the
year

N/A3
N/A3

N/A3

1,750,000
960,000

2,710,000

REEE REEE
patd ]
Exercised Cancelled
during the during the
year year

3,916,000 -
754,000 -

4,670,000 -

5,124,000 -
3,554,000 -
92,000 -
1,936,000 -
38,000 -
576,000 -
2,790,000 -
410,000 -
945,000 -
290,000 -
6,520,000 -
384,000 -
11,251,000 -
1,210,000 -
3,900,000 -
70,000 -

39,090,000 -

REEE
ES:
Lapsed
during the
year

100,000

28,000
50,000

282,000

958,000

162,000

316,000
100,000

1,996,000

R=BTRE
+=A
=+-8
fERITE
Outstanding
at
31/12/2005

2,145,000
2,213,000

4,358,000

5,488,000
3,650,000
14,000
3,834,000
1,752,000
578,000
3,968,000
660,000
1,661,000
1,070,000
31,525,000
5,216,000
24,443,000
790,000
45,464,000
1,580,000
960,000

132,653,000

FATRBER

Price of Company's shares?

etz
Bl
BT

For options
granted
HKS$

BTz
FERE
BT

For options
exercised
HK$

11.635
12.232

11.784
12.606
11.326
11.849
12.242
11.918
12.311
11.873
11.215
12.664
12.244
12.725
12.493
11.888
13.194
12.250
N/A®



() RERHEMWSHEE @

(ii) Bt EaE

(b)

TEE N-FFTEE REEE
BT —A—H b
Exercise B RATIE Granted
bdi =L price  Outstanding during the
Date of grant HK$  at 1/1/2005 year
#atdl
New Scheme
05/03/2002 7.35 19,624,000 -
23/05/2002 8.90 30,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 620,000 -
22/07/2004 9.80 300,000 -
/INET Sub-total 20,574,000 -

1.

RBAE R B B AEPTS R 2 A A RIEREAR D ©

HRERHBREMEEZ AARRNMER - BE
EBRESERHBHN—EARSZH - ROESE
B A X ZETER AR (TBAZPT)) Pz W (E -
RENCITEBBRIERKE 2 A D RRMDERS -
RERBEAEITER A RORBRMATRS
W{E 2 itk -

RORTEREMRAN SRR TENM BT
EWFEZER °

EAEBER-_ZZ_F-A=+—BFULL"
BUbAfR - AR BBEAR R E S 8RB A B
T ©

EXFTRE R 2 BRER N E L BEERE
THEZBER  MEBRRLEREZEREE
178 °

R 2 A R A R B B R N AT
BIRBEERRELTER -

BRE-—RA—REEEE - PNEL B
I8 kD RAHLHE - A iR BB e
WTTHE ©

Employees and other participants (continued)

(i)  Other Participants

Report of the Directors

BiiEsa FATRBER
Number of share options ' Price of Company's shares?
R-BTEE E2RHZ 2iTfEZ
RAEE REEE REEE +=A FERE FERE
7€ 3] ES: 4 =+-8 BT BT
Exercised Cancelled Lapsed EARITE For options For options
during the during the during the  Outstanding granted exercised
year year year at 31/12/2005 HK$ HK$
7,816,000 - 322,000 11,486,000 - 12.243
- - - 30,000 - N/AS
372,000 - - 248,000 - 12311
300,000 - - - - 11.888
8,488,000 - 322,000 11,764,000
1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
in the Company covered by the share options.
2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is
the closing price quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the trading day immediately
before the date of the grant of the respective options. The price of
the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised during
the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of
options.
The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set
out in note 2P to the financial statements.
3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2002, and therefore
no options have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.
4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on
the date falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration
for each grant is HK$1.00.
5. As the relevant share options granted have not been exercised during
the year under review, no price disclosure is applicable.
6. Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable

immediately after the date of grant or vested in five tranches and

exercisable over a period of 4 years from date of grant.
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hFE+ZRA=1+—H ARFAEELER
BRARBREBEEE (E& R (EH R
1 T’?IJ>>%XV*|3)E’JHX - B REFTHEE
ARBREFRABEI) EXVEELRENDH
HMEARF R Em XA (BRERE(ES
&E&ﬁf@?ﬂ%@@E’]1'%%%7@%&5”%Eﬁzﬁf’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁgx
Nogm) - HARBEFRHERINE=a01
TIHRER SR ERCHREZGRERTFENE
e AR ﬂﬁ%ﬁétmiﬁﬁ‘lﬁﬁﬁﬁm
AAEFETEFRHGNEETANDBHNEARR

I\
m]u xM

S \WE m %

KRBTz AR AT -
(B) RAXACBRITLTERRERBRG FHEETH
i
509}
ESnE Long position/

Name of Directors

R HE
Song Lin Long position
e
Long position
BERAGI K HE
Chen Shulin Long position
ESSPN HE

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph Long position

& e
Wang Qun Long position
ZIAK HE

Lau Pak Shing Long position

HE
Long position

D

Kwong Man Him

ALY A
Qiao Shibo Long position

Short position

As at 31 December 2005, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and short positions which the directors and chief executive
of the Company are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the register required to
be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

(@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
G E DL
HER e R Aggregate
BirEE Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares' interest? (%)

200,000° 200,000° 0.22
- 4,500,000

- 6,012,000 0.27

- 2,966,000 0.13

40,000 800,000 0.04

- 2,500,000 0.11

- 2,994,000 0.13

- 3,800,000 0.17
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HE@®

EsHa

Name of Directors

&

Jiang Wei

=)
Yan Biao

A=
Xie Shengxi

B 3 25
Chan Po Fun, Peter

BRE

Houang Tai Ninh

FRE
Li Ka Cheung, Eric

BREERRBHHEEH ()

B e
Long position/
Short position

"R
Long position

"R
Long position

A
Long position

TR
Long position
"R
Long position

TR
Long position

TR
Long position

1. ELEXEBRE S SR e REBREMS 1.

& ORATNIRiE L S
BB BALSTET A -

ZEBREEBNIELD

2. EAQXRERDEEBROTFOFREBIEARF 2.
WZZEERF+ A=+ —HZBEBETRAREL

BADL -

3. RN EWR BHESERB 200,000 E@R 3.

200,000/% A8 RAAR 0 2 fE s o

4. SRR YA E88.25% BITRAZ A 4.

AFFA ©

5. BME3R4ASBEMEESN

ABENRE2#ER 5.

HEERANERBEFEAZH NS -

BEEERE

Report of the Directors

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

v S4=|

Number of shares

900,000

200,000

336,000

170,000*

HEAR BB

Number of

underlying shares'

600,000

4,000,000

180,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

iR AL

Aggregate

percentage of

interest? (%)

0.03

0.22

0.02

0.03

0.01

0.01

This refer to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options granted
as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”, such

options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of the Company

as at 31 December 2005.

Mr. Song Lin was deemed to be interested in the 200,000 ordinary shares and

200,000 underlying shares through interests of his spouse.

Such interest is held by a company of which Mr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is interested
in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

Save as otherwise specified under note 3 and 4, interests disclosed hereunder
are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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(2) WEBGEBEERITEERREMARMTEE  (b)

B &

RB - ETUESHERBEE (EEAGE
# MHEGED)) B BT EBR RAREER
RERTBIFTR H A RBR O 2 BEE R A
& ZEBRERERNIE TR

BRASTETA -

(i) R—EEBEE-FEEHERQR
([FEREM]) D BT EBRNRIEE
B AR B MR TER R

EsnsE

Name of Directors

R
Song Lin

FER A5 AR
Chen Shulin

Z8%
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

ZIAK
Lau Pak Shing

DY
Qiao Shibo

&

Jiang Wei

Interest in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued ordinary

shares and underlying shares covered by options granted under the share

option schemes of associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO),

such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:

(i)  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding under

the share option schemes of an associated corporation, China
Resources Land Limited (“CR Land"):

o SF(

g

B¥E/%kE BHEE Number of
Long position/ Number of share options

Short position

"R
Long position

TR
Long position

TR
Long position
"R
Long position

TR
Long position

TR
Long position

"R
Long position
0

Long position
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shares  outstanding'

900,000

- 700,000

2,000,000

1,300,000

- 500,000

- 700,000

- 720,000

- 700,000

T
BT

Exercise Price

HK$

1.230

1.230

4.592

0.990

1.270

1.230

1.590

1.230

RHBEH

Date of grant

01/06/20052

01/06/20052

27/06/19972

20/07/2000?

02/06/2005°

01/06/20052

04/03/20022

01/06/20052

#inEs
b4
Aggregate
Percentage
of interest?
(%)

0.03

0.03

0.12

0.02

0.03

0.05
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(Z) REEEECRITLEREAMBRM TS (b) Interest in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

S0RE -

HI#E 25 (&) associated corporations
GRS
o SFLd =4
RERR s e T8 Aggregate
e/ %A BHrEE Number of B Percentage
EEpg Long position/ Number of share options Exercise Price BH e of interest?
Name of Directors Short position shares  outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)
R e - 2,300,000 4.592 27/06/19972 0.19
Yan Biao Long position
e - 2,400,000 0.990 20/07/20002
Long position
e - 700,000 1.270 02/06/2005?
Long position
HB=E e - 460,000 1.590 04/03/20022 0.03
Xie Shengxi Long position
e - 500,000 1.230 01/06/2005*
Long position
MR BB e BB AR P S R eV 2 B B AR R AR {9 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying
B o shares of CR Land covered by the share options.
EHEMN _TET_F=ANA ZTTRFS 2. Except for options granted by CR Land on 4 March 2002, 1 June
A—BRZZFTRFA A EIT'i‘;‘ﬁE’]E%HﬂET 5 2005 and 2 June 2005 which are exercisable within a period of 10
Bz BEET T FHAREATTIE o BRIELIASN - years from the date of grant, the expiry date for all other share
FrEEMmEREZ EimBEER Egtiﬂﬂ options mentioned above is 27 May 2007. Consideration for each
A - BREREREORES REEIT - of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.
BRESDUBET =TT~ =TTt 3. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on 2 June 2006,
ZEENRZEENFAAZHEZZT—AFA 2007, 2008 and 2009 to 1 June 2015. Consideration for the grant
RB—B IEERETE - REOHRER/BB 1T - is HK$1.00.
BRESOBET IR -ZTTX - ZTT+ - 4, Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on 1 June 2006,
ZEENRZEEANFAAA—BE_ZT—AFH 2007, 2008 and 2009 to 31 May 2015. Consideration for the grant
R=+—HILHETE - RENKREREE 1T - is HK$1.00
IR TS RV BB 1R (D RAEBAR G B 8US 5. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
FHEWN —TTAFT_A=T—B2ZB#1T shares and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share
RAEEE A DL - capital of CR Land as at 31 December 2005.
FXFRE R BETEEUNEREBALZ 6.  All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his

capacity as beneficial owner.
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(2) WiEBEBERTEERREMBRMHHESE

FATHE 28 ()

(i  R—EEBEE -FERRERQR
([FEBEEE) BT E B MIRIERE
RV Bl M R TER R

ExHa

Name of Directors

BE e
Long position/
Short position

R "R
Song Lin Long position
"R
Long position
B "R
Jiang Wei Long position
g "R
Yan Biao Long position
HB= TR
Xie Shengxi Long position

RARHESL B BB R PT S R EE B BB R A D
B -

FEAF R AT R MY EE BB B 10 e AR A A 1 4R 2R 1
EHPYR _TERF T _A=+—-RZE®7T
A A DL o

BRETNE LA BBERERBES HFHER
i -

BRE 2 HENR YR - T _FMANH
RE-ZT——FMNANBIEEBITE @ H AN
HET IH-_TE-FHYANA  ZTT=
F _EENFR_FEERF—A—HE_F—
ZHEWMANBLBRAITE - P FAREORE
BABEEITT -

EXFRBEZ R RS EEUARSHAAZ
S0RE -

(b) Interest in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding under

the share option schemes of an associated corporation, China

Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”):

2y E =]
Number of
shares

3,600,000

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

bR
i AR AT 1E B
feizEs B 1TEE Aggregate
Number of FERETT percentage
share options  Exercise Price REBEH of interest?
outstanding' HK$ Date of grant (%)
6,900,000 0.590 21/09/20003 0.47
2,000,000 0.906 13/01/20043
720,000 0.820 09/04/2002* 0.03
6,000,000 0.790 04/12/20013 0.23
450,000 0.820 09/04/2002* 0.02

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying
shares of CR Logic covered by the share options.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares and underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share
capital of CR Logic as at 31 December 2005.

Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant options.

Options are either vested immediately and exercisable from 9 April
2002 to 8 April 2012 or vested in four tranches and exercisable on
9 April 2002, 1 January 2003, 2004 and 2005 to 8 April 2012.
Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.



(2) mEBEECRITEERRERRN THSE

Esnz

Name of Directors

Z8%
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

By 3 (50

(i) 3RO R E — AR R A R
AR ([EWAR) BRITEBRRR
R AR B OB 8L R 1T (R RER
2

38/ %E
Long position/
Short position

A
Long position

& "R
Wang Qun Long position
e TR

Kwong Man Him

Long position

B TR
Qiao Shibo Long position
A
Long position
e g "R
Yan Biao Long position
BRE S TR

Chan Po Fun, Peter

1.

Long position

RARHESL B BB R PSR EE B KORAR R D
B -

BRESTHRH SHES 2=+ ATHKH
HEEEAFE  PROEAMEAFRH
2HERESN _Z—=F+_ARHERN - L
BERFHOREREBIT -

BRESMBERL  SHESZ =T ATAEK
HHBEEEFR  REEARE-BFR
H- 2ERESN T -NF+ A+ EE
e BlERRENREREE T -

EEEH|E  Report of the Directors

(b) Interest in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)
(iii) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding under
the share option scheme of an associated corporation, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”):

H{nEn

P SFL =24

fEiREE " TR Aggregate

RiZEE Number of BRI percentage
Number of share options Exercise Price BHBH of interest®
shares  outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)

- 800,000 2.325 05/12/2003? 0.21

4,000 - - - 0.001

- 300,000 2.325 05/12/2003? 0.08

- 3,000,000 2.325 05/12/2003? 1.00

- 800,000 1.660 16/12/20043

90,000 - - - 0.02
50,6007 - - - 0.01

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying
shares of CR Cement covered by the share options.

2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary
of the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the
date of grant. All options expire on 5 December 2013. Consideration
for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in 4 tranches of 25% each on each anniversary

of the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the
date of grant. All options expire on 16 December 2014.
Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.
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(2) WiEBEBERTEERREMBRMHHESE

FATHE 28 ()

FEAF R AT R MY IO AR 0D B AR A B 1 4R 2R 1
EHRER _ZZERF T+ _A=+—"R2ZE%]T
AR A DL

5% 550,600 D E A - 17,000/% /%17 m pR X

R EHA8825% B BITIRAZ AGIEE -

B S SAMIE SN - B 2 T Bt s
MEEEUNESHEASDRE °

(b)

(iv) R—EREEE -FHENZRER
RE([FEEN) EEHTERBRIR
IBERE BRI H RTTEBAR

s

EEMA
Name of Directors

B %AE

Interest in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)

4.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share
capital of CR Cement as at 31 December 2005.

Out of these 50,600 shares, 17,000 shares are held by a company
of which Mr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is interested in 88.25% of its
issued share capital.

Save as otherwise specified in note 5, all other interests disclosed
above are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial

owner.

(iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding under

the share option scheme of an associated corporation, China

Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power"):

Rir%E

Long position/ Number of

Short position

R HE
Song Lin Long position
BER A AR e
Chen Shulin Long position
A HE
Wang Qun Long position
ZIEX e

Lau Pak Shing

Long position
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shares

D
i RATE =l A
BREsa fTEE Aggregate
Number of B percentage
share options  Exercise Price BB of interest*
outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)
2,000,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.08
900,000 3.99 18/03/20053
600,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
500,000 3.99 18/03/20053
500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
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B ()

EENE
Name of Directors

SF
Qiao Shibo

&

Jiang Wei

=)
Yan Biao

A=
Xie Shengxi

EEEH|E  Report of the Directors

Interest in issued ordinary shares and

associated corporations (continued)

B/ %A

Long position/

RirEE
Number of

Short position shares

A -

Long position

78 -

Long position

A -

Long position

A -

Long position

underlying shares of

5D
o SFLd Ek A
B fTiEE Aggregate
Number of B percentage
share options  Exercise Price BHBH of interest®
outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)
600,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
500,000 3.99 18/03/20053
30,0000 2.80 12/11/20032
1,000,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.04
600,000 3.99 18/03/20053
600,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
400,000 3.99 18/03/20053
400,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.02
300,000 3.99 18/03/20053

RBAHES B SRR RE PSR HE AR 1.

B -

BRESTHRH SHAES 2=+ ATHKH 2.

HEEEAFE  PROEBMEAFRH
2HERESN _Z—=F+AXBER - Lt
BREHNREREB 1T -

BRESAHEL  SHES 2+ ATHEE 3.

HEEEAFER  NROEAMEAFRH
EHBRESR T -AF=A+/\HE® - L
BFREENORERBE 1T

IR TS R M EE B E NI R ARB A 1) 2R 4.

EMENR-BTRF+=A=+-AZERST
BAGBHES L -

B R A WAR RS E B8 230,000/487 % 5.

02 Wz o

B R AR 2SN - EXREZ PRE Bt 6.

HEEEURSEEAZHIHE -

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying
shares of CR Power covered by the share options.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary
of the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the
date of grant. All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration
for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary
of the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the
date of grant. All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration
for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share
capital of CR Power as at 31 December 2005.

Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in the 30,000
underlying shares through interests of his spouse.

Save as otherwise specified in note 5, all other interests disclosed

above are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial
owner.
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NEELHER Name of interested party

PEERHAAR (EHERT])

#EERHARAE FHEED

CRC Bluesky Limited (B5E1)

2HE&EE) ERAR ([EHEE]D)
(Bf=E)

SEMNER FPERTT (M E2)

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (Fif3¥3)

China Resources National Corporation (“CRNC")

China Resources Co., Limited (Note 1)

CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1)

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH") (Note 1)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (Note 2)

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 3)

Btat - Notes:

REREGHIBREE
BAZRHBEHE
Number of
shares in which
the interested
party is deemed
to have interests

1,218,358,380
1,218,358,380
1,218,358,380

1,218,358,380
178,135,767
134,198,794

As at 31 December 2005, other than the interests and short positions as
disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company:

RERETSL
Percentage of

shareholding (%)

54.55
54.55
54.55

54.55
7.98
6.01

1. #4523 ACRC Bluesky Limitedt) 2 EHT B A A] » 1.
ffTCRC Bluesky Limited 2ZE BN BR AR 2 EH
BOHAR - MEBRNHERABBERERR
$#57599.98% S °

2. REGESFEHEGEIDEXVEBE-_RE=08HR 2.
EMARRBRBEOERET - RS0 dR B
FERITE R EEE B 100 % 15 1 2 =B P
5o

3. BEEHERBEHEIDEXVRBE_RE=,EHR 3.
ERRAARBBOERER  ZERMHEHI.P.
Morgan Chase & Co. R E ¥ AM (Fizk4) LA T
BERFAE

515
EmEEA

BEKE
RAIR
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CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to
100% by China Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by
CRNC.

According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by corporations controlled directly
or indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and
corporations controlled by it (Note 4) in the respective following capacity:

BHEE
Capacity No. of shares
Beneficial owner 2,246,660
Investment manager 72,862,000
Approved lending agent 59,090,134
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J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
J.P. Morgan Capital Holdings Ltd.
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Notes: (continued)

4.

According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, other than the following corporations which were held by
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. in the manner described below, all these corporations
were controlled directly or indirectly as to 100% by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

HiEgiREE

FRESES

Percentage interest

(direct or indirect) held by

Name of corporation J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
90.00%

72.72%

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
J.P. Morgan Capital Holdings Ltd.

According to a loan agreement, CRH is required to remain as a beneficial

owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or remain as a

single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries)

of the Company. As at 31 December 2005, the amount of such facility was

HK$3,000 million and was fully drawn down. Such facility is wholly repayable
by October 2007.

On 24 November 2005, ¥/ T E 2 (RYI)) R A A (Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a contract with FEBEEABR A A (China
Resources Construction Corp.), an approximately 100% owned subsidiary
of REIZEE 482 5] (China Resources National Corporation, the ultimate
holding company of the Company), engaging it as the main contractor
for the construction, renovation, addition and alteration works on a six-
storey multi-function commercial building situated at No. 196, Jian She
Lu, Jiangmen City, Guangdong Province owned by Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. for a consideration of RMB199,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$191,400,000). 90% of the contract
sum will be payable monthly according to the amount of works
performed and certified by the quantity surveyor. The remaining 10%
will be retained as retention money which will be released after
completion of the construction.
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On 24 November 2005, China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company
Limited (“CRPG"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement to dispose of its 51% equity interest in e EA
H{E THBBRZAF (Dongguan China Resources Petroleum & Chemicals
Co., Ltd.) to FEIA ML TAR{D BFR A 7] (“Sinopec”) for a consideration
of RMB98,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$94,100,000).
Sinopec is an associate of ER& R=mAMER A AF (Guangdong
Dongguan Petroleum Co.), the 49% shareholder of Dongguan China
Resources Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. The consideration was paid
by two instalments in cash. A shareholder loan of RMB12,495,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,000,000) provided by CRPG has
also been repaid by Dongguan China Resources Petroleum & Chemicals
Co., Ltd. pursuant to the agreement.

On 6 March 2006, Worldfaith Properties Limited, a subsidiary in which
the Company has an indirect interest of approximately 88.6%, entered
into a contract with China Resources Construction Company Limited, a
subsidiary in which China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH"), the controlling shareholder of the Company, has an
approximately 99.6% interest, engaging it as the main contractor for
the construction works of the superstructure of a twelve-storey
commercial building at 233-239 Nathan Road, Kowloon for a
consideration of HK$97,912,000. 90% of the contract sum will be paid
monthly according to the amount of works performed and certified by
the architect. The remaining 10% will be retained as retention money
which will be released after completion of the construction.
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During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected parties which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Details of
those continuing connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are
summarised as follows:

(@) Tank storage agreements and facilities management
agreements
On 1 January 2000, China Resources Petroleum Company Limited
(“CRPC"), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company after being acquired in late 2000, entered into a tank
storage agreement with each of CRH, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and Art Bill Investment Limited (“ABIL"), a
subsidiary of CRH, for the usage of storage capacity at the Chai
Wan and Tsing Yi oil depots, respectively. As the oil depots are
crucial to the operation, the tank storage agreements were entered
for a term of 21 years commencing on 1 January 2000. The
aggregate storage fee payable by CRPC to CRH and ABIL was
HK$141,600,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.

On 1 January 2000, each of CRH and ABIL entered into a facilities
management agreement with CRPG, which became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company after being acquired in late
2000, in respect of the provision of management services by CRPG
for the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi oil depots, respectively. The facilities
management agreements also have a term of 21 years. For the
year ended 31 December 2005, the aggregate management fee
payable by CRH and ABIL to CRPG was HK$19,992,000.
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(b)

Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company
Limited (“Yuen Fat"”), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in July 2003, entered into a
facilities management agreement (subsequently amended pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 15 April 2003) with CRH, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
management services by Yuen Fat on the port premises and facilities
developed on a site owned by CRH in Sham Shui Po, Kowloon.
Under the agreement, Yuen Fat has been paying CRH a monthly
fee of HK$800,000 (from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2005) and
HK$ 1,000,000 (from 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006) in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by CRH to Yuen
Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling fees, service charges
and other payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses
from independent third parties. This agreement is for a term of 3
years and 6 months commencing on 1 January 2003 and is
renewable at the option of Yuen Fat for a further 3 years.

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat also entered into a godown
management agreement (as amended on 15 April 2003) with
Dragon Rider Development Limited (“DRDL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRH, for the management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown
owned by CRH in Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement,
Yuen Fat has been paying DRDL a monthly fee of HK$1,700,000
(from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2005) and HK$2,000,000 (from 1
July 2005 to 30 June 2006) in consideration for the right to keep,
as the service fee payable by DRDL to Yuen Fat for that relevant
month, all licence fees and other payments collected by Yuen Fat
at its own expenses from independent third parties. This agreement
has the same tenor as the above facilities management agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the aggregate receipt of
service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat amounted to
HK$210,539,000 while the aggregate payment of monthly fees
by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to HK$33,000,000.
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Foodstuff agreements

On 3 June 2005, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“NFH"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the foodstuff agreements
for a term ending on 31 December 2007 with each of the
connected parties below in relation to the sale and/or purchase of
foodstuff products with these parties. Under the foodstuff
agreements, NFH and each of these connected parties have agreed
that in the event that any member of the NFH group and any of
these connected parties or any of its associates enter into a
foodstuff transaction, such transaction will be conducted on normal
commercial terms. The prices paid or received by any member of
the NFH group to or from the above parties or their associates will
either be at market prices or at prices no less favourable to the
NFH group than those available to or from independent third
parties. Details of these transactions for the year ended 31
December 2005 are summarised below.

BE_STALE
+=A=+-8
IEEENRXSEHE

Amount of transactions

EETRMAELARA
Shanghai Foodstuff
Import & Export Corp.

FIEERBR AR
Ceroilfood Development
Company Limited

HBIKEHZ R R
China National Fisheries Corp.

BERET—MMEAF
49% R EVARR
49% shareholder of
a subsidiary of NFH

FERST-HHNEAR

20%EEHIBIR BT A

an associate of a 20%

shareholder of a subsidiary

of NFH

FERET—HMBAF
49% Rz IR
49% shareholder of
a subsidiary of NFH

ZHME for the year ended
Nature of transactions 31 December 2005
(FE%E5T)
(HKS)
HBERM 69,357,000
Purchase of foodstuff
BERSN 70,945,000
Purchase of foodstuff
HERM 59,202,000
Sale of foodstuff
BERMN 529,000

Purchase of foodstuff
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(d)

(e)

Textile agreement

On 3 June 2005, China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the textile agreement with China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, for a term ending on 31 December 2007. Under the
textile agreement, CRT and CRNC have agreed that in the event
that any member of the CRT group and any member of the CRNC
group (other than the Group) enter into a transaction of textile
related merchandises, such transaction will be conducted on normal
commercial terms. The prices received by any member of the CRT
group from any member of the CRNC group will be either at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to CRT or its subsidiaries than
those available from independent third parties. For the year ended
31 December 2005, the aggregate amount of sale of textile related
merchandises to the CRNC group amounted to HK$26,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the tenancy agreement
with CRNC, the ultimate holding company of the Company, for a
term ending on 31 December 2007. The CRNC group is a
conglomerate with significant property investments including
residential, commercial and industrial premises in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Under the tenancy agreement, the Company and CRNC
have agreed that in the event that any member of the Company
enters into a lease arrangement with any member of the CRNC
group (other than the Group), the terms of the lease will be on
normal commercial terms and the lease term will not exceed 31
December 2007. The rent, management fees and other charges
set by any member of the CRNC group to any member of the
Group will be either at market prices or at prices no less favourable
to the Group than those available from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the aggregate amount of
rental, management fees and other related charges payable by
the Group to the CRNC group was HK$47,410,000.
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Decoration agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the decoration
agreement with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), an
approximately 100% owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn is
the ultimate holding company of the Company, for a term ending
on 31 December 2007. Under the decoration agreement, the
Company and Uconia have agreed that in the event that any
member of the Company grants a contract to any member of the
Uconia group or any of its associates for the design, decoration
and furnishing of the Group’s offices, retail outlets and investment
properties, the services rendered will be charged on normal
commercial terms as described in the decoration agreement. The
prices charged by Uconia or its subsidiaries or any of their associates
to any member of the Group will either be at market prices or at
prices no less favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties. For the year ended 31 December 2005,
the aggregate amount charged by the Uconia group or any of its
associates totalled HK$10,091,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to evaluate
in accordance with Rules 14A.38 of the Listing Rules whether, the
above continuing connected transactions:

(@  had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b)  had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(©)  had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2005; and

(d)  had been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods
or services by the Group.

The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors that the samples the
auditors selected were in agreement in respect of items (a) and (b)
above. In respect of item (d), the samples selected were, where
applicable, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

In respect of item (c), the auditors compared the aggregate amount
for each type of connected transactions as set out in section 4(a)
to 4(f) above and reported that such aggregate amounts had not
exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the year ended 31
December 2005.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

() inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
and associates as at 31 December 2005 are set out on pages 169 to 180.

Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the Company
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company'’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the aggregate turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% of the
Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#
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EEEH|E  Report of the Directors

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Shulin
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 6 April 2006
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Report of the Auditors

Deloitte.
=ED

HEBAXARQIAVZERR
(REEFMA L FRAA)

AZBETE TR EZHNFSI EF 180 ALK
BRLREHRAGR MRS -

AREHIATEFARUAERAT 2 S -
ERDZEHBRER - EFLARBREMLR
A& B -

AIZBEERRBEATERTIEZER - BEH
BREREBLER - WEIRABEGIZE 141158
IRTE - RMERBECRIRE © BRIt - RITHHRE
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BRI - ERBEBEAMEN AEREYER
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RITRBFETEL TR - HURE— ) ARITR
RUBZERNEERER  EATTRESEN
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HERZHE - EREBRE - ATOEEZLEH
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EE e BERS AT
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e
“RERFMANRA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 81 to 180 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a
true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on
those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion, we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2005 and of the
profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

6 April 2006
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SZelEER
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

ZZ20054F12 A31 H 1 E For the year ended 31 December 2005

—EELE ZETPF
2005 2004
M BT T BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(&E7)
(Restated)
e Turnover 5 53,583,919 47,078,103
SHER A Cost of sales (44,439,151) (39,317,104)
EF Gross profit 9,144,768 7,760,999
E e Other revenue 6 1,186,070 411,944
HE U A FHEE Other net income 6 475,024 491,285
HERDHEBRA Selling and distribution expenses (5,448,952) (4,443,639)
—MRITEREA General and administrative expenses (2,101,538) (2,196,739)
Fdewngl Profit from operations 3,255,372 2,023,850
B HSRK ZR Finance costs 7 (438,879) (330,338)
R KBTS E RS Share of net results of jointly
E ek controlled entities 4,935 741
JE{LEE 2 N B FEE Share of net results of associates 353,736 361,948
BrEE AT & Profit before taxation 3,175,164 2,056,201
T8 Taxation 12 (556,840) (237,202)
REEmF Profit for the year 8 2,618,324 1,818,999
DER : Attributable to:
N B R ER Shareholders of the Company 2,220,403 1,480,053
DHRR R Minority interests 397,921 338,946
2,618,324 1,818,999
BRAF Earnings per share 14
AR Basic HK$1.02 HK$0.70
HE Diluted HK$1.00 HK$0.70
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HEBERRR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

knsEE

BElEEE

—REWME

—HME - WERERE

—FHFERME RN
TS

g

;43

a

B\ EE
SN P
N NI 5
AERE

BNFOR
BEERREE

MEEE

&

B 5 N EUGRR
PTESRITA
FREIR IR

Re LIRITHETF

i) =R

B 5 MEMEN TR
TESRTA
SEIISEA

FEfHRIR

RBEEFE

BEERRDER
E St ) =R
RHAE
ERERARE

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties

— Other property, plant and equipment

— Interests in leasehold land held

for own use under operating leases

Goodwill
Other intangible assets

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Interests in associates
Available for sale investments
Prepayments

Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Taxation recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Short term loans

Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long term liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

f&E
Notes

15
15

15
16
17
19
20
21
22
30

23
24
25

26

27
25
29a

29
30

—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
5,401,655 5,088,605
13,397,951 12,176,749
2,055,335 1,949,702
3,083,706 2,319,216
226,597 211,025
896,487 55,642
1,070,552 1,530,417
57,829 128,612
411,016 959,920
140,018 167,192
26,741,146 24,587,080
6,472,983 5,069,792
5,486,640 4,919,053
69,894 -
22,030 16,163
6,668,269 4,798,592
18,719,816 14,803,600
(11,268,085) (8,555,640)
(85,053) -
(5,168,729) (2,981,994)
(233,928) (182,123)
(16,755,795) (11,719,757)
1,964,021 3,083,843
28,705,167 27,670,923
(4,810,690) (6,797,211)
(951,141) (937,231)
22,943,336 19,936,481
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HEEEBMER Consolidated Balance Sheet

—EEAE ZETNF
2005 2004
b BETRT BT IT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(=7)
(Restated)
Capital and reserves

Share capital 31 2,233,429 2,123,009
Reserves 32 15,963,019 13,001,819

Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18,196,448 15,124,828
Minority interests 4,746,888 4,811,653
Total equity 22,943,336 19,936,481

PR#i# Chen Shulin Z % Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
& Z Director E Z Director
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BEERER

Balance Sheet

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

ERBEE

BElEEE

—REWE
—HMWE - WERERE
ISEI=YNCIP: 3
nEEE

B 5 RE M EYGRIR
Re RBITET
ik ) =R

B 5 REMEN TR
FERHRIR

A EFE

BEERRBEE

E 3k ) =R
ERERARE

BEXRGERE
[N
s

5T
Notes
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties 15
— Other property, plant and equipment 15
Interests in subsidiaries 18
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 24
Cash and bank balances 26
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27
Taxation payable
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities 30
Capital and reserves
Share capital 31
Reserves 32

FE#i#k Chen Shulin
& Director
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—E¥TRE —ETNF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)

(Restated)

51,000 51,000
5,244 6,445
15,794,320 15,431,886
15,850,564 15,489,331
281,075 198,898
1,652,311 791,654
1,933,386 990,552
(238,001) (268,283)
(6,188) (7,758)
(244,189) (276,041)
1,689,197 714,511
17,539,761 16,203,842
(8,224) (8,248)
17,531,537 16,195,594
2,233,429 2,123,009
15,298,108 14,072,585
17,531,537 16,195,594

Z 4% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
E Z Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

222005412 A31 H1EFE For the year ended 31 December 2005

KEEHZHRERE
KEMECHS
BAEERSH
B B Rt AT S AR
BAREINFEH
REBEBBRBFIEH
RERBAMATSTR
REBEFINEH

CETHZRMERNFHE

BRETHZIRERE
& EFE EEMSHKIEA
HERERERKE

AERE 2B
B E A RIRE
EWT%&QEXM

BHAE

BARIERE

BABTEEE

BENEeRE

HEMBAR, %% Ol
HEZRERREEE)

H &2 A RS IR

WEEH B N R,
CREBRU BRI 2R e R
ReEEHE)

S EPNSIE-

BEATDENIE
SR
RSP

—R m;mB%z
5 P 1 TS 3R
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PSR
fﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
=7k il
Eﬁ)\?ﬁﬂ/éé

ARREESHZFEHS

B aE

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 33A
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Chinese Mainland income tax paid
Overseas profits tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded
Chinese Mainland income tax refunded
Overseas profits tax refunded

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of and repayment

from available for sale investments
Dividends received from associates
Dividends received from available
for sales investments
Interest received
Purchase of available for sales investments
Purchase of fixed assets
Prepayment for rental deposit
Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of
cash and cash equivalent disposed of)  33B
Proceeds from disposal of associates
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(net of cash and cash equivalents
acquired) 33C
Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries
Net repayment from associates
Payment of purchase of interest in
jointly controlled entities
Dividend from a jointly controlled entity
Proceeds from disposal of available
for sales investments
Payment of purchase of interests
in associates
Bank deposits pledged for short term
bank loans
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)

(Restated)

3,889,428 3,073,349
(215,308) (118,429)
(192,599) (175,559)
(5,060) (7,532)
3,600 7,902

491 -

81 -
3,480,633 2,779,731
468,326 242,485
117,492 —
216,017 413,823
5,103 4,357
166,318 76,809
(5) -
(2,705,244) (2,349,511)
(57,543) (53,667)
497,288 -
739,233 33,422
(348,495) (1,206,360)
(23,470) (353,412)

- 200,518
(254,506) -
7,216 -

- 59,531
- (582,253)

- 3,454
- (396)
(1,172,270) (3,511,200)
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HMEBRELREBR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ZZ2005%F12 A31 H1- 4 For the year ended 31 December 2005

—ETAE ZETMEF
2005 2004
BT ¥ FIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(=7)
(Restated)
REESHZHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BRRE Dividends paid (640,085) (526,297)
BB AR ERLR Dividends paid to minority
ZHBE shareholders of subsidiaries (177,193) (147,795)
EfRERNEA Finance lease charges paid (980) (1,162)
2RFLE Interest paid (303,174) (187,972)
BT RRATE IR F R Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 436,284 263,858
BIRTT R A MEESHRIE Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 6,880,506 8,481,585
BEIBITREMEE Repayment of bank and other borrowings (6,683,542) (6,848,974)
BEME NNz EARE D Capital elements of finance lease
rental payment (2,063) (7,264)
LERFFE Contribution from minority shareholders 16,775 717,879
BREEFHZ (Hl) Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
MAE&FEH financing activities (473,472) 1,743,858
BHRERASEEEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,834,891 1,012,389
ERRRE Effect on foreign exchange rate changes 34,786 2,980
N—A—BZR&KHELEFE  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,798,583 3,783,214
R+=—A=+—HzZ Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
RERBREEE 6,668,260 4,798,583
He&RISEHEHZ AT Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Be MIRITET Cash and bank balances 6,668,269 4,798,592
RITEX Bank overdrafts (9) (9)
6,668,260 4,798,583
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FERFEREEHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ZZ20054F12 A31 H 1 E For the year ended 31 December 2005

b
RREs 98k
FOTRREIEED Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
fEgkir
% L
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Employee f;"éﬂﬁ
B BOHE SARE  roery HERE coebs HERE HEE ERGE -REE RIHA
Share Share Capital ~ valuation  Valuation compensation ~ Warrant Hedge  Exchange General  Retained it
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BETL AETR AMTT RMTn ABTn BMTn RMTR B%Tn R¥Tn A¥Tn ANTR BMTR BT E%Tr

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

ek At 31 December 2004

tZA=1-H
W/Eif& As previously reported 2,123,009 10,636,850 (5,654,632) 992,760 - - - - 9,039 44143 7630399 15781568 4,811,653 20,593,221
SHERE Changes in accounting

policies - - 41947)  (1713733) - 9198 167,755 - - - (494801)  (656,740) - (656,740)

ek At 31 December 2004

tZh=1-8
§§‘J As restated 2,123,009 10,636,850 (5902,579) 819,027 - 91,986 167,755 - 9,039 44143 7135598 15,124,828 4811653 19,936,481
SHEREY/ Changes in accounting
BB policies/reclassification - - 5902579 (819,027) 2450 - - (26,876) - (44,143) (4,889.276) 125,707 - 125,707
mERENES Opening balance as adjusted 2,123,009 10,636,850 - - 2450 91,986 167,755 (26,876) 9,039 - 2246322 15250535 4811653 20,062,188
JEEBENRIGEE Share of reserves in associates - - - - 2,157 - - - - - 521 7378 - 7378
ExE Bxchange rate adjustrments - - - - - - - - - SR B®S 253,15
ke Recognition of fair value gain
TEDNAER on derivative financial
5 instruments - - - - - - - 29807 - - - 98 - 98
Net income recognised
directly in equity - - - - 2,157 - - 29,847 179,221 - 5221 216,446 73,935 290,381
Rz 15 M“J Profit attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 220403 2,220,403 397921 2,618,324
TEEERT Total recognised income and
W% expenses for the year - - - AL - LY VAV ) - 22564 L6849 ATISE 2908705
RRERARG  Shares issued at premium 110420 986,65 - - - - - - - - - 1,097,076 - 1097076
BIRHEE Share issue expenses - (494) - - - - - - - - - (494) - (494)
BB Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 2182 2182
BEENBLR Purchase of additional
Eq interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (345761)  (345,761)
RHENBLAA  Release dueto disposal
[iE:hd of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (474) - - (@74)  (32,624)  (33,098)
RHEBENT  Release dueto disposal
[k of associates - - - - - - - - (142) - - (142) - (142)
RE Diidends - - - - - - - - - - (40085) (640085 (177,193)  (817.078)
PURETE Contribution from
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 16,775 16,775
BEEMRERT  Employee share option
benefits - - - - - 53,183 - - - - - 53,183 - 53,183
110420 986,162 - N YA A - 987 178,605 - 1585539 2045913 (64765) 2,881,148
RZZERE 31 December 2005
Jr:HEJr—E 2233429 11,623,012 - - 4,607 145,169 167,755 2971 187,644 - 3831861 18196448 4,746,888 22,943,336
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HERFEREE KR  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ZZ2005%F12 A31 H1- 4 For the year ended 31 December 2005

D
RRiEsE  SER
FOTRRREIEES Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
Sk
Y& RERR

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Employee mﬁ
& ﬂ%}iﬁﬁ ﬁmﬁﬁ Property  share-based Eﬁﬁﬁ ﬂﬁﬁﬁ ,Eﬂﬁﬁ —l&‘fﬁﬁ RERH

) . i ) "
Share Share Capital ~ valuation compensation ~ Warrant Hedge  Exchange General  Retained it
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BETL RETR AMTR RETR RMTn BMTR EMTR ERTn A%Tn RMTR BMTR BT A%Tr

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

R=% At 31 December 2003

T-A=1-H
Wh%f& As previously reported 2,089,728 10,406,273 (5,655,050) - - - - 3,993 3309 6,564,494 13442534 3,858,801 17301335
HHFEE Changes n accounting polices - - (7o) - 3E6 1675 - - SIS (448133) - we3)

At 31 December 2003 and

TZAZ+—B  opening balance as adjusted

REHEE

Bgs 2,089,728 10,406,273  (5,902,997) - 3,664 167,755 - 3993 3309 6,192,889 12,994401 3858801 16,853,202
ExE Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - - - 202 - - 202 697 899

Net income recognised directly in equity

WAFE - - - - - - - 0 - - 0 697 899
IREREER  profitattributable to shareholders - - - - - - - - S 1480053 1480053 338946 1818999

REEERA  Total recognised income and

U&ii@gg expenses for the year - - - - - - - 202 - 1480053 1480255 339,643 1,819,898
BREEAREA  Sharesisued at premium 33,281 230,838 - - - - - - - - 264119 - 264119
BIRHEE Share issue expenses - (261) - - - - - - - - (261) - (261)
WEE—FHBEAE) Acquistion of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 219805 219,805
BERMBLRIESR Purchase of additional interest in subsidaries - - - - - - - - - - - (176,680)  (176,680)
g Surplus on revaluation - - - 819,027 - - - - - - 819,027 - 819,027
RHEBENT  Release dueto disposal of associates

it - - 18 - - - - 4sm - - 5m V7!
RE Dividends - - - - - - - - - (526297)  (526297)  (147,795)  (674,092)
EBBRERN Employee share option benefits - - - - 88,322 - - - - - 88322 - 88322
DURRTE Contribution from minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 11819 7178719
&% Transfer - - - - - - - - mun - - -

BB BT a8 81907 883 - - 506 11047 92709 2130427 952852 3,083279
ek At 31 December 2004
+:ﬂ E‘I'_ = 2,123,009 10,636,850 (5902,579) 819,027 91,986 167,755 - 9,039 44143 7135598 15,124,828 4,811,653 19,936,481
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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RARZ EBEEEMERE RIEER
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R EBTIEHNE169BEF180H -
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AN - A TSR E BB X RS LR
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MFAT R EMBREER ([MBRELE
All) - BEEHER (G5 ER)) kB2
B ([2R)) R MsmEEa]) -
ZEEABAR _ZTAF—A—HIAR
RIS HIR - AEBEREEREAFET
BT 5 S R Pl e @R RSB A TR
BETHEK - ERTE @ WEMITHBHREE
ASREPEENIASIA © ttSh - BT
HFEENER - AFERERBHRIITE
A o B BENEAZH LY AEENER
REBRERAFEHN T

General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding company
as at 31 December 2005 to be China Resources National Corporation
("CRNC"), a company established in the Chinese Mainland. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
is disclosed in the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding, and the activities of its principal subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entitles and associates are shown on pages 169 to
180.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Companies Ordinance.

Changes in Accounting Policies

In connection with the adoption of the new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“INT"”) (collectively known as the “new
HKFRSs"”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the Group has applied certain
new accounting policies in accordance with the transitional provisions
as set out in the relevant new HKFRSs. Where required, these new HKFRSs
have been applied retrospectively. In addition, certain comparative figures
have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.
The major changes to accounting policies and the effects on the Group’s
profit and loss account and shareholders’ equity are set out as follows:
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BIIESREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
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1.

C
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investment Properties

In previous years, investment properties were measured at open
market values, with revaluation surplus or deficits credited or
charged to property valuation reserve unless the balance on this
reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which
case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on
the property revaluation reserve was charged to the profit and
loss account. Where a decrease had previously been charged to
the profit and loss account and revaluation subsequently arose,
that increase was credited to the profit and loss account to the
extent of the decrease previously charged.

In accordance with HKAS 40 — “Investment Property”, the Group
has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment
properties which requires gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of investment properties to be recognised directly in the
profit and loss account for the year in which they arise. Accordingly,
an amount of approximately HK$489.2 million has been recognised
in other revenue in the current year.

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS
40 and elected to apply the standard from 1 January 2005 onwards.
The amount of approximately HK$819.0 million held in the property
valuation reserve at 1 January 2005 has been transferred to the
Group's retained profits. No adjustment has been made on 2004
comparative figures.

Deferred Taxation Related to Investment Properties

In previous years, deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued
investment properties were assessed on the basis of the tax
consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying
amount of the properties through sale. Upon the adoption of HKAS
INT 21 “Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets”, the deferred tax consequences of the investment
properties are assessed on the basis that reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects to recover the property at each balance sheet date.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Deferred Taxation Related to Investment Properties (continued)

(c)

In the absence of any specific transitional provisions in HKAS INT
21, this change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. As a result, the Group’s net assets as at 31
December 2004 had been decreased by approximately HK$705.1
million, which represent the increase in deferred taxation liabilities.
The deferred taxation directly charged to the profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2005 has been increased by
approximately HK$85.7 million (2004:HK$nil).

Goodwill

In previous periods, goodwill or negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 was written off against/credited
to reserves and will be charged or released to the consolidated
profit and loss account at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the goodwill is determined
to be impaired. Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005 was capitalised and
amortised over its estimated useful life of not more than twenty
years and was stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss while
negative goodwill arising from acquisitions in the same period was
presented as a deduction from assets and released to the
consolidated profit and loss account based on an analysis of the
circumstance from which the balance resulted.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 — “Business Combinations”
prospectively from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising from
acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 is capitalised on the balance
sheet and will be assessed for impairment at the reporting date,
whereas negative goodwill arising from acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005 is credited to the consolidated profit and loss account.
No amortisation of goodwill has been made in the current year
while an amount of approximately HK$116.4 million has been
charged to the consolidated profit and loss account for the year
ended 31 December 2004. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3, for goodwill arising from acquisitions prior
to 1 January 2005 and previously capitalised on the balance sheet,
the Group discontinues amortising such goodwill and eliminates
the carrying amount of the related accumulated amortisation with
a corresponding decrease in goodwill. Such goodwill will be
assessed for impairment at the reporting date. As for goodwill
previously recognised as a deduction from equity, such goodwill
should not be recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
when the Group disposes of all or part of the business to which
that goodwill relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired. Such deduction from capital
reserve amounting to HK$5,902.6 million was transferred to
retained profits as at 1 January 2005. The carrying amount of
negative goodwill that arose from acquisitions prior to 1 January
2005 should be derecognised with a corresponding increase in
retained profits as at 1 January 2005.

Share-based Payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees for
their services rendered to subscribe for shares of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s share option scheme. Prior to the
application of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, the Group did
not recognise the financial effect of the share options until they
were exercised.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Share-based Payment (continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 which requires
an expense to be recognised where the Group buys goods or
obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(“equity-settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2
on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair value of
share options of the Company determined at the date of grant of
the share options over the vesting period.

The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or
after 1 January 2005. In accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 retrospectively to share
options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had not
yet vested on 1 January 2005. Comparative figures have been
restated.

This change has no effect on the Group’s net assets. An employee
share-based compensation reserve of HK$3.7 million was
recognised as at 1 January 2004. The effect of this change on the
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2005 and
2004 is to increase the general and administrative expenses of
approximately HK$53.2 million and HK$88.3 million respectively
and a corresponding increase to employee share-based
compensation reserve.

As stated in Note 1C (d), the Company issued share options to
certain employees of the subsidiaries at no consideration, and has
accounted for it in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in HKFRS 2. The effect of this change has resulted to an
increase in investment in subsidiaries of HK$81.1 million at 1
January 2005 and HK$48.1 million at 31 December 2005,
respectively, with a corresponding increase to employee share-
based compensation reserve.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

()

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds were classified as liabilities on the balance sheet
previously. In accordance with HKAS 32 — “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation”, convertible bonds which are regarded
as compound financial instruments are required to separate the
liability and equity components on initial recognition and to account
for these components separately. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The adoption of this accounting standard requires
retrospective applications.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 32, the Group’s net assets as
at 31 December 2004 and 2005 have been increased by
approximately HK$57.4 million and HK$18.2 million respectively.
A warrant reserve of HK$167.8 million was recognised as at 1
January 2004. The financial costs charged to the profit and loss
account for the year ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 have
been increased by approximately HK$39.2 million and HK$34.9
million respectively.

Financial assets and liabilities

The adoption of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” has resulted in a change in the accounting policy
relating to the classification of financial assets and liabilities and
their measurements.

Under the new accounting standards, financial assets are classified
as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-
for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”, or “held-to-
maturity financial assets”. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” are carried at fair value with changes
in fair values recognised directly in the profit and loss account.
“Loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
after initial recognition. “Available-for-sale financial assets” are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in equity
except for investments in equity securities, that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably and are stated at cost less impairment.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” or “financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial
liabilities)”. “Other financial liabilities” are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition.

On 1 January 2005, the Group classified and measured its financial
assets and liabilities in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions of HKAS 39. As the financial effect is not significant, no
adjustment has been made to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and the Group’s retained profits as at 1 January 2005.

Prior to 1 January 2005, the Group's investments in debt and equity
securities which are held for an identified long term purpose are
measured at cost less any impairment loss that is other than
temporary. Other investments which are neither debt securities
held-to-maturity nor securities held for an identified long term
purpose are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
included in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Prior to the application of HKAS 39, an interest free non-current
loans to subsidiaries were stated at nominal amount. In accordance
with HKAS 39, such loans were measured at fair value on initial
recognition, and then as stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method at subsequent balance sheet dates. The Company
has applied HKAS 39 prospectively, and accordingly, HKAS 39 has
no effect on the carrying amounts of the interests in subsidiaries
and the Company’s retained profits as at 1 January 2005. Profit
for the year has been increased by HK$59.6 million for the imputed
interest expenses.
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivatives and hedging

Under HKAS 39, derivatives are carried at fair value at each balance
sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets or
financial liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as
effective hedging instruments. The corresponding adjustments on
changes in fair values would depend on whether the derivatives
are qualified as effective hedging instruments, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. For derivatives that are deemed as held
for trading, changes in fair values of such derivatives are dealt
with in the profit and loss account for the period in which they
arise.

With the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group designated certain
derivatives as effective cash flow hedge. The effective portion of
the loss on the hedge instrument of HK$26.9 million was
recognised directly in equity on 1 January 2005. For those
derivatives deemed as held for trading, these financial instruments
were fair-valued as at 1 January 2005 with an aggregate fair value
loss of HK$60.4 million charged directly to retained profits on that
date.

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial

statements)

(1) Presentation of shares of associates’ and jointly controlled

entities’ taxation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements)
In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of associates
and jointly controlled entities accounted for using the equity
method was included as part of the Group’s income tax in
the consolidated profit and loss account. With effect from 1
January 2005, in accordance with the implementation
guidance in HKAS 1, the group has changed the presentation
and includes the share of taxation of associates and jointly
controlled entities accounted for using the equity method in
the respective shares of profit or loss reported in the
consolidated profit and loss account before arriving at the
Group's profit or loss before tax. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

1.  General (continued)
C Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements) (continued)

(i)

)

Minority interests (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet date
were presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately
from liabilities and as deduction from net assets. Minority
interests in the results of the Group for the year were also
separately presented in the profit and loss account as a
deduction before arriving at the profit attributable to
shareholders (the equity shareholders of the Company).

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 1 and HKAS 27, the Group has changed its accounting
policy relating to presentation of minority interests. Under
the new policy, minority interests are presented as part of
equity, separately from interests attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. These changes in presentation
have been applied retrospectively.

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been made
in accordance with the transitional provisions of the respective
HKFRSs to each of the line items in the consolidated profit and
loss account and balance sheet and the Company’s balance sheet
and other significant related disclosure items as previously reported
for the year ended 31 December 2004.
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(1) HEARBRENTE
BE-TTmE+-A=+—
AL FERAESE

25 Turnover

HERA Cost of sales

7 Gross profit

Ehlha Other revenue

HWAFE Other net income

HERDHER Selling and distribution
expenses

—REAHER General and administrative
expenses

eyl Profit from operations

BBRA Finance costs

TEE—FIRRIEHZE  Share of net results of a jointly

keRm controlled entity

EEBEENRIEEFE  Share of net results of associates

BHAET Profit before taxation
il Taxation
REERT Profit for the year
AR - Attributable to:
ARERRER Shareholders of the Company
SERRRER Minority interests
GRER Earnings per share
HA (BT Basic (HK$)
&5 (8k) Diluted (HK$)
HthEAREER - Other significant disclosure
items:
BIRA Staff costs
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)

(1)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31

December 2004

FEHBRNRE (REERNED/ (BD))
Effect of new accounting policies
(increase/(decrease) in profit for the year)

—ETnE EREL] ErHERl  MEBRERR
(LHER) E15% E305% £yl —ETRE
2004 (as (MEE—/(E) ME-F0R) MWE-AT) It (E%)
previously HKAS 1 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2 Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C(h)) (Note 1C(e)) (Note 1C(d)) (Restated)
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
47,078,103 - - - - 47,078,103
(39,317,104) - - - - (39,317,104)
7,760,999 - - - - 7,760,999
411,944 - - - - 411,944
491,285 - - - - 491,285
(4,443,639) - - - - (4,443,639)
(2,108,417) - - (88,322) (88,322)  (2,196,739)
2,112,172 - - (88,322) (88,322) 2,023,850
(295,464) - (34,874) - (34,874) (330,338)
741 - - - - 741
495,290 (133,342) - - (133,342) 361,948
2,312,739 (133,342) (34,874) (88,322)  (256,538) 2,056,201
(370,544) 133,342 - - 133,342 (237,202)
1,942,195 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,818,999
1,603,249 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,480,053
338,946 - - - - 338,946
1,942,195 - (34,874) (88,322)  (123,196) 1,818,999
076 - (0.02) (0.04) (0.06) 0.70
0.74 - - (0.04) (0.04) 0.70
(2,575,751) - - (88,322) (88,322)  (2,664,073)
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—RZEIE (@) 1. General (continued)
EEBUREE (5) C  Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(E) BIFTRIREI4Z80 (8 (i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)
(1) HEEUBRENTE@E (1) Effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
R-ZZEENF+=-—_A=+—H Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2004
FeBEABR
BHRROML EEFEED/ ()
Effect of new accounting policies (increase/(decrease) in net assets)
CEEhE  ENEURE 0 EHEl EitER  EitER
(ME2H) 215 $305% #385% #195 Nt CEEmE
2004 (as (WE-R(2)) (WRE-A(R) (&3))
previously HKAS-INT 21 HKAS32  HKAS38  HKAS19  Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C (e)) (Restated)
BETT  AETR AT AETn BETr BT AETR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E 1Y Non-current assets
ErdE Fixed assets
-RENE - Investment properties 5,088,605 - - - - - 5,088,605
~HiphgE  BEREE - Other property, plant and
equipment 12,176,749 - - - - - 12,176,749
~HEEENEERY - Interests in leasehold land
TR held for own use under
operating leases 1,949,702 - - - - - 1,949,702
HE Goodwill - 1,781 - 2,317,435 - 2,319,216 2,319,216
AhErEE Other intangible assets 2,528,460 - - (2317435) - (2317435) 211,025
W-RERAHEEZES  Interest in a jointly controlled
entity 55,642 - - - - - 55,642
REELA RS Interests in associates 1,541,257 - - - (10,840) (10,840) 1,530,417
TERE Avalable for sale investments 128,612 - - - - - 128,612
ARHE Prepayments 959,920 - - - - - 959,920
EEREEE Deferred taxation assets 167,192 - - - - - 167,192
24,596,139 1,781 - - (10,840) (9,059) 24,587,080
i - Current assets
k& Stocks 5,069,792 - - - - - 5069792
BAREMENE Trade and other receivables 4,861,642 - 57411 - - 57411 4,919,053
TREHE Taxation recoverable 16,163 - - - - - 16,163
ReRBER Cash and bank balances 4,798,592 - - - - - 479859
14,746,189 - 541 - -S4 14803600
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)
(1)  Effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2004

(continued)

HEHHRNFE RFRRAEN/ (BY)

Effect of new accounting policies (increase/(decrease) in profit for the year)

AEEABR®
AR Current liabilities
BARENERNTE Trade and other payables
BHER Short term loans
ERHE Taxation payable
HTBEERE Net current assets
BEERADAR Total assets less current
liabilities
ERBER Non-current liabilities
RE&fR Long term liabllties
ELHERE Deferred taxation liabilities
A Rkl Capital and reserves
B Share capital
B Reserves
FAGRFE R Equity attributable to
shareholders of
the Company
PYRFER Minority interests
bR Total equity

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

ZEEIME  EERRE EitERl ERtER EstERl
(MEE2H) EL #3235 385 195 gt ZEEmE
2004 (as (WEE-T(Z)) (WEE-A(%) (&5)
previously HKAS-INT 21 HKAS 32 HKAS 38 HKAS19  Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C (e)) (Restated)
BT BETT BETT BT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(8,555,640) - - - - - (8,555,640)
(2,981,994 - - - - - (2,981,994)
(182,123) - - - - - (182,123)
(11,719,757) - - - - - (1719757)
3,026,432 - 57,411 - - 57411 3,083,843
27,622,571 1781 57411 - (10,840) 48352 27,670,923
(6,797211) - - - - - (6,797.211)
(232139)  (705,092) - - - (705,092)  (937,231)
20,593,221 (703,311) 57411 - (10,840)  (656,740) 19,936,481
2,123,009 - - - - - 21300
13658559  (03311) 57411 - (10840)  (656,740) 13,001,819
15,781,568 (703,311) 57411 - (10,840)  (656,740) 15,124,828
4,811,653 - - - - - 4,811,653
20,593,221 (703311) 57411 - (10,840) (656,740) 19,936,481
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Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Investment properties
Other property, plant and
equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves
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General (continued)
Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (continued)

(2)  Effect on the Company’s balance sheet
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2004

FEHRRNHE (EEFEEN (BD)
Effect of new accounting policies
(increase/(decrease) in net assets)

CEEME  EriRAIRE SRR EEBRERA
(L#ER) H215% 325k E2: —ETnE
2004 (as (ME—/A(T)) WE-A(R) HWE—AT) Ingt (E3))
previously HKAS-INT 21 HKAS 32 HKFRS 2 Sub-total 2004
reported) (Note 1C (b)) (Note 1C(e)) (Note 1C(d)) (Restated)
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
51,000 - - - - 51,000
6,445 - - - - 6,445
15,350,711 - - 81,175 81,175 15,431,886
15,408,156 - - 81,175 81,175 15,489,331
31,143 - 167,755 - 167,755 198,898
791,654 - - - - 791,654
822,797 - 167,755 - 167,755 990,552
(268,283) - - - - (268,283)
(7,758) - - - - (7,758)
(276,041) - - - - (276,041)
546,756 - 167,755 - 167,755 714,511
15,954,912 - 167,755 81,175 248930 16,203,842
(291) (7,957) - - (7,957) (8,248)
15,954,621 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 16,195,594
2,123,009 - - - - 2,123,009
13,831,612 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 14,072,585
15,954,621 (7,957) 167,755 81,175 240,973 16,195,594
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General (continued)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The

Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these

standards or interpretations will have no material impact on the financial

statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 21 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 6
HKFRS 7

HKFRS-INT 4
HKFRS-INT 5

HK(IFRIC)-INT 6

HK(IFRIC)-INT 7

Capital Disclosures'

Net investment in a foreign operation?

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions?

The Fair Value Option?
Financial Guarantee Contracts?

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources?

Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease?

Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds?

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market
— Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment?

Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial
statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries
and also incorporate the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
and associates on the basis set out in notes 2C and 2D below. The
results of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls more than
half of the voting power, or where the Company controls the composition
of its board of directors or equivalent governing body. In the Company’s
balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture held as a long term investment
and a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control. The
results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in jointly
controlled entities are stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the
entities plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect the policy
on goodwill in note 19 below.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary, over which the
Group is in a position to exercise significant influence through participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. The results
and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of net assets
of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect
the policy on goodwill in note 20.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly
controlled entity/an associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested
for impairment at the reporting date and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be
impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On
subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, a jointly controlled entity or an
associate, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 — “Business Combinations” prospectively
from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be recognised as a deduction from equity and should
not be recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the
Group disposes of all or part of the business to which that goodwill
relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested
for impairment at the reporting date, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be
impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, a
jointly controlled entity or an associate represents the excess of the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly controlled entity/
an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the
consolidated profit and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising
on an acquisition of a jointly controlled entity or an associate is included
as income in the determination of the Groups' share of results of the
jointly controlled entity or associate in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

As explained in Note 1C above, all negative goodwill as at 1 January
2005 has been derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group’s retained profits.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans
and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets” dependent on
the purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities are
classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss”
and financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (other financial liabilities). Details of classifications and

measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised
in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition. If in
a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the profit and loss account. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d) Available for sale investments

(e)

(7)

Available for sale investments are non-derivative that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
category. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available for sale
investments are stated at cost less impairment. Apart from this,
available for sale investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not reverse in subsequent periods. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
F Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(f)

Other financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are classified separately into respective liability
and equity components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded call option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity, is included in warrant reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component will remain in convertible bond
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated
in the warrant reserve will be transferred to the retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss upon conversion or
expiration. This accounting treatment is applied retrospectively.

G Fixed Assets

(a)

(b)

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect
of which construction work has been completed and which are
held for long term rental and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value.

In accordance with HKAS 40, the Group has elected to use the fair
value model to account for its investment properties with the
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise. The Group has also
applied the relevant transitional provision and elected to apply
the HKAS 40 from 1 January 2005. As a result, no adjustment has
been made on comparative figures.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, rent or administrative purposes or for purposes not
yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and other relevant
expenses directly attributable to such projects.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction in progress (continued)

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time when construction work is complete and the costs
of construction are transferred to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when available for use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight line
method. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over

the unexpired term of lease,

whichever is shorter

- Vessels 5to 15 years

- Cold storage facilities 10 years

- Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

- Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

- Motor vehicles 3 to 8 years

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of other

property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) Leased assets

(e)

(i)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases
and are accounted for as if purchased whereby an amount
equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed assets and as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments
to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit and
loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases (net
of any benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease) is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the periods of the
respective leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property.

Impairment of fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of

information are considered to assess whether there is any indication

that fixed assets other than investment properties are impaired. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment

losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit and loss account in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are
stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line method over their
useful lives with amortisation commences when the asset is available
for use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible assets with definite
useful lives are as follows:
Brand names 10 to 20 years
Development costs 5to 15 years
Patent Royalty 50 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each balance
sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an impairment loss is
charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets to its recoverable amount.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount.
Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,
with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred
taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and packing
materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case of
retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price less
all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing, selling
and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets/
liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective hedging
instruments. The Group has entered into two types of hedge
relationships, including fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are made
to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting, changes
in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit and
loss in the periods in which fair value changes arise.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are made
to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes in
fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in equity
and transferred to the profit and loss account when the hedged
item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the associated gains or losses are removed from equity and included
in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives
that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are classified as held-
for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken directly to the profit and

loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of services;
and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it
accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged to
the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of that assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account in
the period which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s share option scheme. The
fair value of services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date because the fair value of
services of other participants cannot be reliably measured and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee share-based compensation reserve). The
Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
with the accounting policy applied retrospectively to those share options
granted after 7 November 2002 and had not been vested on 1 January
2005. Comparatives have been restated accordingly.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually by
independent valuer on market value for existing use basis calculated on
the net rental income and allowing for reversionary income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the net rental income. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and transactions
entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2E. Determining
whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The recoverable amounts have been determined either based on value-
in-use calculations or the cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to
sell. Details of the calculation are disclosed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2005, a deferred tax asset of HK$75.9 million in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s balance
sheet. The recognition of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the profit and loss account
in which such a reversal takes places.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amount due from associates, bank balances and derivative
financial instruments entered into.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via major credit
cards. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk; with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

In respect of transactions to use derivative financial instruments to
mitigate the Group’s market risk, the Group have procedures and policies
in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s ability to fund prospective investment opportunities and
existing debt requirements is achieved by maintaining surplus cash and
the availability of adequate committed funding lines from high quality
financial institutions.

Interest rate risk

To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a
preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid
undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest rate
volatility.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong and
usually have their local currency as their functional currencies.

The Group also had foreign currency exposure arising from the
borrowings denominated in US dollars. Apart from forward foreign
exchange contracts as set out in Note 25 to meet these liabilities, the
Group do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The management
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.
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For the year ended
31 December 2005
REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Qther revenue

Segment result

Unallocated corporate
£xpenses

Fair value gain on derivative

finanial instruments
Interest income

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of net results of jointly

controlled entities

Turnover and Segment Information

Share of net results of associates 31

Taxation

Profit for the year

—EEAE ZETNF
2005 2004
BEETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover represents sales by
the Company and its subsidiaries
to outside customers and
comprises revenue from:
Sales of goods 51,753,972 45,199,464
Rendering of services and others 1,526,495 1,611,487
Rental income 295,922 260,842
Sales of properties 7,530 6,310
53,583,919 47,078,103
Primary reporting format - business segments
REMI R R
R EniEy
Food Petroleum N
Processing andRelated ~ K#E%
gE B& and 45 Y%  Products Investments Hi ait
Retail ~ Beverage Distribution Textile ~ Property Distribution and Others Elimination Total
BB BB BB BETT BB BB BB BB BB
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
16,111,467 6,845,984 5521749 4,291,206 273,755 20,539,758 - - 53583919
91,005 8,620 101,816 - 25,366 - - (226,807) -
16200472 6854604 5623565 4291206 299121 20539758 - (226807) 53583919
185515 130598 42988 81510 481436 46776 - - 968823
16,387,987 6985202 5,666,553 4,372,716 780,557 20,586,534 - (226,807) 54,552,742
347,745 534,722 502,563 175,390 795,706 809,826 (48,292) 3,117,660
(79,535)
47,91
169,336
3,255,372
(438,879)
- - - - - 4935 - - 4935
- 18,437 21 - (9,498) 344,345 - 353,736
(556,840 )
2,618,324
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As at 31 December 2005
ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in jointly
controlled entities
Interests in associates
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total
liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and

amortisation
Impairment loss
recognised

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

RENI R RAR
R ERTH

Food Petroleum %ER

Processing and Related EHEH
gE B& and s hg Products  Investments At
Retail Beverage  Distribution Textile Property  Distribution  and Others Total
BT BT BT BT BRI BT BT BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
10,466,423 9,981,801 3,729,428 4,462,089 6,164,621 6,250,334 291,424 41,346,120
- - - - - 896,487 - 896,487
4,105 - 213,684 72,870 - 18,670 761,223 1,070,552
140,018
22,030
1,985,755
45,460,962
5,177,445 3,988,882 1,007,915 1,760,776 378,064 3,800,356 3969 16,117,407
233,928
951,141
5,215,150
22,517,626
1,141,601 656,927 234,329 219,975 354,486 96,493 1,433 2,705,244
426,878 521,473 127,769 167,493 2,486 92,935 2,774 1,341,808
5,192 69,963 - - - - 48,000 123,155
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A EEERPEEHE® 5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

IT2RRRR-REBE S @) Primary reporting format - business segments (continued)

REMI Rl kiR
RiEs# ERiY
Food Petroleum %ER
Processing and Related ~ EtEH
gE B& and 4% Y%  Products Investments 5 ait
Retail ~ Beverage Distribution Textile  Property Distribution and Others Elimination Total

BT B¥Tn BETR BRTr BETm B8t ¥t B%Tr BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

HE-REmE
tZR=t-BLEE
(E3)

Wi
HiMge
B30

Elbea

ARG

REARIDT
i
LN

mREn

El N

Eii-RAREHER
ES T

EEBELARE
#E

i

AERRA

For the year ended
31 December 2004
(Restated)

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Qther revenue

Segment result

Unallocated corporate
expenses
Interest income

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of net results of a
jointly controlled entity

Share of net results of
associates

Taxation

Profit for the year

5070535 5,352,494
8,853 81,461

- 47,078,103
(172,09) -

5,079,388 543395

49,442 65,456

(172,49) 47,078,103

- 333918

5128830 5499411

(172,49) 47412,

417,594 473,135

- 42,609

#MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

2,023,947

(78,123)
78,026

2,023,850
(330,338)

T4

361,948
(237,202)

1,818,999
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A EEEREEH® 5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

IZRRRR-REBE D @) Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

REMI hiR1EH
RiGs# ERiY
Food Petroleum %ER
Processing and Related EHEH
and Products  Investments At
Distribution Distribution  and Others Total
BT BT BT BT
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
RZBSMEF-A=+-H  Asat31December 2004
(E3) (Restated)
g ASSETS
HBEE Segment assets 3,682,106 5,715,612 130,249 36,433,559
R—RAXEEHEE Interests in a jointly
LR controlled entity - 55,642 - 55,642
REERFIZER Interests in associates 544737 27,561 854,723 1530417
ERHBEE Deferred taxation assets 167,192
REHE Taxation recoverable 16,163
AENBNLTEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,187,707
GREESHE Consolidated total assets 39,390,680
& LIABILITIES
HEER Segment liabilities 1,003,608 2,183,382 4514 13,200,083
A Taxation payable 182,123
ERHRaE Deferred taxation liabilities 937231
REHENLFEE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 5,134,762
FEBRAE Consolidated total
liabilities 19,454,199
Kb OTHER INFORMATION
BREY Capital expenditure 222,642 210,303 1,126 2,461,601
fEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 134,239 91,353 3,531 1,271,508
R ERE Impairment loss recognised - - - 18,571

* IS IR E R TTISERIE -

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
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Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

hE At HER
BH Chinese Other &%
Hong Kong  Mainland  Countries Total
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended
31 December 2005
Segment revenue
Turnover 20,961,230 29,832,535 2,790,154 53,583,919
Other revenue 645,451 314,724 8,648 968,823
21,606,681 30,147,259 2,798,802 54,552,742
As at 31 December 2005
Segment assets 13,154,134 26,298,719 1,893,267 41,346,120
Additions to fixed assets 130,174 2,467,198 107,872 2,705,244
For the year ended
31 December 2004
Segment revenue
Turnover 18,991,778 24,036,614 4,049,711 47,078,103
Other revenue 121,508 195,078 17,332 333,918
19,113,286 24,231,692 4,067,043 47,412,021
As at 31 December 2004
(Restated)
Segment assets 12,427,587 22,494,848 1,511,124 36,433,559
Additions to fixed/
intangible assets 343,203 2,075,665 42,733 2,461,601
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Other Revenue and Net Income

Other revenue includes the following:

Dividends from unlisted available
for sale investments

Interest income

Negative goodwill recognised

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Other net income includes the following:
Net profit on disposal of associates
Net profit on disposal of fixed assets
Net gain on disposal of available

for sales investments

Finance Costs

Interest on finance leases

Interest on bank loans and other loans
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on other loans not wholly
repayable within five years

Financing charges

Less: Amount capitalised in cost of
qualifying assets

—EFFRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BETT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
5,103 4,357
169,336 78,026
46,275 14,067
489,182 41,668
47,911 -
63,846 326,181
316,493 164,516
93,624 -
—EFFRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)

(Restated)

980 1,644
392,161 295,049
12,098 6,113
37,898 27,532
443,137 330,338
(4,258) -
438,879 330,338
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Profit For the Year

Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)
Depreciation
— Owned assets
— Assets held under finance leases
(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Impairment loss recognised on fixed assets
Impairment loss recognised on available
for sale investments
Amortisation of intangible assets
— Goodwill (included in general and
administrative expenses)
— Other intangible assets
Operating leases charges on land
and buildings
Share of tax of jointly controlled
entities
Share of tax of associates

And after crediting:

Gross rental income
Less: Related out-goings

Net rental income

—EBRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&7
(Restated)
19,940 13,570
3,114,376 2,664,073
1,308,930 1,136,610
4,023 5,040
74,065 18,571
49,090 -
- 116,424
28,855 13,434
1,098,178 976,815
236 -
67,528 133,342
295,922 260,842
(28,298) (27,680)
267,624 233,162
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2005

Name of director

Song Lin

Chen Shulin

Qiao Shibo

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Lau Pak Shing

Wang Qun

Kwong Man Him
Jiang Wei

Yan Biao

Xie Shengxi

Chan Po Fun, Peter
Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
Cheng Mo Chi

Ning Gao Ning, Frank
Zhong Yi

Total

2004

B RS L

Notes to the Financial Statements

9. Directors’ Emoluments
—EBnE —REEE
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees 968 960
Basic salaries and allowances 14,423 15,092
Provident fund contributions 1,124 1,276
Bonus paid 4,967 470
21,482 17,798
Benefit from share options exercised! 1,300 7,155
Share-based payment? - -

ok Hitiil&
Fees Other Emoluments
X

RiERY AESER —EEmE
Basic Provident &t
Salaries and Fund Sfifea: =1 2004
Allowances Contributions Bonus Paid® Total Total
BT BT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
50 1,650 204 833 2,737 1,781
50 1,560 54 655 2,319 1,464
50 1,470 54 655 2,229 1,431
50 2,376 259 345 3,030 2,533
50 2,879 315 600 3,844 3,082
50 426 - 700 1,176 896
50 2,332 72 423 2,877 2,338
50 - - - 50 50
50 1,470 135 596 2,251 1,540
50 - - - 50 50
140 - - - 140 120
140 - - - 140 120
140 - - - 140 120
23 - - - 23 -
- - - - - 1,963
25 260 31 160 476 310
968 14,423 1,124 4,967 21,482 -
960 15,092 1,276 470 - 17,798
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. EEME®

EEmz

HBE
£

1 FZHRBNEFABRZPMG -

I

2 ZHRBEEEFABRERTME -

I

3 AN EMFREZEEEE - BHIAL
THERBRABETISAHTEE -

+. AfiREHES
FALUREHEREEEML (ZTZXN
F:fDEE FEDHERLEXMEN -
Hp=f (CZTMF : Of) S5 EEM
EXNZMEFEmT

EARHr & N Ak
NEE R
ERFEAL
PARBAR FE U 3R

W= (C22WF - W) ReHES ZH
BT EIEE

BT

1,500,001 - 2,000,000
2,500,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,500,000
4,000,001 - 4,500,000
4,500,001 - 5,000,000
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10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

TR R RS
Benefit from

Name of director share options exercised'

—EThE —ZTTmE

2005 2004

BETR BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Xie Shengxi 1,300 -

Lau Pak Shing - 1,890

Zhong Yi - 5,265

1,300 7,155

1 The amount was not charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.
2 The amount was charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.

3 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics during both years.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2004:
one) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 9
above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other three (2004:
four) highest paid employees are as follows:

—E¥TRE —ZETMF

2005 2004

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

(&%)

(Restated)

Basic salaries and allowances 6,465 10,262
Provident fund contributions 70 167
Bonus paid 2,910 -
Share-based payment 2,778 3,369
12,223 13,798

The emoluments of this three (2004: four) highest paid individuals were
within the following bands:

A

No. of persons
—BThRE —ETEF
2005 2004
27
HK$ (Restated)
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 - 1
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 1 1
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Staff Provident Fund

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount of contributions is based on a specified
percentage of the basic salary of employees and any forfeited
contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to
reduce the Group’s contributions.

—EFRF —ZEEMMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group contributions to staff

provident fund 32,344 37,504
Forfeited contributions utilised (666) (902)

Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 31,678 36,602

Un-utilised forfeited contributions - -

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account in

respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$206,184,000 (2004: HK$169,372,000).
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12. Taxation

—E¥TRE —ETF
2005 2004
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
Current taxation

Hong Kong 186,633 141,084
Chinese Mainland 251,321 187,143
Overseas 1,810 1,372
439,764 329,599

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong 72,587 (61,282)
Chinese Mainland 44,489 (31,115)
556,840 237,202

Previously, share of jointly controlled entities and associates’ taxation
were included under taxation. As a result of change in requirements of
HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, share of jointly controlled
entities and associates’ taxation for the year of HK$236,000 (2004:
HK$nil) and HK$67,528,000 (2004: HK$133,342,000) respectively are
included in the share of profits of jointly controlled entities and associates.
Prior comparatives have been restated accordingly.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese Mainland income tax
has been provided for based on the estimated assessable profits in
accordance with the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in
the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate as follows:

Profit before taxation (excluding share
of net results of jointly controlled
entities and associates)

Calculated at a taxation rate of
17.5% (2004: 17.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates
in other jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Tax loss not recognised

Overprovision on taxation in previous year

Income earning companies exempted
from taxation

Taxation charge

—EThE —TEMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(7))

(Restated)

2,816,493 1,693,512
492,886 296,364
68,940 6,921
(120,312) (147,412)
96,894 62,036
(25,456) (28,073)
141,050 120,232
(479) (3,424)
(96,683) (69,442)
556,840 237,202
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13.

Dividends

Additional final dividend paid for
the previous year as a result of
exercise of share options

2005 interim dividend paid of HK$0.13
(2004: HK$0.11) per ordinary share

2005 proposed final dividend of HK$0.25
(2004: HK$0.16) per ordinary share

= L ~TIMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
9,530 233
288,382 231,822
579,750 342,173
877,662 574,228

At the meeting held on 6 April 2006 the directors proposed final dividend
of HK$0.25 (2004: HK$0.16) per ordinary share. This proposed dividend,
which is calculated on the Company’s number of ordinary shares as at

the date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these

financial statements. The total dividends paid by the Company, including
the final dividend for the year 2004, amounting to HK$640,085,000
(2004: HK$526,297,000) are reflected in the current year financial

statements.
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14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted
earnings per share is based on
the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share

Interest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— Share options
— Convertible bonds

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

Notes to the Financial Statements

—BFLE —TTMmE
2005 2004
HBETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51)

(Restated)

2,220,403 1,480,053
114,851 108,177
2,335,254 1,588,230
2005 2004

2,183,572,648 2,104,438,057

42,752,535 39,769,143
119,595,400 119,595,400

2,345,920,583 2,263,802,600
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The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
(As restated)
Exchange difference
Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 1 January 2005
(As restated)
Exchange difference
Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business
Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2005

15.

Fixed Assets

REER
HEERY
M i
HRERAS Interests in
EEEE leasehold
Plant, land held
BREF  machinery for own
Buildings  and other REWE  useunder
held for fixed It Investment  operating &3
own use assets Sub-total  properties leases Total
BB BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,492,280 11,476,539 14,968,819 3,332,523 1,910,469 20,211,811
(2,143) (5,135) (7,278) 8 (834) (8,104)
712,588 1,107,715 1,820,303 185,771 283,383 2,289,457
675,744 1,452,041 2,127,785 216,235 117,185 2,461,205
(80,210) (500,788) (580,998) (24,978) (72,285) (678,261)
(194,780) (155,220) (350,000) 344,618 - (5,382)
- - - 1,034,428 - 1,034,428
4,603,479 13,375,152 17,978,631 5,088,605 2,237,918 25,305,154
95,179 268,960 364,139 8,117 26,890 399,146
136,014 153,002 289,016 - 53,347 342,363
(14,439) (35,530) (49,969) (418,000) (31,565) (499,534)
591,767 1,699,542 2,291,309 331,105 82,830 2,705,244
(109,665) (303,305) (412,970) (96,927) (78,562) (588,459)
253,680 (348,961) (95,281) (427) 95,106 (602)
- - - 489,182 - 489,182
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 5,401,655 2,385,964 28,152,494
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15.

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2004 (As restated)
Exchange difference
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications

At 1 January 2005 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Impairment loss recognised

Redlassifications

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004 (Restated)

Representing assets stated:
At cost

At 2005 professional valuation

Fixed Assets (continued)

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

REER
HEERY
Ha i
HRERAS Interests in
BEEE leasehold
Plant, land held
BR#EF  machinery for own
Buildings  and other #EWE  useunder
held for fixed It Investment  operating gt
own use assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
BB BB BB BB BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
813,853 4,327 481 5141334 - 250,003 5,391,337
(582) (2,054) (2,636) - (135) 2,771)
143,497 957,037 1,100,534 - 41,116 1,141,650
(36,651) (413,888) (450,539) - (2,768) (453,307)
2,351 16,220 18,571 - - 18,571
(5,483) 101 (5,382) - - (5,382)
916985 4,884,897 5,801,882 - 288216 6,090,098
4364 17512 141,93 - 3,461 145,397
(3430)  (25554)  (28.984) - (4,998)  (33982)
193,777 1063931 1257708 - 55,245 1,312,953
(@7072)  (232,422)  (279.494) - (10882)  (290376)
37,538 36,527 74,065 - - 74,065
4,635 (4,824) (189) - (413) (602)
1,126,797 5,840,127 6,966,924 - 330,629 7,297,553
4,429,218 8,968,733 13,397,951 5,401,655 2,055,335 20,854,941
3,686,494 8,490,255 12,176,749 5,088,605 1,949,702 19,215,056
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 - 2,385,964 22,750,839
- - - 5,401,655 - 5,401,655
5,556,015 14,808,860 20,364,875 5,401,655 2,385,964 28,152,494
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BTSN AS IR EE -
BARA

The Company

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Disposals
Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

Representing assets stated:

At cost

At 2005 professional
valuation

15. Fixed Assets (continued)

HipEE ba=tES

#F Other Nt Investment &%
Buildings assets Sub-total properties Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,823 20,948 22,771 50,700 13,471

- 1,126 1,126 - 1,126
- (3,075) (3,075) - (3,075)

- - - 300 300

1,823 18,999 20,822 51,000 71,822
1,823 18,999 20,822 51,000 71,822

- 1,432 1,432 - 1,432
- (321) (321) - (321)

1,823 20,110 21,933 51,000 72,933
325 13,738 14,063 - 14,063

40 3,317 3,357 - 3,357
- (3,043) (3,043) - (3,043)

365 14,012 14,377 - 14,377
365 14,012 14,377 - 14,377

40 2,588 2,628 - 2,628
- (316) (316) - (316)

405 16,284 16,689 - 16,689
1,418 3,826 5,244 51,000 56,244
1,458 4,987 6,445 51,000 57,445
1,823 20,110 21,933 - 21,933

- - - 51,000 51,000

1,823 20,110 21,933 51,000 72,933
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS L

Fixed Assets (continued)

—ET1E —ETMF
2005 2004
EETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease 3,675,613 3,769,564
Properties held on medium-term lease 2,260,229 2,112,103
Properties held on short lease 22,330 26,575
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long lease 955,268 377,985
Properties held on medium-term lease 4,839,208 4,300,543
Properties held on short lease 71,225 74,976
Overseas
Properties held on medium-term lease 25,320 22,612
Properties held on short lease 37,015 40,443
11,886,208 10,724,801
The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on medium-term lease 51,000 51,000
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-term lease 1,418 1,458
52,418 52,458

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2005 by
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuers, on
market value basis.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance leases of the
Group at 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$7,507,000 (2004:
HK$14,654,000).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$227,855,000 (2004:
HK$799,300,000) are pledged for short term loans in the sum of
HK$237,843,000 (2004: HK$523,153,000) and long term loans in the
sum of HK$10,488,000 (2004: HK$72,191,000).

Other fixed assets mainly comprise vessels, leasehold improvements, cold
storage facilities, plant and machinery, furniture and equipment, motor
vehicles and construction in progress.
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16. Goodwiill

The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Increase in equity interests in
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2004
Changes in the accounting policies

At 31 December 2004 (As restated)

Opening balance adjustment to
eliminate accumulated amortisation

Derecognition of negative goodwill

Opening balance as adjusted

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

Increase in equity interests in
subsidiaries

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2004

Opening balance adjustment to
eliminate accumulated amortisation

Derecognition of negative goodwill

At 31 December 2005

Carrying values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004
As restated

BAZEE BlE
Purchased Negative L
goodwill goodwill Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,748,927 (236,039) 1,512,888
(23) - (23)
898,529 - 898,529
189,758 (13,027) 176,731
2,837,191 (249,066) 2,588,125
- 1,781 1,781
2,837,191 (247,285) 2,589,906
(307,463) - (307,463)
- 247,285 247,285
2,529,728 - 2,529,728
690 - 690
247,220 - 247,220
306,068 - 306,068
3,083,706 - 3,083,706
191,043 (22,706) 168,337
(4) - 4)
116,424 (14,067) 102,357
307,463 (36,773) 270,690
(307,463) - (307,463)
- 36,773 36,773
3,083,706 - 3,083,706
2,529,728 (210,512) 2,319,216
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BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

16. Goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
unit (“CGU") representing an operating entity within the business
segments identified by the Group for the purpose of segment reporting.
A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

—EERF —ZEEMF

2005 2004

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

(&B%)

(Restated)

Retail 1,113,807 634,620

Food Processing and Distribution 341,300 328,000

Beverage 1,505,135 1,482,672

Textile 68,217 (142,673)
Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution 55,247 16,597

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a value
in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates and all cash flows are discounted at the
discount rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

BHRERE

nEhst2

ERBRE

Nominal growth

rate beyond

{fi#E  theinitial cash
Discount rate flow projections

(%) (%)

Retail 8.6 4.9

Food Processing and Distribution 7.3 4.6

Beverage 7.5 6.9

Textile 7.9 6.0
Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution 9.3 6.0

The discount rates used is based on the respective CGUs’ weighted
average costs of capital which reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
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Other Intangible Assets

The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business
Additions

At 1 January 2005

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 January 2004
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

At 31 December 2005

Net book values
At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

HhlE
[ ERE RERE

Brand Patent Development A
name Royalty Cost Total
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
182,799 75,200 21,776 279,775
(299) (56) (16) (371)
20,603 - - 20,603
39 - - 396
203,499 75,144 21,760 300,403
4,714 1,736 503 6,953
41,941 - - 41,941
250,154 76,880 22,263 349,297
55,844 - 20,221 76,065
(102) (@) (15) (121)
11,331 1,757 346 13,434
67,073 1,753 20,552 89,378
1,740 59 490 2,289
26,115 1,519 1,221 28,855
2,178 - - 2,178
97,106 3,331 22,263 122,700
153,048 73,549 - 226,597
136,426 73,391 1,208 211,025
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T\ M BAT 2 18. Interests in Subsidiaries
—ETEE ZETEF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51)
(Restated)
AAT The Company
JE LMkt - BANE Unlisted shares, at cost 12,377,597 9,539,520
FEU KB A RIFIE - A EE Amounts due from subsidiaries,
at fair value 3,416,723 5,892,366
15,794,320 15,431,886
FEULH B A RIS IBN IR - R B REBAR The amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and not
EE AT ERAREE c DA EEUER repayable within the twelve months from the balance sheet date. The
REE25EZBENERBRZRENER fair value is based on cash flows discount using a rate based on the
IR - borrowings rate of 2.5% p.a.
RIEERF+_A=+—HZEEHBA Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2005 are set out
AIFHBETENE 1698 EF 1808 - on pages 169 to 180.
Th. REREHERZELS 19. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities
—ETEE ZETEF
2005 2004
BT E¥EFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&R The Group
JEET Unlisted
E(hEEFE Share of net assets 896,487 55,642
R-ZEERF+_A=+—RHzZTEHRE Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31 December
BB BHNE169HEEFE 1808 ° 2005 are set out on pages 169 to 180.
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Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly
controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting is set out below:

—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current assets 1,366,254 500,853
Non-current assets 1,371,905 -
Current liabilities (490,815) (79)
Non-current liabilities (680,978) -
Income 847,169 6,890
Expenses (810,958) (221)
Interests in Associates
—ETRFE ZETPF
2005 2004
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
The Group
Unlisted
Share of net liabilities (465,238) (329,334)
Amounts due from associates,
at fair value 1,535,790 1,859,751
1,070,552 1,530,417

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing at

prevailing market rate and not repayable within the twelve months from

the balance sheet date.
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Interests in Associates (continued)
Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2005 are set out

on pages 169 to

180.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates

is set out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Group's share of net liabilities

of associates

Revenue

Profit for the year

Group's share of net result of

associates for the year

= L ~TIMF
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
32,209,766 31,792,258
(38,628,924) (38,331,647)
(6,419,158) (6,539,389)
(465,238) (329,334)
3,273,447 5,025,763
3,546,003 3,389,646
353,736 361,948
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21.

Available for Sale Investments

k- oo ¥ 8- 3 —ETME
2005 2004
EETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Non-current investments
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong, at cost 10,374 10,088
Unlisted shares in the Chinese Mainland,
at cost less impairment loss 46,453 116,921
Amounts due from investee
companies 1,002 1,603
57,829 128,612

The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted equity

shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each balance sheet

date. As there is no active market for trading, their fair value cannot be

ascertained reliably.
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—t+ . EARIE 22. Prepayments
—ETEE ZTTNE
2005 2004
EETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEE The Group
Bt FEmREE — RN —HA—8 Tank storage service fees prepaid —
at 1 January 345,600 367,200
B NERER 2 FOE Less: Amount recognised during
the year (21,600) (21,600)
324,000 345,600
e —HHREIERE Deposit payment for purchase of
ZEI®FIA a jointly controlled entity - 582,253
HekeniE Rental deposits 118,155 53,667
R+-A=+—Hz%&% Balance at 31 December 442,155 981,520
R —FNEN A 2 55 Portion to be utilised within one year 31,139 21,600
R —ERE A2 85 Portion to be utilised after one year 411,016 959,920
WTZA=+—Hz &% Balance at 31 December 442,155 981,520

RIBE R AR M ARER 2 —H
B A RIFTRISL 2 féom thek (R tiail)
ERER FORR BIEE IR IEZ B EAR
FAXNZ BN RFEREE -

Pursuant to the tank storage agreements (the “Agreement”) entered
into with a holding company and a fellow subsidiary, the recognised
amount can be applied to set off portion of the total tank storage service
fees payable during the year under the Agreement.

—t+=.B58 23. Stocks

“TTRF keSS
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000

X&EH The Group
FEME Properties held for sale 151,548 158,317
FEA Raw materials 936,820 794,029
SFEm R BEM R Consumables and packing materials 1,094,660 820,052
R Work-in-progress 276,208 274,598
SR SR Finished goods 4,013,747 3,022,796
6,472,983 5,069,792
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Trade and Other Receivables

F£HE XAF
The Group The Company
—%%1F _TImE CFTLE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT BT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Z31) (83

(Restated) (Restated)

Trade receivables 2,989,334 2,333,173 - -
Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments 2,451,724 2,520,751 44,666 8,575

Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 236,409 190,323

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 18,036 42,974 - -
Amounts due from associates 27,546 22,155 - -

5,486,640 4,919,053 281,075 198,898

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following credit
terms:

(@) cash upon delivery; and
(b)  open credit within 60 days

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the reporting
date:

—BTAF —ETEF
2005 2004
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

The Group
0 - 30 days 2,324,937 1,650,345
31 - 60 days 338,025 281,668
61 —90 days 164,073 141,480
> 90 days 162,299 259,680
2,989,334 2,333,173

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables at balance
sheet date was approximate to the corresponding carrying amount.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments

X&E e 3E]
The Group The Group
“EEnE  ZETIFE  _ZTNE  _TT@EAF
2005 2005 2004 2004
aE & BB BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BETT BETR BETTT BETTT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Derivatives under hedge

accounting
Cash flow hedge:
Foreign currency forwards
contracts 408 - - -
Oil futures contracts 58,803 69,621 - -
59,211 69,621 - -

Other derivatives

Oil futures contracts 10,683 2,967 - -
Interest rate swaps - 12,465 - -
Total - current portion 69,894 85,053 - -

Note: In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 39, the comparatives
as at 31 December 2004 was not adjusted to reflect the fair value of
derivatives held at that date.

Cash flow hedge - Foreign currency forward contracts

At 31 December 2005, the Group had foreign currency forward contracts
with notional amount of US$190,000,000 for hedging its foreign
currency exposure in respect of its US dollar liabilities. All of the forward
contracts have maturities of less than one year and were designated as
highly effective. Loss of HK$10,000 on remeasuring the forward contracts
was recognised in equity and is released to profit and loss in the same
period during which the US dollar liabilities are remeasured for changes
in foreign exchange rates upon maturity.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge - Oil futures contracts

In 2005, some Group companies which engage in oil products trading
business had commodity futures contracts designated as effective
hedging instruments of managing price and timing risks in connection
with forecast purchases and sales.

As at 31 December 2005, fair value gain of HK$867,000 has been initially
recognised in hedge reserve and is expected to be transferred to the
profit and loss account at various dates in the coming six months after
the balance sheet date, the period in which forecast purchases and sales
are expected to occur.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had long and short oil futures
contracts with notional contract amounts of US$138,502,000 and
US$108,130,000 respectively and maturities of less than one year after
the balance sheet date.

Other derivatives — Oil futures contracts

At 31 December 2005, the Group had oil futures contracts to buy
200,000 metric tonnes and to sell 200,000 metric tonnes of oil product
at fixed prices to limit the risks arising from the fluctuations in oil prices.
The notional amounts of these buy and sell contracts were
US$57,805,000 and US$58,800,000, respectively, with maturities of one
month after the balance sheet date. As the aforesaid contracts did not
qualify for hedge accounting and as a result, gains or losses arising from
a change in fair value are recognised in profit and loss account.

Other derivatives — Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile by swapping
50% of its Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") based borrowing
from HIBOR to London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR").

At 31 December 2005, the Group had interest rate swaps with notional
contract amounts of HK$1,500,000,000 and mature over the next two
years matching the maturity of the related borrowings. During the year,
fair value gains of HK$47.9 million have been credited to the profit and
loss accounts.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and
commodity futures contract are either marked to market using listed
market prices or broker quotes. The fair value of Interest rate swaps is
estimated by referring to the prevailing market interest rate for similar
financial instruments quoted by financial institutions.
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26.

27.

Cash and Bank Balances
Included in cash and bank balances are the following amounts

denominated in a currencies other than the functional currencies of the

entities to which they relate.

US Dollar

F5E FaF
The Group The Company
—ETLRE —TTMF ZFTFTRE _—TTOF
2005 2004 2005 2004
EHTT A%t EETT  B%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
1,589,796 2,166,917 449,529 722,751

The effective interest rate on bank deposits ranged from 0.09% to 4.30%
(2004: 2.42%), with an average maturity of 30 days (2004: 30 days).

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Provisions (note 28)

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

F5E K28

The Group The Company
“ETLE —TTNE ZEFTHFE  —TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004
BRI BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,857,597 4,295,279 - -
5,281,078 4,119,682 29,625 68,107
56,685 88,314 - -
- - 208,376 200,176
54,223 30,918 - -
18,502 21,447 - -
11,268,085 8,555,640 238,001 268,283
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27. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet

date:

The Group
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days

- 90 days
> 90 days

—BBRE  —TINE
2005 2004
BT AT
HK$000 HK$'000
3,935,603 2,866,278
947,494 776,429
540,083 274,979
434,417 377,593
5,857,597 4,295,279

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at the balance

sheet date was approximate to the corresponding carrying amount.

Provisions

The Group
At 1 January 2004
Utilisation during the year

At 1 January 2005
Utilisation during the year

At 31 December 2005

BT T
HK$'000

110,410
(22,096)

88,314
(31,629)

56,685

The amounts represent provisions for restructuring activities for

operations acquired in previous years. These provisions were utilised in

accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when such operations

were acquired.
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29a. Short Term Loans

—ETEE —ETNE
2005 2004
EETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Current portion
—secured bank loans 3,080 -
— unsecured bank loans 241,313 -

- of long term obligations
under finance leases 7,096 7,750
Short term bank loans,
trust receipts and overdrafts

— secured 237,843 602,160

— unsecured 2,545,247 2,372,084
Other unsecured loans 2,134,150 -
5,168,729 2,981,994

Other unsecured loans repayable within five years include
US$230,000,000 unsecured convertible bonds due 2006 issued by the
Group on 30 May 2001. The bonds are exchangeable for shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$15.00 per share during the period
from 11 July 2001 to 17 May 2006 inclusive. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed at
121.78% of their principal amount on 31 May 2006. The bonds may be
redeemed in whole by the Group at any time on or after 1 June 2004 if
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
for each dealing day during the period of 30 consecutive dealing days
has been at least 130% of the conversion price in effect on each such
dealing day or at least 90% in principal amount of the bonds has already
been converted or purchased and cancelled.

According to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation, the convertible bonds were split between the liability and
equity elements on retrospective basis. The equity element is presented
in equity heading “warrant reserve”. The effective interest rate of the
liability components is 6.5%.
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29b.
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Short Term Loans (continued)
The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan notes
for the year is set out below:

—BThRE —ETEF
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group

Liability component at the
beginning of the year 2,059,157 1,973,654
Interest charge 82,764 79,824
Exchange difference (7,771) 5,679
Liability at the end of the year 2,134,150 2,059,157

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible loan notes
was determined based on the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows discounted at the prevailing market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan.

Long Term Liabilities

—B%IE —ZEIMEF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Secured bank loans repayable within 5 years 10,488 72,191
Unsecured bank loans repayable within 5 years 4,773,714 4,414,226
Unsecured bank loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years 5,697 -
Other unsecured loans repayable within 5 years 88,358 2,145,748
Obligations under finance leases repayable
within 5 years 10,539 14,036
Other unsecured loans not wholly repayable
within 5 years 173,383 158,760
5,062,179 6,804,961
Current portion included in current liabilities (251,489) (7,750)
4,810,690 6,797,211
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29b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

—ETLE —ETNE
2005 2004
EETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
The non-current portion of long term
liabilities are repayable as follows:
Bank loans
After 1 year but within 2 years 43,588 230,270
After 2 years, but within 5 years 4,498,086 4,256,147
After 5 years 3,832 -
Other loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 111,083 16,280
After 2 years, but within 5 years 85,441 2,201,582
After 5 years 65,217 86,646
Obligations under finance leases
After 1 year, but within 2 years 3,443 2,836
After 2 years, but within 5 years - 3,450
4,810,690 6,797,211

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank loans
repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH"), a holding company, is required to remain as a beneficial owner
of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or remain as a
single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly through its
subsidiaries) of the Company.

In addition to convertible bonds as set out in note 29a, the Group has
floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, US Dollars
and Renminbi with interest rates linked to HIBOR, LIBOR and the lending
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China respectively.

The effective interest rates on the Group’s floating rate borrowings range
from mainly 0.72% to 5.55% (2004: from 0.53% to 5.55%).

At 31 December 2005, the Group has a syndicated loan of HK$3,000
million (2004: HK$3,000 million) that bears interest rate at HIBOR plus
39 basis points and will mature in October 2007. Other borrowings are
repayable wholly or partly within 3 years from 31 December 2005.
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29b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

30.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the entities to which they relate are set out
below:

E Hit

US Dollars Others

BB BB

HK$'000 HK$'000

As at 31 December 2005 3,833,339 16,185
As at 31 December 2004 3,578,604 22,813

Deferred Taxation

The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) recognised during the
year is as follows:

F5E The Group

BEREEE Deferred taxation assets

“—A—H At 1 January

TiraBeak (Charged)/credited to
(k) / ok consolidated profit and

loss account

e YNl Acquisition of subsidiaries

R Exchange rate adjustment

R+-A=1+-H At 31 December

RIER IR A B DAABRE R RIS 2 5 TE AT
RRFERBEFBIR B LR - ARIBERE
HEEmMER N _ETRAF+_A=1—
H - AEBRERZELEHBEER B
660,578,000 0 (ZEZMF : HEK
651,930,0007T) @ MAEBREREAS
&) 2 ZE RUIE BUR SR A JE AR AT 8 o
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B8 Hith a5

Tax losses Others Total
“ETRE —TINF CZEFTHEE —TTNF ZFTRE —TTQF
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT AT BETx BT #ETn  A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
116,734 76,293 50,458 65,086 167,192 141,379
(43,071) 40,441 4,855 (14,628) (38,216) 25,813
(12) - 8,778 - 8,766 -
2,274 - 2 - 2,276 -
75,925 116,734 64,093 50,458 140,018 167,192

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2005, the Group has
unrecognised tax losses of HK$660,578,000 (2004: HK$651,930,000)
arising from tax losses which is uncertain as to whether it can be utilised
to set off against future taxable income.
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30. Deferred Taxation (continued)
The Components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet and the movements during the year as as follows:

EfRENE  MERERE
Revaluation Accelerated

of investment tax &t
property  depreciation Total
BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
At 1 January 2004
As previously reported - 298,414 298,414
Changes in accounting policies 531,359 - 531,359
At 1 January 2004
As retated 531,359 298,414 829,773
Charge to equity 173,733 - 173,733
Credited to consolidated
profit and loss account - (66,584) (66,584)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 309 309
At 31 December 2004
As retated 705,092 232,139 937,231
Charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 85,698 (6,838) 78,860
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary (65,123) - (65,123)
Exchange difference - 173 173
At 31 December 2005 725,667 225,474 951,141

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relates to the accelerated tax
depreciation of its investment property, land and building and other
assets.
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31. Share Capital

Authorised
Ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January
Exercise of share options
Allotment of shares

At 31 December

—EELF “TTQRE
2005 2004

K& E [ i8R [EED
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value shares Value
Tz BRI i BETT
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
2,123,009 2,123,009 2,089,728 2,089,728
52,448 52,448 33,281 33,281
57,972 57,972 - -
2,233,429 2,233,429 2,123,009 2,123,009

(@  On acquisition by the Company of the following interests:

Resources Wan Jia Group;

- a related sharedholders’ loan of RMB35 million; and

Supermarket Co., Ltd."),

35% equity interest in China Resources Vanguard Group and China

the 11.5% equity interests in BREBHM AR AAF (“Suguo

the consideration was satisfied by the issue of 57,971,905 new ordinary

shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$11.39 per share on

completion. This is a non-cash transaction.
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31.

(b)

Share Capital (continued)

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of
the Company by the participants (the “New scheme”). In addition, certain
outstanding share options were still held under a share option scheme
which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated on 31 January
2002 (the "Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible participants
including executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any
discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any employee,
executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any executives and
employees of consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group,
chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within a
period of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested over
a period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of
a grant.
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Et+—BExw®@ 31. Share Capital (continued)
RIEMIE BRI BIREE B 152 Details of the movements of the share options granted under both share
g option schemes are summarised as follow:
BRENE
Number of share options
TEE R-FFRF REEE REEE REEE RAEE R-FELE
ERT —R—H Rt fTiE" i %% +=RA=+-8H
Exercise AT Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed AT
RHAH Price  Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
Date of grant HKS$ 1/1/2005 the year the year’ the year the year 31/12/2005
Eital
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.190 11,861,000 - 3,916,000 - - 7,945,000
21/11/2000 7.080 4,153,000 - 754,000 - - 3,399,000
16,014,000 - 4,670,000 - - 11,344,000
ikt 8l
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 19,638,000 - 5,124,000 - - 14,514,000
05/03/2002 7.350 19,624,000 - 7,816,000 - 322,000 11,486,000
08/03/2002 7.500 980,000 - 200,000 - - 780,000
19/04/2002 7.400 7,204,000 - 3,554,000 - - 3,650,000
23/05/2002 8.900 136,000 - 92,000 - - 44,000
02/08/2002 8.320 5,870,000 - 1,936,000 - 100,000 3,834,000
07/11/2002 7.700 1,790,000 - 38,000 - - 1,752,000
24/01/2003 7.250 1,182,000 - 576,000 - 28,000 578,000
14/04/2003 6.290 7,428,000 - 3,162,000 - 50,000 4,216,000
01/08/2003 7.100 1,070,000 - 410,000 - - 660,000
08/10/2003 8.900 2,888,000 - 945,000 - 282,000 1,661,000
02/12/2003 9.000 1,360,000 - 290,000 - - 1,070,000
14/01/2004 9.720 46,441,000 - 6,520,000 - 958,000 38,963,000
20/04/2004 9.890 5,600,000 - 384,000 - - 5,216,000
25/05/2004 9.150 35,856,000 - 11,251,000 - 162,000 24,443,000
02/06/2004 9.550 5,022,000 - - - - 5,022,000
22/07/2004 9.800 3,100,000 - 1,510,000 - - 1,590,000
04/10/2004 10.350 49,680,000 - 3,900,000 - 316,000 45,464,000
17/01/2005 11.400 - 1,750,000 70,000 - 100,000 1,580,000
22/07/2005 12.500 - 960,000 - - - 960,000
214,869,000 2,710,000 47,778,000 - 2,318,000 167,483,000
230,883,000 2,710,000 52,448,000 - 2,318,000 178,827,000
AIRERITR
Exercisable at the
end of the year 137,027,000
IEFTHEE
Weighted average
exercise price 9.04 11.79 8.51 - 8.93 9.23
BRESEASNOT - Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eital
0Old Scheme
EZ Directors 10,486,000 - 4,500,000 - - 5,986,000
€8 Employees 5,528,000 - 170,000 - - 5,358,000
HatEl
New Scheme
EZ Directors 24,466,000 - 200,000 - - 24,266,000
B8 Employees 169,829,000 2,710,000 39,090,000 - 1,996,000 131,453,000
H {0281 Other participants 20,574,000 - 8,488,000 - 322,000 11,764,000
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31. Share Capital (continued)

ERERiEZ
AR EE?
Estimated
fair value of
the share
option
granted?

s E
Number of share options
R-BEME REEE REEE REEE REEE R-FTOE
—A—H R e 2 X% +=RA=+-H
ERITHE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed R ITHE
Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
1/1/2004 the year the year' the year the year 31/12/2004
14,787,000 - 2,826,000 - 100,000 11,861,000
5,343,000 - 640,000 - 550,000 4,153,000
20,130,000 - 3,466,000 - 650,000 16,014,000
24,250,000 - 4,142,000 - 470,000 19,638,000
24,078,000 - 4,444,000 - 10,000 19,624,000
980,000 - - - - 980,000
11,500,000 - 3,412,000 - 884,000 7,204,000
330,000 - 194,000 - - 136,000
13,368,000 - 5,050,000 - 2,448,000 5,870,000
1,932,000 - 142,000 - - 1,790,000
1,620,000 - 438,000 - - 1,182,000
9,634,000 - 1,806,000 - 400,000 7,428,000
1,896,000 - 826,000 - - 1,070,000
5,000,000 - 1,010,000 - 1,102,000 2,888,000
1,500,000 - 140,000 - - 1,360,000
- 49,308,000 1,809,000 - 1,058,000 46,441,000
- 5,600,000 - - - 5,600,000
- 42,384,000 6,392,000 - 136,000 35,856,000
- 5,022,000 - - - 5,022,000
- 3,100,000 - - - 3,100,000
- 49,690,000 10,000 - - 49,680,000
96,088,000 155,104,000 29,815,000 - 6,508,000 214,869,000
116,218,000 155,104,000 33,281,000 - 7,158,000 230,883,000
171,779,000
7.42 9.77 8.03 - 8.22 9.04
BT Details of the share options held by the directors included in the above table
are as follows:
11,986,000 - 1,500,000 - - 10,486,000
8,144,000 - 1,966,000 - 650,000 5,528,000
11,706,000 13,260,000 500,000 - - 24,466,000
59,654,000 141,544,000 24,871,000 - 6,498,000 169,829,000
24,728,000 300,000 4,444,000 - 10,000 20,574,000
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32.
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Share Capital (continued)

Note:

1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HK$12.24 (2004: HK$10.75).

2. The fair value of the share option granted represents the weighted average

of the fair value of the share options with different exercisable period.

These fair values were calculated using the Trinomial Lattice model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

—EThAE —ETNE
2005

BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Exercise price (as set out in the

above table)

Weighted average share price HK$11.95 HK$9.78
Expected volatility 24.3% 38.7%
Option life 10 years 10 years
Risk-free rate 4.1% 4.1%
Expected dividend yield 2.7% 2.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous 1 year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$53,183,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2005 (2004: HK$88,323,000) in relation to
the share options granted by the Company.

Reserves

The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88.

(@) General reserve is part of shareholders’ fund and comprises
statutory surplus reserve, statutory public welfare fund and
discretionary surplus reserve of subsidiaries and associates in the
Chinese Mainland.
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The Company

At 1 January 2004
As previously reported
Changes in accounting policies

As restated
Premium on shares issued
Share issue expenses
Surplus on revaluation
Employee share option benefits
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 13)

At 1 January 2005
Changes in accounting policies

As restated
Premium on shares issued
Share issue expenses
Employee share option benefits
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 13)

At 31 December 2005

AARAEIRFRRZBER A E
#3,362,172,000 (ST MMFE : B

3,130,523,0007T) ©

BITEEREMIEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Reserves (continued)

The Group (continued)

(b) The retained profits of the Group include approximately
HK$100,433,000 (2004: HK$323,667,000) and approximately
HK$6,844,000 (2004: HK$1,908,000) retained by associates and
jointly controlled entities of the Group, respectively.

EERH
MEE HiEnE
fi%  Employee Rl

Rir it (E Property  share-based ke REEH
Share  valuation compensation Warrant Retained gt
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BBTR BBTR BETR BBTR BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

10,406,273 4517 - - 1,312993 11,764,437
- - 3,664 167,755 (8,345) 163,074
10,406,273 4517 3,604 167,755 1,304,648 11,927,511
230,838 - - - - 230,838
(261) - - - - (261)

- 300 - - - 300

- - 88,322 - - 88,322

- - - - 2,352,172 2,352,172
- - - - (526,297) (526,297)
10,636,850 45,47 91,986 167,755 3,130,523 14,072,585
- (45,471) - - 45,41 -
10,636,850 - 91,986 167,755 3,175994 14,072,585
986,656 - - - - 986,656
(494) - - - - (494)

- - 53,183 - - 53,183

- - - - 826,263 826,263
- - - - (640,085) (640,085)
11,623,012 - 145,169 167,755 3,362,172 15,298,108

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to HK$3,362,172,000 (2004: HK$3,130,523,000).
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of net results of jointly
controlled entities

Share of net results of associates

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/business

Profit on disposal of associates

Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments

Fair value gains on derivative
financial instruments

Dividend income from unlisted available
for sale investment

Interest income

Interest expenses

Net profit on disposal of fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on
available for sale investments

Impairment loss recognised on
other intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of goodwill

Negative goodwill on acquisition
recognised as income

Tank storage service fee utilised

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Share based payment charged
against equity

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Changes in properties held for sale

Changes in other stocks

Changes in trade and other receivables

Changes in derivative financial instruments

Changes in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

“ETLE “TETNF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,175,164 2,056,201
(4,935) (741)
(353,736) (361,948)
(138,010) -
(63,846) (326,181)
(93,624) -
(47,911) -
(5,103) (4,357)
(169,336) (78,026)
400,981 302,806
(178,483) (129,225)
74,065 18,571
49,090 -
2,178 -
1,312,953 1,141,650
28,855 13,434

- 116,424
(46,275) (14,067)
21,600 21,600
(489,182) (41,668)
53,183 88,322
3,527,628 2,802,795
6,769 7,318
(1,322,534) (505,317)
(571,010) (97,459)
(7,779) -
2,256,354 866,012
3,889,428 3,073,349
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

—EFFRE —TEMF
2005 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed of:
Fixed assets 465,552 -
Trade and other receivables 6,973 -
Cash and bank balances 15,108 -
Trade and other payables (6,186) -
Deferred taxation liabilities (65,123) -
Minority interests (32,624) -
383,700 -
Reserves released (474) -
Profit on disposal of business/underlying
fixed assets 138,010 -
521,236 -
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 512,396 -
Deferred consideration 8,840 -
521,236 -
Analysis of the net inflow of
cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of subsidiaries
Cash considerations received 512,396 -
Cash and bank balances disposed of (15,108) -
497,288 -
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Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

The carrying amounts and fair value
of the net assets acquired:
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Available for sale investments
Stocks
Trade and other receivables
Deferred taxation assets
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Short term loans
Long term loans
Deferred taxation liabilities
Minority interests
Negative goodwill on acquisition
Goodwill on acquisition

Discharged by:
Cash
Balance of consideration payable
Prepayment

Analysis of net cash outflow of
cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition
of subsidiaries/business
Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

—®®EE  _—FTENE
2005 2004
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
342,363 2,289,457
41,941 20,603

- 1,854

87,893 267,970
28,854 297,905
8,766 -
82,235 148,855
(256,589) (618,797)
(6,990) (771)
(2,970) (1,470,858)
- (22,410)
- (309)
(2,182) (219,805)
(46,275) -
247,220 898,529
524,266 1,592,223
430,730 1,355,215
93,536 124,208
- 112,800
524,266 1,592,223
(430,730) (1,355,215)
82,235 148,855
(348,495) (1,206,360)
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34. Capital Commitments

X&E A48
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT  BETR  ERTR AETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Capital commitments outstanding
at the balance sheet date are
as follows:
Contracted for but not
provided for purchase and
construction of fixed assets 374,066 474 504 - -

Authorised but not
contracted for purchase and
construction of fixed assets 866,448 534,006 - -

1,240,514 1,008,510 - -

35. Operating Lease Commitments
(@) The Group as lessee

X&E A48
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

BETT  BETR  ERTR AETRx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

At the balance sheet date, the total
future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
- Within one year 790,796 730,948 - -
- In the second to fifth year
inclusive
2,317,652 1,877,416 - -
- After five years 4,642,751 4,049,792 - -

7,751,199 6,658,156 - -

kil Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group for
—&= certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated for lease

terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
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=+HEEXHORE® 35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
(2) AEFELSHBAA (b) The Group as lessor
X&E AAF
The Group The Company
—EERE _—TINF C-FFEE _TINF
2005 2004 2005 2004

ERTT AT EETR BET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

REER  RET T At the balance sheet date, the total
BEBOTRMT future minimum lease payments
HREKE  RIEHE under non-cancellable operating
HOBEE leases are receivable as follows:
REME Investment properties
~-E—FR - Within one year 390,951 316,292 - -
e - In the second to fifth year
EREN (B inclusive
BEMF) 563,110 300,267 - -
~RE2k - After five years 279,283 51,022 - -
1,233,304 667,581 - -
EYE BT FHEAERANTT1EI0 These properties have committed tenants for an average term from 1 to
Fo 10 years.
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=+R.BEHEARIE 36. Obligations Under Finance Leases
RIEEERE REHERERE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
“¥%iF _TTIF ZTTRF _TIMH
2005 2004 2005 2004

Bhtn BBt EBTRT BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

REER  ~EERE At the balance sheet date, the Group's
RARNBERNZ amounts payable under finance
FEET : leases are as follows:
TE—FR Within one year 7,693 8,729 7,096 7,750
EEF_FEZERFRN In the second to fifth year
(REBEME) inclusive 3,924 7,366 3,443 6,286
nEZR After five years - - - -
11,617 16,095 10,539 14,036
A BERIBER Less: future finance charges (1,078) (2,059)
REREZRE Present value of lease obligations 10,539 14,036
W ERTZEAR Less: Amount due for settlement
BEZFE within 12 months (7,096) (7,750)
ERT_EREERZFE Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 3,443 6,286
AEBBETEETEENGEAE A The Group leases certain of its fixed assets under finance leases. The
A EHHEHERE -HE_TTRHE average lease term is five years. For the year ended 31 December 2005,
+-B=+—HILEE  EsREHERE the average effective borrowing rate was approximately 11% p.a. (2004:
FELE11% (CBEIE : 11%) o F|E 11% p.a.). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on
TTREHE BT - IARSERAETE a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
BEAR s BVWERSARTASIIEI (T for contingent rental payments.
(OEZz 3
MEMENEEZ N BEEELETDMER The fair value of the obligations under finance leases approximates their
=, carrying amount.
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37.

38.

Contingent Liabilities

X&E A48
The Group The Company
“TERE —TINF CZTTRE —TTQNF
2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT AT E¥ETR A%t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
At the balance sheet date, there were
contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees for banks and other
loans provided to
- subsidiaries - - 7,054,321 6,856,869
- an associate 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000 7,554,321 7,356,869

Material Related Party Transactions

On 24 November 2005 ¥ T E 2 (RYI)) BBRAF] (Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a contract with ZEZEFR A A (China
Resources Construction Corp.), an approximately 100% owned subsidiary
of REIZEE 482 5] (China Resources National Corporation, the ultimate
holding company of the Company), engaging it as the main contractor
for the construction, renovation, addition and alteration works on a six-
storey multi-function commercial building situated at No. 196, Jian She
Lu, Jiangmen City, Guangdong Province owned by Xin Jiang Cheng
Enterprise (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. for a consideration of RMB199,800,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$191,400,000). 90% of the contract
sum will be payable monthly according to the amount of works
performed and certified by the quantity surveyor. The remaining 10%
will be retained as retention money which will be released after
completion of the construction.
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Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related
parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note. In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions.

Purchase of goods from associates

Receiving of services from
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Sales of goods to
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Rendering of services to
fellow subsidiaries

Operating lease payment
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Tank storage service fees
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Management fee received for
provision of certain services at
oil depot

A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Transaction under godown management
agreement and facilities
management agreement
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Payment of monthly fee to
a holding company

—TELE —ZETMEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
407,710 -
878 855
127,878 17,640
24,695 -
418 151
17,984 30,595
112,987 -
1,688 1,613
372 -
47,038 37,814
1,595 -
139,800 139,800
1,800 1,800
1,200 1,200
18,792 18,792
131,076 144,700
79,463 79,290
33,000 30,000
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38.

B.

39.
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Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
(continued)
The Group had the following material related party balances:

—BTAF —TTmE
2005 2004
BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Amount due from:
Fellow subsidiaries 18,036 42,974
Associates 27,546 22,155

Amount due to:

Fellow subsidiaries 54,223 30,918
Associates 18,502 21,447

Transactions/balances with other stated-controlled entities in Chinese
Mainland.

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under CRNC
which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it also conducts
businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
PRC government in the ordinary course of business. The Directors are of
the opinion that those entities other than the CRNC group do not have
the power to govern or participate in the financial and operating policies
of the Group. The transactions including sales and purchases of goods
and services, with these entities are conducted at arm’s length and have
been reflected in the financial statements. The Group believes that it
has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate
disclosure of related party transactions as summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel.

Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely the
directors of the Company as determined with reference to remuneration
committee, is disclosed in note 9.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 81 to 180 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 6 April 2006.



FEMBASIREREHERREEAT
Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MEBASR
LREHERRBEAST

REESL

Percentage of capital

ERfTEERAEE
HMEX

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(- BE
(1) Retail
REBEM AL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
R (FH) BRAA 5,000,000 G R EE 100.0 - 1000 TEEH
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.) B0, SRk Retail business
Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each
EHER (BB BRAA 90,000,0008% F R EE 100.0 - 100.0 HEWER  REERLER
China Resources Vanguard LA -3 il $ra
(Hong Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares of Supermarket operations,
Limited HK$1 each investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
EEEXERAA SREREEES T2 EBR 88.6 - 1000 MEsE
Worldfaith Properties Limited 3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property re-development
17 ot g e e A 5
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
> EEBRERAT AR¥1,400,000,0007 100.0 65.0 350 FTEXH
(China Resources Vanguard RMB1,400,000,000 Retail business
Co., Ltd.)
*EREREEBT (BM) ARAF ARE30,000,0007 100.0 - 100.0 EWEH

(778 - BMTBERE

BRAFD)

(China Resources Vanguard
(Guangzhou) Superstore

Co., Ltd.)

RMB30,000,000

Supermarket operations
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R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MBARR
HEEHEREREEAT
Subsidiaries and jointly

ERfTEERAEE

HREX

Nominal value of issued

7] Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

REESL

Percentage of capital

XRERE FAEHT HEBELERE

controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE##H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
- FE®
(1) Retail (continued)
1A o g e = A R S (1)
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)
*@ DBRIBRSER AT 1,000,000% 7T 51.0 - 100.0 REREERMHE
US$1,000,000 Wholesale distribution of
apparel and accessories
*HREMBRAA AE#253,820,0007T 85.0 - 85.0 EMEH
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.)  RMB253,820,000 Supermarket operations
R EREEBRATEERAF  %£%226,200,0007 100.0 - 100.0 EWEH
HK$226,200,000 Supermarket operations
REBEL#SHMAIL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@Tactical Solutions Incorporated ~ 10037T 51.0 - 51.0 ®EER
Us$100 Investment holding
(2) Bk
(2) Beverage
REBR LS MAIL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
ERSTREERAF 42,800,000% 7T 51.0 51.0 - REERKR

China Resources Snow
Breweries Limited

170 #MAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F3#

US$42,800,000

Investment holding



MEBASR
LREHERRBEAST

FTEMBLRRARZEFERREE QT

ERfTEERAEE

HMEX

Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

REESL

Percentage of capital

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(2) the (&)
(2) Beverage (continued)
A o = i 3th 5 A A5 3T
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
ERERREER)BRAE 21514531% % 51.0 - 100.0 SHENSHEBER
(China Resources Snow US$21,514,531 Manufacturing and
Breweries (Liaoning) distribution of beer
Company Limited) products
BERRSH RINERAR  AREK12,000,0007T 51.0 - 100.0 BUENSHERBER
(C'estbon Food and Beverage ~ RMB12,000,000 Manufacturing and
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
ESERRBRRAF AR #34,000,0007T 51.0 - 100.0 SHENSHEBER
(Shenyang Huachuang Brewery  RMB34,000,000 Manufacturing and
Co. Ltd) distribution of beer
products
ERSEWE(RE ARAR  21,200,000% 7T 51.0 - 100.0 SHENSHEBER
(China Resources Snow Brewery US$21,200,000 Manufacturing and
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
ERSHEE(EMFRAR 23,200,000% T 51.0 - 100.0 BUENSHERBER
(China Resources Snowflake US$23,200,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery (Jilin) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
ERERRE (ZRBRAT AR246,000,0007T 51.0 - 100.0 SHENSHEBER
(China Resources Snow (Anhui)  RMB246,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
ERSEWE(BR)ARAR  55850,000%7T 51.0 - 100.0 SHENSHEBER

(China Resources Snow Brewery
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.)

US$55,850,000
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FTEMBATREREFIERREE AT Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MEBASXR ERTLERFEE BAESH

HEEFEERHEAT aEMEF Percentage of capital

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH

controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE##H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities

(Z) BRa ()
(2) Beverage (continued)

1A o g st = AP R S (1)
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)

*HLETEE R AR ) AR#120,000,0007T 35.7 - 700 BEENSEWEER
(Zhejiang Qianjiang Breweries ~ RMB120,000,000 Manufacturing and
Stock Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
)| EEERREERETLR  AREK113,792,501T 316 - 620 BEENDEWEER
(China Resources (Sichuan) RMB113,792,501 Manufacturing and
Blue Sword Breweries distribution of beer
Company Limited) products
* e () REEREFLE ARK124,143,8537T 316 - 620 BEENDEWEER
(China Resources Blue Sword RMB124,143,853 Manufacturing and
(Chengdu) Brewery distribution of beer
Co., Ltd.) products
R (BR) DEFREMELAR AREKS6,574,8907T 316 - 620 BENSEWEER
(China Resources Blue Sword RMB56,574,890 Manufacturing and
(Guangan) Brewery Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
* ERER (HAF) BBREELE AKE100,000,0007T 316 - 620 BEENDEWEER
(China Resources Blue Sword RMB 100,000,000 Manufacturing and
(Shifang) Brewery Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
*EHER (1815) RBEREELE AKEK100,000,0007T 316 - 620 BEENDEWEER
(China Resources Blue Sword RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and
(Mianyang) Brewery distribution of beer
Co., Ltd.) products
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MEBASR
LREHERRBEAST

FTEMBLRRARZEFERREE QT

ERfTEERAEE

HMEX

Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

REESL

Percentage of capital

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(Z) BRa (®)
(2) Beverage (continued)
B Rt AR L ()
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)
* EREEE (B5) BRAF AR#116,240,0007T 45.9 - 90.0 HEMDEEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB116,240,000 Manufacturing and
Breweries (Shenyang) distribution of beer
Co., Ltd.) products
*FEHERRE (RE) ERAF AR#570,000,0007T 45.9 - 90.0 EHEMAEEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB570,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
o FEHEIRE (R E) R E 89,160,000 7T 51.0 - 100.0 &EZFKR
ARRE US$89,160,000 Investment holding
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (China)
Investment Co., Ltd.)
REELRAERAF 27,887,500% 7T 51.0 - 1000 REZFR
China Resources Tianjin US$27,887,500 Investment holding
Investment Company
Limited
(Z) BRI RS
(3) Food Processing and
Distribution
REET AR L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
TETARAT 1,046,258,000/ B FEI{E 100.0 - 100.0 EEFLREMEHE  ES

Ng Fung Hong Limited

R0 B R

1,046,258,000 ordinary shares

of HK$0.1 each

me RRREREERR
Distribution of fresh, live
and frozen foodstuff,
abattoir operation, acting
as food agent and
investment holding
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FTEMBATREREFIERREE AT Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MEBASR ERTLERFEE BAEESH
HFARHEBERHEAT ZMEX Percentage of capital
Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEREE FAEHE KWEATRR
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(2) REMIREH
(3) Food Processing and Distribution (continued)
BERMKERRAA 5,000,000/ BRE & 94.0 - 94.0 ISHRARKE
Ng Fung Frozen Meats & BT BER Trading of frozen meats
Aquatic Products Co. Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of and aquatic products
HK$1 each
@hEMALREARLA 60,000/ &R EEE#1,0007T 35.7 - 51.0  ERE#E
Chung Kong Luen Livestock 2 EmR Wholesale of live pigs
Company Limited 60,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each
RHS#EEMAL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
@+ EBRAEATR 60,864 BREE 1T 51.0 - 51.0 ®REER
China International Fisheries 2 EmR Investment holding
Corp. 60,864 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
REBRZ#EEMAIL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@ Victory Return Corporation IREREEIET L BR 51.0 - 100.0 WAEXREHEMERTR
1 ordinary share of US$1 each R
Marine fishing and the
provision of ship stores
and fishing supplies
T4 o i e o A S 2
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
*H2Rm RN ERRA AR¥543,000,0007T 70.0 - 700 BERL BHEE-

(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)

RMB543,000,000
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FTEMBARRERZEFIEEREE AT  Princpal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

MEBASXR ERTLERFEE BAERLL
HFABHEBERHEAT ZMEX Percentage of capital
Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(Z) REMIREH 2)
(3) Food Processing and Distribution (continued)
REEEZMAIL
Incorporated in the Panama
@Jin Feng S.A. 200 BREE £ LBk 51.0 - 100.0 HWEE WEHEERRER
200 ordinary shares of RERHE R 2 I ERTF
US$1 each MR %
Marine fishing, vessel
chartering and the
provision of ship stores,
fishing supplies and
bunker oil
(M) #hdk
(4) Textile
REEF ML
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ZEHH (EE) BRAF 100,000,000k B AR EE &1 7T 100.0 - 100.0 ®REER
China Resources Textiles o= 3iill) Investment holding
(Holdings) Co. Ltd. 100,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
ERHBMBRAA 5,000,000 B EEHA 17T 100.0 - 100.0 HAAHEREERIRE
China Resources Textiles 2 EER gy
Company Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of Import and export of
HK$1 each textile materials and
investment holding
¥l BB R AR 2,000,000f B EE 100.0 - 100.0 RELHERRERR

Hsin Hung Textiles Limited

BE T ERR
2,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

Trading of apparel and
investment holding
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FTEMBATREREFIERREE AT Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

HEATR ERfTHERFEE
LEEHERRBEAT HMEF

EN=R 04
Percentage of capital

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(M) & ()
(4) Textile (continued)
Ao Pyt A RS 3L
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
EBNRRERREBBR AR 73,200,0005 7 100.0 - 1000 REERRRHEH
(China Resources Textiles US$73,200,000 Investment holding and
Investment & Development trading of cotton
Company Limited)
o EBBERN BB AR AR#129,665,7187C 51.0 - 51.0 SRBREEREHEK
(China Resources Jinhua Stock  RMB129,665,718 BEER
Co., Ltd.) Manufacture and trading
of textile products and
investment holding
LRI ERGEERAF 16,430,000 7T 100.0 - 100.0 #HEREEREH
(Shandong Liaocheng China US$16,430,000 Manufacture and trading
Resources Textiles Co., Ltd.) of textile products
LR BMERGEERATF 29,050,000% 7T 100.0 - 100.0 #HEREEREH
(Shandong Binzhou China US$29,050,000 Manufacture and trading
Resources Textiles Co., Ltd.) of textile products
R ERGEERAF 24,070,000% 7T 100.0 - 100.0 #HEREEREH
(Shandong Weifang China US$24,070,000 Manufacture and trading
Resources Textiles Co., Ltd.) of textile products
(R) V¥R
(5) Property and Logistics
REEF ML
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ZRM% (BE)BRAA JREREEES T EBR 100.0 - 100.0 REZERRMEER
CRE Properties (Hong Kong) 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding and
Limited property management
CRE Property (Silvercord) Limited  2f SRREESE1 T2 TR 100.0 - 1000 WELRE

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
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MEBASR

LEEHERRBEAT

FTEMBARRERZEFIEEREE AT  Princpal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

ERfTEERAEE
HMEF

REESL

Percentage of capital

Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(R) YERYR (@)
(5) Property and Logistics (continued)
REBEMEIL @
Incorporated in Hong Kong (continued)
CRE Property (Argyle Centre) 2REREEBE T EER 100.0 - 100.0 ¥EEA
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre) 2B EREEES1 T2 LB 100.0 - 100.0 MEKRE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
HEEBERDA 1,000,000/ B AR EE 100.0 - 100.0  ERERH
Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown BRI EER Wharf & godown services
Company Limited 1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
() B R AR EREH
(6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution
REBEM AL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EBRL(GE)ARAT REREEES T EER 100.0 - 100.0 REERKR
China Resources Petrochems 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
(Group) Company Limited
EE(CIBRAR 50,000,000% Z ik E{E 100.0 - 1000 #&HBER
China Resources Chemicals BTz LRk Trading of chemical
Company Limited 50,000,000 ordinary shares of products
HK$1 each
FREEBRAF 40,000,000 BRREE 100.0 - 100.0 FAHERRBRES
BRI EER Transportation services

Callany Limited

40,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

and trading of petroleum
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IEMBLRARAREHERREE

& A7) Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MEBASXR ERTLERFEE
HFABHEBERHEAT ZMEX Percentage of capital
Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable heldby EE##H
associates registered capital to the Group subsidiaries  Principal activities
() Bt RAEREREHE @)
(6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution (continued)
REBEFMAIL
Incorporated in Hong Kong (continued)
EBRBRERLA 10,000,0000 B REE AL 1T 100.0 100.0 KHAAR
China Resources Gas Company 7 & i@k Trading of liquefied
Limited 10,000,000 ordinary shares of petroleum gas
HK$1 each
ERRHERAH 30,000,000 B R AESE 1T 100.0 100.0 A&HABEM
China Resources Petroleum 2 EmR Trading of petroleum
Company Limited 30,000,000 ordinary shares of products
HK$1 each
ERRLERAT 5,000,000/ &R EEAE 1T 100.0 100.0  f&&)Rib
CRC Petrol Filling Station o= 3iill) Petrol filling station
Company Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of operation
HK$1 each
EEKREBRLA 10,000 G REEAE 1 T 100.0 100.0  #E&)hik
Ting Key Investment Limited o= 3iilli Petrol filling station
10,000 ordinary shares of operation
HK$1 each
AR AN M A ST
Incorporated in Singapore
@ China Resources Petrochem 1,000,000 S AR E & 137 A4 7T 100.0 100.0 & AMRIEEESR

(Singapore) Pte Ltd.

ZEBR
1,000,000 ordinary shares of
S$1 each
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FTEMBARRERZEFIEEREE AT  Princpal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

MEBASXR ERTLERFEE BAERLL
HFABHEBERHEAT ZMEX Percentage of capital
Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEG FA8HE KWEATRH
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
() Rt AR E R ESH ()
(6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution (continued)
WA E ot o A 3T
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
EBCIERES (L) ARAA 200,000%7T 100.0 - 100.0 AlERESREE
US$200,000 Trading and storing of
petrochemical products
RYITEBCIERAR AR#10,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 (tIERES
RMB10,000,000 Trading of chemical
products
*EINEERRERRA 15,000,0003 7T 70.0 - 700 HERRRBEARESE
(Suzhou China Resources US$15,000,000 Sales of gas and
Gas Co., Ltd.) construction of gas
pipelines
ATERARERAF AR¥5,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 AftEREZREE
RMB5,000,000 Trading and storing of
petrochemical products
RImEBRLREERARAT AR100,000,0007 100.0 - 100.0  #&&huh
RMB100,000,000 Petrol filling station
operation
erE IR EREERA AR #800,000,0007T 36.0 - 360 HERRRBEARES
(Chengdu City Gas Co., Ltd.) ~ RMB800,000,000 Sales of gas and
construction of gas
pipelines
(t) BERH M
(7) Investments and Others
REBEM AL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EBAIENT (BB BRAR 2REREESE T EBR 100.0 100.0 - W%
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Financing
Limited
RS2SR L
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited RBREEIETZERR 100.0 100.0 - B
2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing
Hebe Haven Inc. 1REREEIFT EBR 100.0 100.0 - B
1 ordinary share of US$1 each Financing
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FTEMBATREREFIERREE AT Principal Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

MEBASXR ETEHERAEE BAESH
HEEHERRBEAT HMEE Percentage of capital
Subsidiaries and jointly Nominal value of issued FEEEE FAEHE KWEATRR
controlled entities and ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FE#H
associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(t) BERAM @)
(7) Investments and Others (continued)
REBRZ#EEMAIL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@#A HIT Investments Limited 200 BRREEIET 2 EBAR 10.0 - 100 HEBEBREEREGHEE
200 ordinary “A" shares of Investment in container
US$1 each terminal operations in
Hong Kong
@4/ Hutchison Ports Yantian 200/ Bk EE15 T2 BilAk 10.0 - 100 EFRBERBEESERE
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of US$1 each HiE

R
Notes:

N

w

=

*k

Investment in container
terminal operations in
the Chinese Mainland

EE05 2EFIIMEMERBEQAFEEERBANTR ML REFJUAEEEENEERSAYE N MBARIREE DRIFE

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

BRABFTRAEIN  ERAZEECEMEERPAE MR LA -
Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

AN EMRLZ A8 - BARIRME 82 RXERE -
For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland with an English name, such name has been adopted by each company.

TR AEENEREE524,266,000TEAE T AR ZMAE - HAE430,730,000tER S AEN T - AEBAFEEH R FR 2 EEFERETRESEM
RER 2 812,791,0007T ©

During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in certain companies for an aggregate consideration of HK$524,266,000 of which
HK$430,730,000 was paid in 2005. As a result of the acquisitions, the Group’s profit for the year and the net assets at the year end have
both been decreased by HK$12,791,000.

HREEHEE

Jointly Controlled Entity

NG

Associates

RERE

Equity Joint Venture

INERE

Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

THEERE

Listed Joint Stock Company
BRATHLHIME AR EFELAMTRERYE N -
Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates
W3EREY « BERASHATER AR

Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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ETEUENE
Schedule of Principal Properties

2005412 F31H At 31 December 2005

F5HE

Fi&#Ez

bk Group's
Location Interest

BEEE
(EHXK)
Floor
Area
(sg.m.)

Type
A&

Lease term

HEFH

R Em%E
Properties held for investment

&
Hong Kong

TBERE AR ZUE 688 I EH655%

AL —H

HEAERS - T EMD1-41E - MEF S - 58

R EB A RIPEF S AT R I E A IME R ESR 100%
Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1/F, 2/F, 3/F, 4/F and Flat Roof,

5/F and Part of External Walls and the Sign board of
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street
South and Argyle Street and scavenging lane,

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok

Kowloon

AZEE LA RK264-29855%

gL

HiEE31 R575R B EfL

A034-A041 -~ A044 -~ A128 »

A4201 ~ A4301 + A4502 X A4602EE AL -
HH1E3BEmMEETAR)

RIEEMBRIERR A RKRIEHE 2 2= 100%
Nan Fung Centre

Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units A034-A041, A044, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with

Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

7,216

7,075

Bz
c/cp

R
Long

bt
Medium
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FEYEME  Schedule of Principal Properties

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

F5HE

P&z

bk Group’s
Location Interest

EEEE
(EFHK)
Floor
Area
(sg.m.)

Type
A&

Lease term

B FH

FEREYE @
Properties held for investment (continued)

NEEL DM B FIE3E

BH1T

HTNOBSRA « 10ASREE R —1EBE 100%
Star House

Shop 9B, 10A on G/F & Shop B on 1/F

3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

BB ST

CASES

3001-11%

M E% 14455 o
8 Commercial Tower

Room 3001-11

8 Sun Yip Street

Chai Wan, Hong Kong

Lot No. 144

B IMEERAAT19-315% RAEE2-85%
BB

#R5-185% » 20A, 20B K% 20CSE4fT -
sMEAR (AAR) - BEADBAR) -
1232 ERMEEBETA 100%
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level

19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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1,011

8,982

Vg
C/0

=
Long

R HEA
Medium

=
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HhBh

Location

R EYE @)
Properties held for investment (continued)

NEERDIEERIBE305

AL

T 385k 48

TE395% # KR 24841 5 4

HE13, 14, 15, 16 2 175RELL

Silvercord

Shop No. 38 on the G/F

Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
Tower 1 and Car Park

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

ER B HEFFE3385

b
101ZA-FZ » BE{7103 & 1055%
CNT Tower

Offices A-F on 10/F, Car Park 103 & 105,
338 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BB THBE1185

— N &S

3211, 2, 3,5, 6, 7-108AL

218 E (1236, 237, 2385

Yat Chau International Plaza,

Room 1,2, 3,5,6,7-10

at 32/F, Car Park 236, 237, 238 at 2/F,
118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong

BAEFELTITET7-795

ELRE

1218 (2 8) REfIL2-36 %L2-39

Belgian Bank Tower

12/F and Car Park Space L2-36 & L2-39,
77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FEYEME  Schedule of Principal Properties

EEEE

AEHE (EHXK)

Frib#Ess Floor
Group’s Area Type Lease term
Interest (sg.m.) Rig HHER
100% 7,849 /17 31
C/CP Long
100% 629 W= 31
O/CP Long
100% 1,232 W= 31
O/CP Long
100% 590 iy e R
O/CP Long
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FEYEME  Schedule of Principal Properties

R2005412 A31H At 31 December 2005

F5HE

P&z

bk Group’s
Location Interest

EEEE
(EFHK)
Floor
Area
(sg.m.)

Type
A&

Lease term

B FH

FEREYE @
Properties held for investment (continued)

NEEBEEEE 1655

hEAE 100%
CAC Tower

165 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

RERYEIEMAT1155%
RREERE
R0 7,10, 1148 - 158202 E (BEXE)
RN 1-238% BT 100%
Chung Dah Godown Building
Ground floor, 7/F, 10/F to 11/F,
15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)
and car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor
115 King Lam Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

AR AK B8R

R

210158 = - 2B R3BRET A -

GIEER « 21245 EFHREMH -

T EEL8SRE AL -

E{7P1-P103, L1-L7, LO-L15, L17-L43 100%
Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Godown on 6/F, Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24

Car Parking Spaces No. L8 on Lower G/F,
P1-P103, L1-L7, L9-L15, L17-L43,

88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories
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13,900

8,822

31,234

I/
I/CP

T/f8
I/CP

B
Medium

B
Medium

R HEA
Medium



HhBh

Location

BIEREY%E ®

Properties held for investment (continued)

NEEMIBES BB 1757
YE TEWBRET, SRMETIHE R

HBEEL39, L40, L45, L46, L4T7 RLA8FR S E i

Yau Tong Industrial City

Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and 9/F of Block B and

Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L39, L40, L45, L46, L47 and
L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

E B IR IR 2 5T B 75i8488-4905%
HEFAE

T =4t

Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

o A 3t
Chinese Mainland

BRETIFIMERERENBHE
JIPIT R 19655

TP & 2 & i R B — BE 3057

Mt - [T

Note: C: Commercial

*:

R:

*=£
Residential

FEYEME  Schedule of Principal Properties

EEEE
*5EH (EFHXK)
Frib#Ess Floor
Group’s Area Type Lease term
Interest (sg.m.) Rig HHER
100% 9,702 I/Z R Ef
l/CP Medium
100% 3,125 5] ~H
C Long
100% 62,915 5] R HEA
C Medium
100% 43,566 5] R HEA
C Medium
1= (X W PRE I: I
CP: Car Park O: Office I: Industrial
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AFERBELHEE
Five-Year Financial Summary

—TT-F —T%C —T%= “TTmF —¥%nE
BT BT BT BT EETT
(E71) (&%) (&%) (&%)
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ReRE Consolidated results
HEm Turnover 24,196,490 28,822,019 34,655,172 47,078,103 53,583,919
R EIERF Profit attributable to shareholders 1,227,951 1,377,836 1,429,249 1,480,053 2,220,403
BREARRF Basic earnings per share HK$0.61 HK$0.67 HK$0.69 HK$0.70 HK$1.02
RIS Dividend per share
i Interim HK$0.08 HK$0.09 HK$0.10 HK$0.11 HK$0.13
R Final HK$0.10 HK$0.13 HK$0.14 HK$0.16 HK$0.25
HK$0.18 HK$0.22 HK$0.24 HK$0.27 HK$0.38
Sk Special interim - HK$0.25 71 Note 1 - -
GEEERRR Consolidated balance sheet
BTEE Fixed assets 11,232,754 13,420,082 14,820,474 19,215,056 20,854,941
mE Goodwill 778,287 1,025,106 1,346,332 2,319,216 3,083,706
EfEpEE Other intangible assets 154,269 137,272 203,710 211,025 226,597
RERE Long term investments 3,246,914 2,261,904 2,030,598 1,714,671 2,024,868
ERFE Prepayments 388,800 367,200 458,400 959,920 411,016
EEREEE Deferred taxation assets 86,331 90,169 141,379 167,192 140,018
REBEFE Net current assets 4,193,275 2,554,110 2,872,563 3,083,843 1,964,021
E4EH Employment of capital 20,080,630 19,855,843 21,873,456 27,670,923 28,705,167
AR Share capital 2,015,550 2,080,405 2,089,728 2,123,009 2,233,429
i Reserves 9,229,628 10,431,531 10,910,438 13,001,819 15,963,019
R R Shareholders' funds 11,245,178 12,511,936 13,000,166 15,124,828 18,196,448
DEEE S Minority interests 2,905,146 3,290,057 3,858,801 4,811,653 4,746,888
RHaE Long term liabilities 5,018,034 3,150,507 4,184,715 6,797,211 4,810,690
ELHEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 912,272 903,343 829,774 937,231 951,141
BERES Capital employed 20,080,630 19,855,843 21,873,456 27,670,923 28,705,167
Bzt Note:

1 R S0 R B — B B R AR 1. A special distribution in specie of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings

BRAT T R EBERIGES, - Limited for every ten shares of the Company was distributed.
) HREH IR AT BT TE - 2. Comparatives have been restated to conform with the current year presentation
) A AR S BB - in light of the changes in accounting policies.
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Summary of Notice of Annual General Meeting

UTHEERBRBFAGREZRELS - ARA
EEXHHNARRETEZBHA

EHAEBERATEITIN-ZEENFAH(E

HR) T =F¥  REESBETEEBE265REE

ANESOERITRFBAFARE - UBRETYIEE

1. RERERHEZTTRF+-A=1+—H
IEFEZRBERYBHREHES RS X
EGIlE =

2. EIRRHERE -

3. BRRIEENETESHES

4. BEZSAMEEEESETEMNS -

5. BRYEE—MEENERTBADEITIRA

10% 2 f&15 °

6. BTEZ REEUBTTIRBEEITRA
20% 2 ZBIMNIE D ©

7. FEIERINEEBETTHRMNEE ZREMREA
IREBRESTEMBEMZRMEEB - AR
RBRFEIA L —MRIXHE -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting, the

full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to shareholders

separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will be

held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong on Friday, 2 June 2006 at 3:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports
of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2005.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4.  To re-appoint Auditors and authorize the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares not
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional shares
not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7. To extend the general mandate under item 6 hereof by increasing the

number of shares permitted to be issued equivalent to the number of
shares repurchased under item 5 hereof.

#MAI¥EMR 27 China Resources Enterprise, Limited Annual Report 2005 F#
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chairman
Song Lin

Managing Director
Chen Shulin

Deputy Managing Directors
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Wang Qun

Lau Pak Shing

Kwong Man Him

Non-Executive Directors
Qiao Shibo

Jiang Wei

Yan Biao

Wang Shuaiting

Xie Shengxi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter

Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Cheng Mo Chi

Company Secretary
Lee Yip Wah, Peter

Auditors
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Office

39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited



CONCEPT DESIGN AND PRODUCTION: THE DESIGN ASSOCIATES LTD. www.tda.com.hk
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REFLER

The Bank of New York
ADR Division, 22nd Floor,
101 Barclay Street

New York, NY10286, USA
A4k - www.adrbny.com

e

BABBERZ ST - 0291
1§ 1 291 HK

FEFEAL 1 0291.HK

ADR 5% : CHNRY
CUSIP : 16940R109

REERE

FH#: ir@cre.com.hk

INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

Financial Calendar
Announcement of annual results
6 April 2006

Last day of dealings in shares on a cum entitlement basis
24 May 2006

Close of register period
29 May 2006 to 2 June 2006
(both days inclusive)

Payment of final dividend
On or about 16 June 2006

Share Registrars

Standard Registrars Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Depositary

The Bank of New York
ADR Division, 22nd Floor,
101 Barclay Street

New York, NY10286, USA
Website: www.adrbny.com

Stock Codes

Hong Kong Stock Exchange : 0291
Bloomberg : 291 HK

Reuters : 0291.HK

ADR symbol : CHNRY

CUSIP : 16940R109

Investor Relations
Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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> www.cre.com.hk

: info@cre.com.hk

39/F, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : 852-2827-1028

Facsimile :852-2598-8453

Website : www.cre.com.hk

E-mail : info@cre.com.hk
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